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Chairman’s Message:

Deco Mica Ltd. is one of the leading company in Laminates industry in India with a global foot
print in different countries. Founded in 1988, the company is today the partner of choice for
our discerning customers around the world. We are defined by our commitment to excellence
and our passion to bring to life designs that meld expertise with art.

We aim to create a strong emotional connection in the hearts of our customers, through
design & experiences. We are always conscious of who we are designing for and the total
experience we intend to create.

We revel in our ability to inspire and excite the world, challenge and break paradigms,
influence & form the future.



NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT 36" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF THE DECO
MICA LIMITED (CIN: L20299GJ1988PLC010807) IS SCHEDULED TO BE HELD ON FRIDAY, 27™
SEPTEMBER, 2024 AT 12.20 P.M. THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING (VC)/ OTHER AUDIO VISUAL
MEANS (OAVM) TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolutions as an Ordinary Resolutions:

Ordinary Resolutions:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
Financial Year ended on 31 March, 2024.

"RESLOVED THAT audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024 including Audited Balance Sheet as at March, 31, 2024, Statements of Profit and
Loss for the year ended and Cash Flow Statements for the year ended on that date along with
Independent Auditor's Report thereon and Directors' Report of the Company be and are hereby
received, considered, approved and adopted."

2. To appoint Director Mr. Vishal Vijaybhai Agarwal (DIN: 01763739) who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

“RESLOVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof), Mr. Vishal Vijaybhai Agarwal (DIN: 01763739), who
retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-
appointed as a Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation.”

3. To Change the Designation of Mr. Vikas Vijaybhai Agarwal (DIN: 01763769), Director of the
Company

To Consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 152 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification (s) or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the consent of the Shareholders of the Company
be and is hereby accorded to change the designation of Mr. Vikas Agarwal (DIN: 01763769) from
“Additional Director” to “Non-Executive Non-Independent Director”.



RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors of the Company be and are hereby severally
authorized to file necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies and to do all such acts, deeds
and things as may be necessary and thereto.”

To Change in Designation of Mr. Vishal Vijaybhai Agarwal (DIN: 01763739) , Director and CFO of
the Company from Non-Executive Non Independent Director to Executive promoter Non
Independent Director, subject to approval of Shareholders of the Company:

To Consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 152 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification (s) or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the consent of the shareholders of the Company
be and is hereby accorded to change the designation of Mr. Vishal Agarwal (DIN: 01763739) from
“Non-Executive Non-Independent Director” to “Executive Promoter Non-Independent Director”.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Managing Director of the Company be and are hereby severally
authorized to file necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies and to do all such acts, deeds

and things as may be necessary and thereto.”

SPECIAL BUSINESSES:

To approve the transaction under section 188(1)(f) for giving the remuneration to Mrs. Shraddha
V Agarwal over the prescribed limit of Rs. 2,50,000 per month

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution with or
without modification:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 188 (1) (f) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014 (“Act”) (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactments thereof for the time
being in force), the transaction entered into by the Company with "Head of Design and Digital
Strategy”, Mrs. Shraddha V. Agarwal, wife of Vishal Vijay Bhai Agarwal, who is the promoter and
director of the company, is a related party as per the relevant provisions. She oversees/ handling
and assisting in Design Development, Digital Strategy and Managing other critical functions,
ensuring the smooth and efficient operation of the company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to recommendation and approval of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Audit committee and pursuant to the relevant provisions dealing
with the same the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded for Mrs. Shraddha V
Agarwal, being related party, to continue to hold an office or place of profit in the company and
to increase remuneration from the Rs. 2,50,000 per month upto Rs. 5,00,000 per month and such
other perquisites in accordance with the Company rule.



RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized
to sign and execute agreement / amendment and other necessary papers as regards to the
amendment of the employment Agreement with Mrs. Shraddha V. Agarwal, and to do all such
acts, deeds, matters and things including but not Ilimited to filing of requisite
application/forms/reports etc. with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs or with such other Statutory
Authorities as may be required to give effect to the said resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to
do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution and for
matters connected herewith or incidental there to in the best interest of the Company.

SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

6. APPROVAL OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as
a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule
15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and other applicable
provisions and rules thereto, and Regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable provisions
(including any statutory modification(s) and/or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force),
the Company’s Policy on Related Party Transactions, and pursuant to the consent of the Audit
Committee and the consent of Board of Directors of the Company, the approval of the Members
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to enter into arrangements/ transactions/ contracts
(whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken together or series of
transactions or otherwise) as detailed hereunder with following Related Parties as defined under
the Act for purchase/sale of goods, services and/or any other business activities prescribed under
section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, the below mentioned financial years provided that the
said transactions are entered into/ carried out on arm’s length basis and on such terms and
conditions as may be considered appropriate by the Board of Directors (including any authorised
Committee thereof).

(Amount in lakhs)

Name of related | Maximum Amount of transactions | Financial Year | Type of

party transactions

a) V.K.AFinance | Rent, Reimbursement of Municipal | 2024-25 Leasing of
& Investment | Tax and Other Charges: Property Of Any
Co. Rs. 4.00/- Kinds




Rs. 4.00/-

b) Salasar Sales of Goods: Purchases of | 2024-25 Sale, purchase or
Laminates Rs. 600.00/- goods: supply of any
Limited. Rs. 800.00/- goods or

materials;

c) Heritage Sales of Goods: Purchases of | 2024-25 Sale, Purchase Or
Board Limited. | Rs. 250.00/- goods: Supply Of Any

Rs. 50.00/- Goods Or
Materials

d) Hidesign Sales of Goods: Purchases of | 2024-25 Sale, Purchase Or

Innovation Rs. 1500.00/- goods: Supply Of Any
Rs. 200.00 /- Goods Or
Materials

e) Krishna Décor | Reimbursement of Rent, Municipal | 2024-25 Leasing of
Private Tax and Other Charges: Property Of Any
Limited. Rs. 2.00/- Kind

f) Megasol Sales of Goods: Purchases of | 2024-25 Sale, Purchase Or
Global Santej | Rs. 10.00/- goods: Supply of Any

Rs. 100.00/- Goods Or
Materials

g) Heritage Sales of Goods: 2024-25 Sale, Purchase Or
Laminates Rs. 1000.00/- Supply Of Any
Private Goods Or
Limited Materials

h) Heritage Reimbursement of Rent, Municipal | 2024-25 Leasing of
Industries Tax and Other Charges: Property of Any
Private Rs. 2.00/- Kind
Limited

i) VishalV Rent, Reimbursement of | 2024-25 Leasing of
Agarwal Municipal Tax and Other Charges: Property of Any

Rs. 4.00/- Kind

j) VikasV Rent, Reimbursement of Municipal | 2024-25 Leasing of

Agarwal Tax and Other Charges: Property of Any

Kind

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized, on behalf of
the Company, to negotiate and finalize other terms and conditions and to do all such acts, deeds




and things including delegation of powers as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect
to this resolution.”

APPROVAL OF THE RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. VIJAY KUMAR DINDAYAL AGARWAL (DIN :
01869337) AS MANAGING DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY WHO HAS ATTAINED THE AGE OF 70
YEARS.

To Consider and, if thought, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as a
SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Board of Directors, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 196(3), 197, 198, 203
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Schedule V
thereto and the Rules made thereunder including any amendment(s), statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force and the Articles of Association of the company
and subject to such other approvals as may be necessary, the consent of the Company be and is
hereby accorded for the re-appointment of MR. VIJAY KUMAR DINDAYAL AGARWAL (DIN :
01869337) as Managing Director of the Company who has attained the age of 70 years, for a
period of 5 years commencing from 01 April,2024 at a remuneration not exceeding Rs. 100 lacs
Per Annum and other perquisites as per applicable provisions of the Act read with rules thereof
as amended from time to time AND THAT he shall not be liable to retire by rotation, on the terms
and conditions including payment of remuneration as contained in the draft amendment to
service/employment agreement laid before this meeting and initiated by the Chairman for the
purpose of identification with liberty and authority to the Board of Directors to revise the
remuneration every year and/or alter and vary the terms and conditions within the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year during the tenure of the said Managing
Director, the Company has no profits or its profit are inadequate, the remuneration as may be
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time shall be paid as minimum
remuneration;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (including its Nomination and Remuneration
Committee thereof) be and is hereby authorized to modify the terms and conditions of
appointment / remuneration or the scale or any other perquisites payable within the limit
permitted as they may deem fit and proper from time to time;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized
to sign and execute agreement / amendment and other necessary papers as regards to the
amendment of the Service Agreement of Mr. VIJAY KUMAR DINDAYAL AGARWAL, Managing
Director of the Company and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things including but not
limited to filing of requisite application/forms/reports etc with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
or with such other Statutory Authorities as may be required to give effect to the said resolution.



NOTES:

Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available
for this AGM/EGM . However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised
representatives to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast
their votes through e-voting.

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13,2020
, the Notice calling the EGM/AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.decomicaltd.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the website of the Stock
Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and the AGM Notice is also available on the
website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-voting facility) i.e.
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/ 2020 dated April 08,2020 and MCA
Circular No. 17/2020 date April 13, 2020, MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05,2020 and
MCA Circular No. 2/2021 dated January 13,2021.

In compliance with all applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made
thereunder and the General Circular Nos. - 14/2020 dated 08" April, 2020, 17/2020 dated
13™ April, 2020, 20/2020 dated 05" May, 2020 and 10/2022 dated 28" December, 2022,
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (““MCA") and Circular Nos.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12t May, 2020 and SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-
2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated 05" January, 2023, issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India
("SEBI") (Hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Circulars”) permitting the holding of the
AGMs, through VC/OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common
venue.

Members are requested to advise immediately any change in their address to the Company.

Since this EGM is being held through VC/OAVM, the physical attendance of the Members has
been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of the Proxies by the Members
will not be available for the EGM and hence the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and Route Map
are not annexed to the Notice.

Member Register and Share Transfer books shall remain closed from 21.09.2024 to
27.09.2024 (both days inclusive).



10.

11.

12.

13.

Members may avail of the facility of nomination in terms of section 72 of the Companies Act,
2013 by nominating any person to whom their shares in the Company shall vest on occurrence
of events stated in Form SH-13.Form SH-13 is to be submitted in duplicates to MCS Share
Transfer Agent Private Limited, Registrar and Share transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company. In
case of shares held in dematerialized form, the nomination has to be lodged with the
respective Depository Participant.

Members who have not registered their e-mail address so far are requested to register their
e-mail address for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars,
etc. from the Company electronically.

In line with the 'Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance' launched by the ministry of
Corporate affairs, Electronic Copy of the Notice of Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the
Company inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance slip
and Proxy Form are being sent to all the members whose e-mail IDs are registered with the
Company/Depository Participants(s) and have given their positive consent to receive the same
through electronic means. Members other than above, physical copies of the Notice of the
Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) of the Company inter alia indicating the process and
manner of e-voting along with attendance slip and Proxy Form are being sent in the permitted
mode.

Non Resident Indian members are requested to inform MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited /
respective DPs, immediately of :

a) Change in their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement

b) Particulars of their Bank Account maintained in India with complete name, branch,
account type, account number and address of the bank with pin code number, if not
furnished earlier

Members may also note that the notice of Annual General Meeting will also be available on
the Company's website www.decomicaltd.com

The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned
in the Notice. The facility of participation at the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be made
available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large
Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional
Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee,
Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on account of first
come first served basis.



14. The attendance of the Members attending the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted

15.

for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44
of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and
the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020
and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in
respect of the business to be transacted at the EGM/AGM. For this purpose, the Company has
entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating
voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a
member using remote e-Voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the EGM/AGM
will be provided by NSDL.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL
MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

The remote e-voting period begins on 24" September, 2024 at 9.00 A.M. and ends on 26%"
September, 2024 at 5.00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for
voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial
Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 20" September, 2024, may cast their vote
electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-
up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 20" September, 2024.

How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are
mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders

holding securities in demat mode:

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by
Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and
email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.



Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given

below:

Type of
Shareholders

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL.

Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of
NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal

Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page
click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which
is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to
enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting”
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during
the meeting.

If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select

“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.|

sp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the
icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open.
You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click
on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL
and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.




4. Shareholders//Members can also download NSDL Mobile
App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code
mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

M5SDL Mohbile App is ovaillable on

@ AppStore [ Google Play

Individual 1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can
Shareholders login through their existing user id and password. Option
holding will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any
securities  in further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are
demat mode requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and
with CDSL click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then

user your existing my easi username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to
see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the
evoting is in progress as per the information provided by
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be
able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
Additionally, there is also links provided to access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user
can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to
register is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com

and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then
click on registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page
by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a
e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page.

The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able
to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in




progress and also able to directly access the system of all
e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat
Shareholders | account through your Depository Participant registered with
(holding NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able
securities  in | to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be
demat mode) | redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
login through | authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on

their company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will
depository be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote
participants during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &

voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised
to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned
website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in

securities in demat mode with NSDL login can contact NSDL helpdesk by
sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 022 - 4886
7000

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in

securities in demat mode with CDSL login can contact CDSL helpdesk by
sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or
contact at toll free no. 1800 21 099 11

B. Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding
securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a

mobile.



Once the home page of e-voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login”
which is available under “Shareholder/Member” section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-
in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-

in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and
you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

5.

Manner of holding sharesi.e. Demat | Your User ID is:
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold | 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit
shares in demat account | Client ID

with NSDL
For example if your DP ID is

IN300*** and Client is 12%*****
then your User ID is
300****12****{

b) For Members who hold | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
shares in demat account

with CDSL For example if your Beneficiary ID is

12¥**E**%EX* then your user ID is
12***********

c¢) For members holding | EVEN Number followed by Folio
shares in Physical Form. Number registered with the
Company

For example if folio number is
001**** and EVEN is 101456 then
user ID is 1014560071 * ****

Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are
given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your
existing password to login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need
to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you.
Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial
password’ and the system will force you to change your password



6.

c)

How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with
the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you
on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from
your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a
.pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file
is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client
ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in
physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your
‘initial password’

If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps
mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose
email ids are not registered.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or

have forgotten your password:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in

your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical

mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options,
you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat

account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your
registered address etc.

Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for
casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by
selecting on the check box.

Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

i After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in

which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active

status.
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vi.

vii.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-
Voting period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual
meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify
the number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and
also “Confirm” when prompted

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option
on the confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your
vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders:

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to
send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority
letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to govilrathi@outlook.com with a

copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than
individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney
/ Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter"
displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and
take utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website
will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In
such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or
“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset
the password.

case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 or
send a request to Mr. Sachin Kareliya at evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories
for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the
resolutions set out in this notice:

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder,
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of
PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
cs@heritagesurfaces.com

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN
(self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar
Card) to cs@heritagesurfaces.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities



in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e.
Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode.

Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring
user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote

through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their
demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGM ARE AS
UNDER:-

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions mentioned
above for remote e-voting.

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the
EGM/AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM.
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM.

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility
for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-
voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE
AS UNDER:

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through
the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for
Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed
under “Join meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM
link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that
the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the
User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions
mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to
avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.



5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions
in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at cs@heritagesurfaces.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably.

For & On Behalf of the Board of
Directors
For, Deco Mica Limited

Sd/-
Place: Ahmedabad Vishal Vijay Bhai Agarwal
Date: 24.08.2024 Director and CFO

DIN: 01763739



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT U/S 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 2 & 3:

Mr. Vishal Agarwal (DIN:01763739) is Director of the Company. He retires by rotation, and
being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment. and), the consent of the Shareholders
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to change the designation of Mr. Vikas Agarwal
(DIN: 01763769) from “Additional Director” to “Non-Executive Non-Independent Director”.

Additional information on Director recommended for re-appointment as required under
Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and
Secretarial Standards 2 as prescribed by the Institute of Company.

Annexure to item No.2 & 3

Details of Director seeking appointment / Reappointment at the Forthcoming Annual
General Meeting (in pursuance of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

Sr. No. | Particulars Mr. Vishal Agarwal Mr. Vikas Agarwal

1 DIN 01763739 01763769
2 Date of Birth 08.08.1978 28.08.1976
3 Date of First 08.11.2008 13.02.2018

Appointment

4 Qualifications: MAIBM London B.com
5 Directorship in i. Kavery Laminart Private 1. Kavery Laminart
other Limited Private Limited
Companies/LLP: iii. Krishna Decor Private 2. Krishna Décor
Limited Private Limited
iiii. Heritage Laminates 3. Heritage
Private Limited Laminates Private
iv. Salasar Laminates Limited
Limited 4. Salasar Laminates
V. Heritage Ply Board Limited
Private Limited 5. Heritage Ply Board
vi. Heritage Industries Private Limited
Private Limited 6. Heritage
vii. Salasar Agropanel Industries Private

Private Limited Limited




viii. Heritage Board Limited 7. Salasar Agropanel

ix. Heritage Decorative Private Limited
Surfaces LLP 8. Heritage Board
Limited
9. Heritage
Decorative

Surfaces LLP
10. Shree Salasar
Décor Private

Limited
6 No. of Board 7 7
Meetings attended
during the Financial
Year 2023-24
7 No. of Shares as on 1,38,300 1,67,800
31.03.2024:
8 Relations between Family Family

directors inter-se

Item No. 5:

The Companies Act, 2013 aims to ensure transparency in the transactions and dealings with related
parties of the Company. The provisions of Section 188(1)(f) of the Companies Act , 2013 that govern
the related party's appointment to any office or place of profit in the company.

"Head of Design and Digital Strategy Mrs. Shraddha V. Agarwal, wife of Vishal Vijay Bhai Agarwal, who
is the promoter and director of the company, is a related party as per the relevant provisions, were
appointed as officers and holding a place of profit under Section 188(1)(f) and all other applicable
provision s of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modifications(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the lime being in force), at a monthly salary from Rs.
2,50,000 per month upto Rs. 5,00,000 per month The said approval allowed a total Salary of Rs
60,00,000 per annum; and further required, the Company to seek fresh approval of the members
of the Company in the event of increase in salary in excess of the aforesaid limit.

In terms of Sections 188(1)(f) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable rules and as per the
recommendation and approval of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee,
for enhancement in prescribed limit of Salary payable to Mrs. Shraddha V Agarwal as she oversees/
handling and assisting in Design Development, Digital Strategy and Managing other critical functions,
ensuring the smooth and efficient operation of the company associated with the Company from the
last few years and meanwhile gave her best for its immense growth.



Her present roles are crucial to provide impetus to the expanding of the Business of the Company.
Considering their qualification, experience and present role prescribed limit of Companies Act is not
commensurate, hence requires approval of the shareholders.

Your Directors recommend passing of this resolution by way of A Ordinary resolution.
Item no. 6
APPROVAL OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, at their respective meetings held
on 12* February, 2024 has approved a proposal for entering into following related party
transactions:

Name of Related Party 1.V.K.A Finance & Investment Co.

2.Salasar Laminates Limited.

3. Heritage Board Limited.

4. Hidesign Innovation

5.Krishna Décor Private Limited.

6. Megasol Global Santej

7. Heritage Lamiantes Private Limited — BLR
10.Heritage Lamiantes Private Limited —DEL

11.Heritage Industries Private Limited

Name of Related Director or KMP Shri Vijaykumar D. Agarwal, Shri Vishal V
Agarwal, Shri Vikas V Agarwal

Nature of relationship Entities Controlled By Directors/ Relative Of
Directors

Material terms, monetary value and particulars | The transaction between the parties will be in
of the contract or arrangement; the nature of purchase/sale of goods, services
and/or any other business activities prescribed
under section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The amount of the transactions shall be as
stated in the resolution and the same has to be
paid as per the terms agreed by both the parties.

The Manner of determining the pricing and | The pricing will be commensurate with the
other market value of the goods and shall be at arm’s

length.
commercial terms, both included as part of

contract and not considered as part of the
contract




Any other information relevant or important | N.A
for the members to take a decision on the
proposed

resolution

The transaction is Related Party Transaction and in terms of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
and regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the applicable rules there under prior approval of the
Shareholders by way of Special Resolution is required.

Except as mentioned above, none of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
and/or their respective relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested either directly or indirectly,
financially or otherwise, in the Resolution mentioned at Item No. 6 of the Notice.

The Directors recommend this resolution to be passed as Special Resolution.

ITEM NO.: 7

APPROVAL OF THE RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. VIJAY KUMAR DINDAYAL AGARWAL (DIN : 01869337)
AS MANAGING DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY WHO HAS ATTAINED THE AGE OF 70 YEARS.

The Board of Directors on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee to
appoint Mr. Vijaykumar Agrawal (DIN: 01869337) by way of passing the Special Resolution for
approval of the Members of the Company who has already attained the age of 70 years, as Managing
Director of the Company for a period of five years w.e.f. 015 April,2024 and will continue to be the
Managing Director of the Company of DECO MICA LIMITED that he shall not be liable to retire by
rotation. And any Director on the behalf of the Company execute amendment to service/employment
agreements including the terms of remuneration as per the applicable provisions of section 197, 198
read with Schedule V of Companies Act, 2013 entered with Mr. VIJAY KUMAR DINDAYAL AGARWAL

Mr. VIJAY KUMAR DINDAYAL AGARWAL (DIN: 01869337) being Managing Director of the Company
and having vast and expertise knowledge of the industry, it is essential to retain him in the Board of
the Directors of the Company. The Board considers that his continued association would be of
immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable to continue to avail services of Mr. VIJAY KUMAR
DINDAYAL AGARWAL (DIN: 01869337) as Managing Director of the Company of the Company.

For & On Behalf of the Board of Directors
Of Deco Mica Limited

sd/-
Place: Ahmedabad Vishal Vijay Bhai Agarwal
Date: 24.08.2024 Director and CFO

DIN: 01763739



DIRECTOR'’S REPORT

To

The Members,

Deco Mica Limited

CIN: L20299GJ1988PLC010807

Your Directors are pleased to present the Thirty Sixth 36" Annual Report on the business and
operations of the Company along with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year
ended 31t March, 2024.

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:
The Financial Performance of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March, 2024 is
summarized below:

(Amount in lakhs)

PARTICULARS Current year Previous Year
(For the year (For the year
ended 31.03.2024) | ended 31.03.2023)
Sales 7727.18 7830.09
Other Income 50.55 77.80
Total Income 7777.73 7907.89
Depreciation 127.20 130.79
TAX 353.44 329.69
Current Tax 128.50 102.80
Tax Expenses related to prior year 8.19 4.64
Deferred Tax (14.24) (5.96)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 230.98 228.22
Other Comprehensible Income (11.05) (8.67)
Total Comprehensible Income for the year 219.93 219.55
Earnings per share (Rs.) : Basic 5.50 5.43
Diluted 5.50 5.43

2. OVERVIEW OF COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE

The Key points pertaining to the business of the Company for the year 2023-24 and period
preceding thereto have been given hereunder:



e The total revenue of the Company during the financial year 2023-24 was Rs. 7,777.73/-
(Amount in Lakhs) against the total revenue of Rs. 7,907.89/- (Amount in Lakhs) in the previous
financial year 2022-23.

* The Profit after tax was Rs. 230.98/- (Amount in Lakhs) for the financial year 2023-24 which
has increased as compared to the Profit after tax of Rs. 228.22/- (Amount in Lakhs) in the

previous financial year 2022-23.

SHARE CAPITAL

The authorised Share Capital of the company is Rs. 5,00,00,000 (Five Crore Rupees only)
divided into 50,00,000 equity Shares of Rs.10/-.

The Paid-up Share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2024 is Rs. 4,20,00,000 divided into
42,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up. There is no increase in capital of the

Company.

There was no change in the share capital of the Company during the year under
review.

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (i) of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directors State
that during the year under review, the Company has earned profit after tax of Rs.
230.98 (Amount in Lakhs). Your directors are continuously looking for avenues for
future growth of the Company.

DIVIDEND:

Keeping in view the future strategic initiatives of the Company, Pursuant to section 134(3)(k)
of the Companies Act,2013 the Board has not recommended any dividend for the year ended
31 March, 2024.

TRANSFER OF UNPAID/ UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND & SHARE APPLICATION MONEY TO
INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

During the year under review, the Company was not required to transfer any dividend amount
to account of IEPF.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

For the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, the Company is not carrying any amount to
General Reserve Account.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE
TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has adequate and effective internal controls to provide reasonable assurance
on achievement of its operational, compliance and reporting objectives. The Company has
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11.
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14.

reviewed and discussed with the Management the Company's major financial risk exposures
and taken steps to monitor and control such exposure.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

Your Company does not have any Subsidiary or Joint Venture or Associate Company.
DEPOSITS:

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has not accepted any public deposits
during the Financial Year.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT:

Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(f) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Company is not required to prepare the business responsibility and
sustainability report.

Disclosure relating to Managerial remuneration:

The remuneration details of paid to the Directors in accordance with the Nomination and
Remuneration policy formulated in accordance with section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Regulation 19 of the SEBI LODR (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force).

The remuneration details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and ratio of
remuneration of each Director and Key Managerial Personnel to the median of employees’
remuneration as per Section 197(12) of the Act, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and names and
particulars of remuneration of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act and Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms part
of this Annual Report as “Annexure-A”

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”), i.e. Secretarial Standard-1 (“SS-1”) and Secretarial
Standard-2 (“SS-2"), relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’,
respectively, have been duly complied by the Company.

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

At the 33" Annual General Meeting held on 29th day of September, 2022, M/s J.T. Shah &
Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 109616W) was appointed as statutory auditors of
the company to hold office till the conclusion of the 38" Annual General Meeting to be held
for the financial year 2026-2027.
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There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report which require any
Clarification/ explanation. The Notes on financial statements are self-explanatory, and needs
no further explanation.

Further the Auditors’ Report for the financial year ended, 31st March, 2024 is annexed
herewith for your kind perusal and information as “Annexure: B”.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204(1) of the Act read with Rule 9 of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s)
or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and Regulation 24A of the Listing
Regulations, the Company has appointed M/s Govil Rathi & Associates, Company Secretary in
Practice, to undertake Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report for the
financial year 2023-24 submitted by him in the prescribed form MR-3 forms part of this Annual
Report as “Annexure-C”.

A Secretarial Compliance Report for the FY ended March 31, 2024 on compliance of all
applicable SEBI regulations and circulars/guidelines issued thereunder, was obtained from
M/s Govil Rathi & Associates, Company Secretary in Practice, and submitted to the stock
exchange.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR:

During the year under review, 9 (Nine) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Details
on Composition of the Board and its Committees, including the dates and terms of reference
is provided in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Annual Report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS:

There are no such material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the
Company which has occurred between the end of the financial year ended March 31, 2024
and the date of report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEE:

There are no employees employed by the Company throughout the financial year or for a part
of the financial year who were drawing remuneration above the limits provided in section 197
(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and therefore there are no details
required to be given in the report.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

a) Mr. Vishal Vijay Bhai Agarwal (DIN: 01763739) who retires by rotation, and being
eligible, has offered himself for reappointment. The Board has recommended his
reappointment.



b) Declaration by an Independent Director(s): A declaration by an Independent Directors
that they meet the criteria of independence as provided in subsection (6) and (7) of
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 has not been received and there has been
change in the circumstances affecting their status as Independent Directors of the
Company, As both the Independent Directors, Nupur Bipinchandra Modi (DIN:
08261303) and Gunjan Yogesh Pandya (DIN: 08493307), have not cleared the Online
Proficiency Self-Assessment Test within the stipulated timeframe specified by the
Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (lICA), and are not exempt from giving the
examination, as on the current date their failure to attempt the Online Proficiency
Self-Assessment Test makes them ineligible to hold the position of Independent
Director.

c¢) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP’s):
In accordance with the section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Vishal Vijay Bhai
Agarwal, CFO, and CS Niharika Modi, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer,
continued to be the KMP of the company.

d) The Board of Directors wishes to inform the members of the Company that a casual
vacancy has arisen in the position of Independent Director due to the sad demise of
Mr. Harish Kumar Joshi on 8th December 2023. This vacancy has not yet been filled
due to the unavailability of an eligible candidate who meets all the criteria for
appointment as an Independent Director, as specified by the Indian Institute of
Corporate Affairs (IICA).

e) Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V, Para C, Clause 10(i) of the Listing
Regulations, Mr. Govil Rathi, Practicing Company Secretary, Ahmedabad, has certified
that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company, have been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI), the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any other
statutory authority. However, the Independent Directors are not eligible to continue
in their positions in the Company as they have not cleared the Online Proficiency Self-
Assessment Test and further their profile has been disabled from Independent
Director’s Data bank, this makes them ineligible from being re-appointed as
Independent Directors of the Company in accordance with statutory requirements.
The said certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary forms part of this Annual
Report.

20. EVALUATION OF BOARD, COMMITTEES AND DIRECTORS
Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Board had carried out performance evaluation of its
own, the Board Committees and of the Independent directors. Independent Directors at a
separate meeting evaluated performance of the Non-Independent Directors, Board as a whole
and of the Chairman of the Board.

The following were the Evaluation Criteria:
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(a) For Independent Directors:
- Knowledge and Skills

- Professional conduct

- Duties, Role and functions

(b) For Executive Directors:

- Performance as Team Leader/Member.

- Evaluating Business Opportunity and analysis of Risk Reward Scenarios
- Key set Goals and achievements

- Professional Conduct, Integrity

- Sharing of Information with the Board

The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS

There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the Auditors to
report to the Audit Committee and / or Board under Section 143(12) of Act and Rules framed
thereunder.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:

The company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The investment in other securities is within the authority
given to the Board by the shareholders under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

All related party transactions were entered during the financial year were the ordinary course
of business and on an arm's length basis in terms of provisions of the Act. As per the
requirement under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), approval of the Audit
Committee was obtained for all the Related Party Transactions. During the year under review
there were no materially significant related party transactions entered by the Company with
the related parties which may have a potential conflict with the interests of the Company.

A statement of all related party transactions is presented before the Audit Committee on
quarterly basis, specifying the nature, value and terms and conditions of transactions. Since
all the Related Party Transactions entered into during the Financial Year were on an arm’s
length basis and in the ordinary course of business, All the required details are mentioned
herein in Form AOC-2 as prescribed under Section 134(3)(h) the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is annexed to this Board’s Report as “Annexure D”.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, your
directors confirm that:
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I. In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended March 31,
2024, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

Il. The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2024 and of the
profit /loss of the Company for that period;

lll. The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

IV. The directors had prepared the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended March
31, 2024 on a going concern basis;

V. The directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively.

VI. The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

A statement indicating development and implementation of a risk management policy for the
Company including identification therein of elements of risk, if any, which in the opinion of
the Board may threaten the existence of the company.

The Board of Directors has duly developed and implemented a risk management policy for the
company. The Policy mandates the ways in which respective risks are expected to be mitigated

and monitored.

CODE OF CONDUCT:

The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for Board Members and for Senior Management
and Employees of the Company (Code). All the Board Members and Senior Management
Personnel have affirmed compliance with these Codes. A declaration signed by the Managing
Director to this effect is enclosed at the end of this Report.

The Board has also laid down a Code of Conduct for Independent Directors pursuant to section
149(8) and Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 via terms and conditions for appointment
of Independent Directors, which is a guide to professional conduct for Independent Directors
and is uploaded on the website of the Company.

The same could be viewed from the Website of the Company:
https://www.decomicaltd.com/pdf/Code%200f%20Conduct%200f%20Board%200f%20Direc
tors%20and%20Senior%20Management%20personnel.pdf




27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

INTERNAL AUDITORS:

The Board of Directors of the Company have appointed M/s Nimesh M. Shah & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Ahmedabad (FRN: 115204W) as Internal Auditors to conduct Internal Audit of
the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM FOR DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES:

The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities and has put in
implementation of a mechanism wherein the Employees are free to report illegal or unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's Codes of Conduct or
Corporate Governance Policies or any improper activity to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee of the Company or Chairman of the Company or the Compliance Officer of the
Company.

The Whistle Blower Policy has been appropriately communicated within the Company. Under
the Whistle Blower Policy, the confidentiality of those reporting violation(s) is protected and
they are not subject to any discriminatory practices. No personnel have been denied access
to the Audit Committee.

The same could be viewed from the Website of the Company:
https://www.decomicaltd.com/pdf/Vigil%20Mechanism%20Policy.pdf

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF WOMAN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT,2013

The Company has been employing six woman employee. The Company has in place an Anti
harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Woman at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaint Committee
is set up to redress complaints received regularly, is monitored and directly report to the
Chairman & Managing Director. There was no complaint received from employee during the
financial year 2023-24 and hence no complaint is outstanding as on 31.03.2024 for redressal.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS:

There are no significant/material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
impacting the going Concern status of your Company and its operations in future.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION :

The Details of Energy and Technology Absorption are as under:

i. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
The Company continues its endeavor to improve energy conservation and
utilization.
(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;




The Company continues to endeavor to improve energy conservation
and utilization.

(ii) The steps taken by the company for utilising alternate sources of
energy;
The Company is in the process of searching the best available alternate
source of Energy in Laminates Industry sector

(iii)  The capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s;
The Company is in the process of searching the best available alternate

source of Energy in Laminates Industry sector.

ii. Technology Absorption:

a) The Efforts made toward technology absorption:
Indigenously developed technologies for the improvement of
production in the factory were adopted and required modifications and
innovations were done on continuous basis.

b) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction,
product development or import substitution:
The innovations made by the Company has provided better results in
quality and production and also reducing the involvement of manual
workers without increasing the overall cost of production and
maintenance.

c¢) In _case of imported technologies (imported during last years
reckoned from the beginning of financial year:

The details of technology imported: Nil
The year of import: Nil
Whether the technology been fully absorbed: Not applicable

If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has | Not applicable
not taken place and the reasons thereof

iii.  Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:

a) The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year:
Rs. 25,62,07,674.30

b) The Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual
outflows: Rs. 13,53,66,428.75



32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

The Management Discussion and Analysis for the year under review as stipulated under
Regulation 34(2) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, (the Listing Regulations), is
presented in a separate section forming part of this Annual Report. “ANNEXURE-E”

DETAILS OF COMPANY’S CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (o) of the Companies Act, 2013 board of directors’ state that the
provisions of the Corporate Social Responsibility as contained under the Companies Act, 2013
are not applicable to the Company.

ANNUAL RETURN ON THE WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY

Pursuant of Section 134 (3) (a), the board of directors declare that the Annual return of the
company for the financial year 2023-24 is uploaded on the website of the company at
https://www.decomicaltd.com/

CFO CERTIFICATION

The CFO/CEO certification on the financial statement of the Company as required under
Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2015 forms part of this Annual Report as
“ANNEXURE-F”.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of Corporate Governance and
adhere to the Corporate Governance requirements set out by SEBI. The Report on Corporate
Governance as required under Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the Listing
Regulations forms part of this Annual Report. The Corporate Governance is not applicable to
the Company for the F.Y. 2023-24. Further as required under Regulation 17(8) of the Listing
Regulations, a certificate from the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer is annexed
with this Report as “ANNEXURE-G”

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY
AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE
END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

During the year under review, there were no applications made or proceedings pending in
the name of the company under the insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.



38. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF
ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE
BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF.

During the year under review, there has been no one time settlement of loans taken from
Banks and Financial Institutions.

39. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAM FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All Independent Directors are familiarized with the operations and functioning of the Company. The
details of the familiarization program are provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

40. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:
The Directors place on record deep appreciation and gratitude for the co-operation and
assistance received by the Company from the staff and employees. The Board further thanks
bankers, business associates, regulatory and government authorities for their continued
support to the Company.

Date: 24.08.2024 For & on behalf of the Board Of Directors
Place: Ahmedabad DECO MICA LIMITED
Sd/-
Sd/- Vijay Kumar Dindayal Agarwal
Vishal Vijay Bhai Agarwal
Director & CFO Managing Director

DIN: 01763739 DIN: 01869337



Annexure-A to the Director’s Report

Information required under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rule, 2014

A.

Ratio of Remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of all the
employees of your Company for the financial year 2023-24 is as follows:

Name of Director Total Remuneration Ratio of remuneration of
Director to the median
remuneration

Mr. Vijay Agarwal 74,52,801 20:1

Mr. Vishal Agarwal 78,85,241 21:1

Notes: No remuneration is being paid to any other director. The median remuneration
for all employees of the company has been calculated only for employees working
with the company as on March 31, 2024.

Details of percentage increase/(decrease) in the remuneration of Director and CFO
for the financial year 2023-24:

Sr. No. Name of Directors Category % increase in
remuneration in
the financial year

1 Vijaykumar Agarwal | Managing Director -0.64%

2 Vishal Agarwal CFO -1.38%

Percentage increase in the median remuneration of all employees in the FY 2023-
24:

It is not practical to ascertain the above as the type and number of employees at
different levels has changed between FY 2022-23 and 2023-24.

Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31.03.24 : 86

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than
the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the
percentile increase in the managerial remuneration justification thereof and point
out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration:

The increase in remuneration is linked to the performance of Company as a Whole,
the concerned division, the employees and other factors like industry trends and
economic environment.

As per the Company’s policy of rewarding the employees, including Key Managerial
Personnel, the increase in remuneration and variable pay is based on an individual
performance rating and business unit performance and the bench mark study is also
factored. Considering the performance of the KMPs in the year, they were
appropriately compensated.



Key Parameters of the variable Component of remuneration paid to the director:
The remuneration payable to the Director for the year 2023-24 does not include any
variable component.

There are no employees of the Company who receive remuneration in excess of the
highest paid Director of the Company

Affirmation

Pursuant to Rule 5(1) (xii) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, it is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and senior management is as per the
Remuneration Policy of your Company.

Statement containing the particulars of employees in accordance with Rule 5 (2) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rule,2014

The company has no such employees.



DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT

I hereby confirm that the company has obtained from all the members of the Board and employees
at senior management level, affirmation that they have complied with the code of conduct for Board

of Directors and senior management level employees.

Date: 24.08.2024

Place: Ahmedabad

Vishal Vijay Bhai Agarwal
Director & CFO

DIN: 01763739

For & on behalf of the Board Of Directors

DECO MICA LIMITED

Vijay Kumar Dindayal Agarwal
Managing Director

DIN: 01869337
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FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 315" MARCH, 2024
[Pursuant to section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

DECO MICA LIMITED

(CIN: L20299GJ1988PLC010807)

306, 3rd Floor, Iscon Mall, Star Bazar Building, Jodhpur Char Rasta,
Satellite, Ahmedabad- 380015, Gujarat, India.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Deco Mica Limited (CIN:
L20299GJ1988PLC010807) (hereinafter called “the Company”) having its Registered office
at 306, 3 Floor, Iscon Mall, Star Bazar Building, Jodhpur Char Rasta, Satellite, Ahmedabad-
380015, Gujarat, India. Secretarial Audit was conducted in @ manner that provided me a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on 31t March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by Deco Mica Limited (CIN: L20299GJ1988PLC010807) (hereinafter called
“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31%t March, 2024 according to the provisions
of:

i The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and

External Commercial Borrowings;

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'): -

O Floor, Aakashganga Complex, Parimal Under Bridge, Nr +91 9409113983
Suvidha Shopping Centre, Paldi, Ahmedabad - 380007, Gujarat. B¥8 govilrathi@outlook.com
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9

d)

g)

h)

Vi.

UDIN: F013152F001039641

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirement) Regulation, 2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the company during the audit
period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 as well as The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 to the extent
applicable; (Not applicable to the company during the audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not applicable to the
company during the audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to the company during the audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not
applicable to the company during the audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; and (Not applicable to the company during the audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
(Not applicable to the company during the audit period)

Management has identified and confirmed the following laws as being specifically
applicable to the Company:

a) The Factory Act, 1948

b) The Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948;

c) The Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;
d) The Boilers Act, 1923;

e) The Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017;

f) The Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017;

g) The State Goods and Services Tax (SGST) Act, 2017;

h) The Income-tax Act, 1961;

i) The Employees’ Compensation Act, 1923;

j) The Payment of Wages Act, 1936;

k) The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946;

O Floor, Aakashganga Complex, Parimal Under Bridge, Nr +91 9409113983
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[) The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947;
m)The Minimum Wages Act, 1948;
n) The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981;
0) The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974;
p) Gujarat Fire Prevention and Life Safety Measures Act, 2013
q) The Municipal Solid Waste (Management and Handling) Rules, 2000

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
i.  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s), if
applicable;

iii. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

I further report that

The Company's Board of Directors lacks the proper constitution with a balanced
representation of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent
Directors. Throughout the year, Independent Director Harishkumar Dhanjibhai
Joshi ceased to serve on the board due to sad demise with effect from 08"
December, 2023, and Independent Director Nupur Bipinchandra Modi submitted a
resignation notice which has not been officially acknowledged by the company.
Consequently, the alterations in the Board's composition during the review period
were not executed in accordance with the provisions outlined in the Act.

Further, Both the Independent Directors, Nupur Bipinchandra Modi (DIN:
08261303) and Gunjan Yogesh Pandya (DIN: 08493307) are not eligible to
continue in their positions in the Company as they have not cleared the Online
Proficiency Self-Assessment Test and further their profile has been disabled from
Independent Director’s Data bank, this makes them ineligible from being re-
appointed as Independent Directors of the Company in accordance with statutory
requirements.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance/as per Companies Act, 2013.

Further, there is no system in place for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting, nor for ensuring meaningful
participation at the meeting.

The decisions made by the Board of Directors are executed without the consent of the
Independent directors and do not adequately consider the perspectives of dissenting
members. This lack of consideration means that not all viewpoints are carefully weighed
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before determining the course of action, which hampers a balanced and inclusive decision-
making process within the board.

I further report that there are inadequate systems and processes in the company, which
are not commensurate with the size and operations of the company, to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, and guidelines.

I further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable finance laws like Direct
and Indirect tax laws has not been reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject
to review by Statutory Financial Auditor and other designated professionals engaged by the
Company.

I further report that during the audit period the company there has been no material
discrepancy in the business and no specific change in the nature of the Business.

[Note: The detail mentioned in the Secretarial Audit Report represents the duration starting
from 01/04/2023 till 31/03/2024. We are not responsible for any changes done after the date
of signing of audiit report.]

Place: Ahmedabad For, M/s GOVIL RATHI & ASSOCIATES
Date: 24/08/2024 (FRN: S2019GJ681500)
(Peer Review Certificate No. 2737/2022)
Practicing Company Secretary and
Registered Trademarks Agent

Sd/-

CS Govil Rathi

CP. NO. 22106 FCS No.13152
UDIN: FO13152F001039760

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as "TANNEXURE
A" and forms an integral part if this report.
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ANNEXURE A

To,

The Members,

DECO MICA LIMITED

(CIN: L20299GJ1988PLC010807)

306, 3rd Floor, Iscon Mall, Star Bazar Building,
Jodhpur Char Rasta, Satellite,

Ahmedabad- 380015, Gujarat, India

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date, for the financial year 2023-2024 is to be read along
with this letter:

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The
verification was done to test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books
of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the company.

Place: Ahmedabad For, M/s GOVIL RATHI & ASSOCIATES
Date: 24/08/2024 (FRN: S2019G1681500)
(Peer Review Certificate No. 2737/2022)
Practicing Company Secretary and
Registered Trademarks Agent

Sd/-

CS Govil Rathi

CP. NO. 22106 FCS No.13152
UDIN: F013152F001039641
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

I, Govil Rathi, Practicing Company Secretary, have examined the relevant
registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of
Deco Mica Limited (the Company) (CIN: L20299GJ]1988PLC010807) as required to
be maintained under the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made
thereunder for the financial year ended on 31t March, 2024 and produced before
me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Clause 10 (i) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the
examinations carried out by me and explanations furnished to me by the company,
its directors and officers,

After reviewing the website of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), It has been
confirmed that the Director Identification Numbers (DINs) of all directors are
currently active. Further, I have checked the status of the Independent Directors in
the Independent director’s databank to confirm about their Eligibility. Upon review,
it has been observed that the Independent Directors, Nupur Bipinchandra Modi and
Gunjan Yogesh Pandya, are not exempt from the requirement of Online Proficiency
Self-Assessment test their IICA Annual reports forms part of this certificate.
Furthermore, they have not completed the said test as specified by The Indian
Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA) till the date of issuance of this certificate.

On the basis of the Observation drawn the Independent Directors are not Eligible to
be appointed / Reappointed as an Independent Director as per the criteria Set by
IICA. I certify that other than the independent Director all other Directors are
qualified to be appointed as the directors of the Company and none of the directors
on the board of the company have been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Securities Exchange
Board of India/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.
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Sr. Name of Director DIN Date of | Date of
No. appointment Cessation
1. Vishal Vijay Bhai | 01763739 08/11/2008 NA
Agarwal
2. Vikas Vijay Bhai | 01763769 13/02/2018 NA
Agarwal
3. Vijay Kumar Dindayal | 01869337 01/01/1997 NA
Agarwal
4, Nupur Bipinchandra | 08261303 03/10/2018 NA
Modi
5. Gunjan Yogesh | 08493307 27/09/2019 NA
Pandya
6. HarishKumar 01871634 15/03/2007 08/12/2023*
Dhanjibhai Joshi

*Cessation Due to Death dated 08/12/2023.

Ensuring the eligibility of the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is
the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an
opinion on these, based on my verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Ahmedabad For, M/s Govil Rathi & Associates
Date: 24/08/2024 Practicing Company Secretary
Sd/-

CS GOVIL RATHI
COP NO.: 22106 FCS NO.: 13152
UDIN: FO13152F001039694
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para E of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015]
To,
The Members,
DECO MICA LIMITED
(CIN: L20299GJ1988PLC010807)

I have conducted verification & examination of relevant records of DECO MICA
LIMITED (CIN: L20299GJ1988PLC010807) (‘the Company’), for the purpose of
issuing this certificate for compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024, as stipulated in Chapter IV of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
Management. Our examinations have been limited to the procedures and
implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of
the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said Regulations. It is
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the
Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
and information furnished to us, we certify that the Company has complied with all
the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Chapter IV of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Except Company had not complied with the
regulation 25 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The Company had not
appointed one Independent Director till date upon casual vacancy due to
sad Demise of Harishkumar Dhanjibhai Joshi with effect from 08t
December,2023 and other Independent Directors, Nupur Bipinchandra
Modi (DIN: 08261303) and Gunjan Yogesh Pandya (DIN: 08493307), are
not eligible to continue in their positions in the Company as they have not
cleared the Online Proficiency Self-Assessment Test and further their
profile has been disabled from Independent Director’s Data bank, this
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makes them ineligible from being re-appointed as Independent Directors
of the Company in accordance with statutory requirements.

Further listed Entity Did not hold at least one meeting in FY 2023-2024,
without the presence of non-independent directors and members of the
management i.e., Only in presence of independent directors.

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Ahmedabad For, M/s GOVIL RATHI & ASSOCIATES
Date: 24/08/2024 Practicing Company Secretary
Sd/-

CS GOVIL RATHI
COP NO.: 22106 FCS NO.13152
UDIN: FO13152F001039705
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SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF
DECO MICA LIMITED

(CIN: L20299GJ11988PLC010807)
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

To,

DECO MICA LIMITED

(CIN: L20299G]1988PLC010807)

306, 3rd Floor, Iscon Mall, Star Bazar Building,

Jodhpur Char Rasta, Satellite, Ahmedabad-380015, Gujarat, India

We have conducted the review of the compliance of the applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by DECO MICA LIMITED (CIN:
L20299GJ1988PLC010807) (hereinafter referred as “the listed entity”), having its registered
office at 306, 3rd Floor, Iscon Mall, Star Bazar Building, Jodhpur Char Rasta, Satellite, Ahmedabad-
380015, Gujarat, India, Secretarial Review was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the listed entity’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the listed entity and also the information provided by the
listed entity, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Review, we hereby report that the listed entity has, during the review period covering the financial
year ended on March 31, 2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We, M/s. Govil Rathi & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, have examined:

(a) All the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by the listed
entity,

(b) The filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the Stock Exchanges,
(c) Website of the listed entity,

(d) Any other document/filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this
certification,

For the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 ("Review Period”) in respect of compliance with
the provisions of:
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(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations,
circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; and

(b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA"), rules made thereunder and the
Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board
of India ("SEBI");

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/guidelines issued thereunder, have
been examined, include: -

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred as “Listing Regulations”);

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable to the listed entity during the Review Period)

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable to the listed entity during the Review Period)

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not
Applicable to the listed entity during the Review Period)

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the listed entity during the Review Period)

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the listed entity during the Review Period);

(9) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
(Not Applicable to the listed entity during the Review Period)

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations,
2018; (Not Applicable to the listed entity during the Review Period)

and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, and based on the above examination, we hereby
report that, during the review period:

L. (a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and
circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters as specified below:
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Sr. | Compliance Regulation Deviations | Action | Type Details Fine Observations/ | Management | Remarks
No. | Requirement | /Circular Taken | of of Amount | Remarks Response

(Regulation No. by Action | violation of the

s/ circulars/ Practicing

guidelines Company

including Secretary

specific

clause)

NA
(c) The listed entity has taken following actions to comply with the observations made in
previous reports:

Sr. | Compliance Regulation Deviations | Action | Type Details Fine Observations/ | Management | Remarks
No. | Requirement | /Circular Taken | of of Amount | Remarks Response

(Regulation No. by Action | violation of the

s/ circulars/ Practicing

guidelines Company

including Secretary

specific

clause)

NA
II. Compliances related to resignation of statutory auditors from listed entities and their
material subsidiaries as per SEBI Circular CIR/CFD/CMD1/114/2019 dated 18" October,
2019:
Sr. Particulars Compliance Observations /
No Status Remarks by
(Yes/No/NA) PCS*

1. Compliances with the following conditions while appointing/re-
appointing an auditor

i. If the auditor has resigned within
45 days from the end of a quarter of
a financial year, the auditor before
such resignation, has issued the
limited review/ audit report for such
quarter; or

NA No such event
during the

review period

ii. If the auditor has resigned after 45
days from the end of a quarter of a
financial year, the auditor before
such resignation, has issued the
limited review/ audit report for such
quarter as well as the next quarter;
or

+91 9409113983
22 govilrathi@outlook.com
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iii. If the auditor has signed the
limited review/ audit report for the
first three quarters of a financial year,
the auditor before such resignation,
has issued the limited review/ audit
report for the last quarter of such
financial year as well as the audit
report for such financial year.

2. Other conditions relating to resignation of statutory auditor

i. Reporting of concerns by Auditor | NA No such event
with respect to the listed entity/its during the
material subsidiary to the Audit review period
Committee:

a. In case of any concern with the
management of  the listed
entity/material subsidiary such as
non-availability of information / non-
cooperation by the management
which has hampered the audit
process, the auditor has approached
the Chairman of the Audit Committee
of the listed entity and the Audit
Committee  shall receive such
concern directly and immediately
without specifically waiting for the
quarterly Audit Committee meetings.

b. In case the auditor proposes to
resign, all concerns with respect to
the proposed resignation, along with
relevant documents has been
brought to the notice of the Audit
Committee. In cases where the
proposed resignation is due to non-
receipt of information / explanation
from the Listed entity, the auditor has
informed the Audit Committee the
details of information/explanation
sought and not provided by the
management, as applicable.
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c. The Audit Committee / Board of
Directors, as the case may be,
deliberated on the matter on receipt
of such information from the auditor
relating to the proposal to resign as
mentioned above and communicate
its views to the management and the
auditor.

ii. Disclaimer in case of non-receipt of
information:

The auditor has provided an
appropriate disclaimer in its audit
report, which is in accordance with
the Standards of Auditing as specified
by ICAI / NFRA, in case where the
listed entity/ its material subsidiary
has not provided information as
required by the auditor.

3. The listed entity / its material | NA No such event
subsidiary has obtained information during the
from the Auditor upon resignation, in review period
the format as specified in Annexure-

A in SEBI Circular

CIR/CFD/CMD1/114/2019 dated 18th
October, 2019.
*Observations /Remarks by PCS are mandatory if the Compliance status is provided as 'No’ or 'NA’

III. We hereby report that, during the Review Period the compliance status of the listed entity is
appended as below:

Sr. | Particulars Compliance Observations /

No. Status Remarks by PCS*
(Yes/No/NA)

1. Secretarial Standards: Yes -

The compliances of the listed entity
are in accordance with the
applicable Secretarial Standards
(SS) issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India
(ICSI), as notified by the Central
Government under Section 118 (10)
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of the Companies Act, 2013 and
mandatorily applicable.

2. Adoption and timely updation Yes
of the Policies:

e All applicable policies under
SEBI Regulations are adopted
with the approval of Board of
Directors/ Committees of the
listed entities.

e All the policies are in conformity
with SEBI Regulations and have
been reviewed & timely updated
as per the regulations/ circulars/
guidelines issued by SEBI.

3. Maintenance and disclosures Yes
on Website:

e The Listed entity is maintaining
a functional website.

e Timely dissemination of the
documents/ information under a
separate section on the website.

e Web-links provided in annual
corporate governance reports
under Regulation 27 (2) of
Listing Regulations are accurate
and specific which redirects to

None of the Directors of the listed
entity are disqualified under Section
164 of Companies Act, 2013 as
confirmed by the listed entity.

the relevant
document(s)/section of the
website.
4, Disqualification of Director: No After reviewing the website

of Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (MCA), It has been
confirmed that the Director
Identification Numbers
(DINs) of all directors are
currently active. Further, I
have checked the status of
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the Independent Directors
in the Independent
director's  databank to
confirm about their. Upon
review, it has been
observed that the
Independent Directors,
Nupur Bipinchandra Modi
and Gunjan Yogesh Pandya,
are not exempt from the
requirement of  Online
Proficiency Self-Assessment
test their IICA Annual
reports forms part of this
certificate. Furthermore,
they have not completed
the said test as specified by
The Indian Institute of
Corporate Affairs (IICA) till
the date issuance of this
certificate.

On the basis of the
Observation drawn the
Independent Directors are
not Eligible to be appointed
/ Reappointed as an
Independent Director as per
the criteria Set by IICA. I
certify that other than the
independent Director all
other Directors are qualified
to be appointed as the
directors of the Company
and none of the directors on
the board of the company
have been debarred or
disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as
directors of companies by
the Securities Exchange
Board of India/Ministry of
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Corporate Affairs or any
such statutory authority.

5. Details related to Subsidiaries
of listed entity have been
examined w.r.t.:

(a) Identification of material (a) NA
subsidiary companies. (b) NA

(b) Disclosure requirements of
material as well as other
subsidiaries.

The Listed entity does not
have any Material
Subsidiary.

6. Preservation of Documents: Yes

As per the confirmations given by
the listed entity, and on our test
check basis, listed entity s
preserving and maintaining records
as  prescribed under  SEBI
Regulations and disposal of records
is as per Policy of Preservation of
Documents and Archival policy

The listed entity has conducted
performance evaluation of the
Board, Independent Directors and
the Committees on an annual basis
as prescribed in SEBI Regulations.

prescribed under Listing
Regulations.
7. Performance Evaluation: Yes -

8. Related Party Transactions:

(@) The listed entity has (a) Yes
obtained prior approval of
Audit Committee for all
Related party transactions.

(b) In case no prior approval | (b) NA
obtained, the listed entity
shall provide  detailed
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reasons along with
confirmation whether the
transactions were
subsequently approved/
ratified/rejected by the Audit
committee.

Disclosure of events or
information:

The listed entity has provided all the
required disclosure(s) under
Regulation 30 along with Schedule
III of Listing Regulations within the
time limits prescribed thereunder.

Yes

10

Prohibition of Insider Trading:

The listed entity is in compliance
with Regulation 3 (5) & 3 (6) of SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015.

Yes

11,

Actions taken by SEBI or Stock
Exchange(s), if any:

No Actions have been taken against
the listed entity/ its promoters/
directors/subsidiaries either by SEBI
or by Stock Exchanges (including
under the Standard Operating
Procedures issued by SEBI through
various circulars) under SEBI
Regulations and circulars/
guidelines issued thereunder.

Yes

12.

Additional non-compliances, if
any:

No additional  non-compliance
observed for any SEBI regulation/
circular/ guidance note, etc.

NA

1. The Company had
not appointed one
Independent
Director till date
upon casual vacancy
due to sad Demise
of Harishkumar
Dhanjibhai Joshi
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with effect from
08th
December,2023.

. Other Independent

Directors, Nupur
Bipinchandra Modi
(DIN:  08261303)
and Gunjan Yogesh
Pandya (DIN:
08493307), are not
eligible to continue
in their positions in
the Company as
they have not
cleared the Online
Proficiency Self-
Assessment Test
and further their
profile has been

disabled from
Independent
Director’s Data

bank, this makes
them ineligible from
being re-appointed
as Independent
Directors of the
Company in
accordance with
statutory
requirements.

. Further listed Entity

Did not hold at least
one meeting in FY
2023-2024, without
the presence of non-
independent
directors and
members of the
management i.e.,
Only in presence of
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independent
directors.

Assumptions & Limitation of scope and Review:

1. Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and
information furnished, are the responsibilities of the management of the listed entity.

2. Our responsibility is to certify based upon our examination of relevant documents and
information. This is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial Records and Books
of Accounts of the listed entity.

4. This Report is solely for the intended purpose of compliance in terms of Regulation 24A (2)
of the Listing Regulations and is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the listed
entity nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the listed entity.

Place: Ahmedabad For, M/s GOVIL RATHI & ASSOCIATES
Date: 24/08/2024 (FRN: S2019GJ681500)
(Peer Review Certificate No. 2737/2022)
Practicing Company Secretary and
Registered Trademarks Agent

Sd/-

CS Govil Rathi

CP. NO. 22106 FCS No.13152
UDIN: F013152F001039760
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(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the

Annexure-D to the Board’s Report

FORM NO. AOC -2

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

including certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

Sr. No. | Particulars Details

a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of | NIL
relationship

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL

c) Duration of the | NIL
contracts/arrangements/transaction

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | NIL
transaction including the value, if any

e) Justification for entering into such contracts or | NIL
arrangements or transactions’

f) Date of approval by the Board NIL

g) Amount paid as advances, if any NIL

h) Date on which the special resolution was passed | NIL
in General meeting as required under first proviso
to section 188




Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis:

Sr. No. | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of | SALASAR LAMINATES
relationship LIMITED
b) Nature of contracts/ | SALES AND OTHER
arrangements/transaction INCOME OF RS. 144.61
LAKHS
c) Duration of the | 01/04/2023 to
contracts/arrangements/transaction 31/03/2024
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements | ENTITIES CONTROLLED BY
or transaction including the value, if any DIRECTORS/RELATIVE OF
DIRECTORS
e) Date of approval by the Board 12/02/2024
f) Amount paid as advances, if any 0
Sr. No. | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of | HERITAGE BOARD
relationship LIMITED
b) Nature of contracts/ | SALES AND OTHER
arrangements/transaction INCOME OF RS. 50.09
LAKHS
c) Duration of the | 01/04/2023 to
contracts/arrangements/transaction 31/03/2024
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements | ENTITIES CONTROLLED BY
or transaction including the value, if any DIRECTORS/RELATIVE OF
DIRECTORS
e) Date of approval by the Board 12/02/2024
f) Amount paid as advances, if any 0




Sr. No. | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of | HIDESIGN INNOVATION
relationship
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction | SALES AND OTHER
INCOME OF RS. 285.30
LAKHS
c) Duration of the | 01/04/2023 to
contracts/arrangements/transaction 31/03/2024
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements | ENTITIES CONTROLLED BY
or transaction including the value, if any DIRECTORS/RELATIVE OF
DIRECTORS
e) Date of approval by the Board 12/02/2024
f) Amount paid as advances, if any 0
Sr. No. | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of | MEGASOL GLOBAL SANTE)J
relationship
b) Nature of | SALES AND OTHER INCOME
contracts/arrangements/transaction OF RS. 0.93 LAKHS
c) Duration of the | 01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024
contracts/arrangements/transaction
d) Salient terms of the contracts or | ENTITIES CONTROLLED BY
arrangements or transaction including the | DIRECTORS/RELATIVE OF
value, if any DIRECTORS
e) Date of approval by the Board 12/02/2024
f) Amount paid as advances, if any 0




Sr. No. | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of | HERITAGE LAMINATES
relationship PRIVATE LIMITED
b) Nature of | SALES AND OTHER INCOME
contracts/arrangements/transaction OF RS. 607.58 LAKHS
c) Duration of the | 01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024
contracts/arrangements/transaction
d) Salient terms of the contracts or | ENTITIES CONTROLLED BY
arrangements or transaction including the | DIRECTORS/RELATIVE OF
value, if any DIRECTORS
e) Date of approval by the Board 12/02/2024
f) Amount paid as advances, if any 0
Sr. No. | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of | SHRADDHA V. AGARWAL
relationship
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction REMUNERATION AND
PERQUISITES OF RS. 48
LAKHS
c) Duration of the | 01/04/2023 to
contracts/arrangements/transaction 31/03/2024
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements | RELATIVES AND  KEY
or transaction including the value, if any MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL
e) Date of approval by the Board 12/02/2024
f) Amount paid as advances, if any 0




Sr. No. [ Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of | VISHALV. AGARWAL
relationship
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction RENT, REIMBURSEMENT
OF, MUNICPAL TAX AND
OTHER CHARGES OF RS.
2.43 LAKHS
c) Duration of the | 01/04/2023 to
contracts/arrangements/transaction 31/03/2024
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements | KEY MANAGEMENT
or transaction including the value, if any PERSONNEL
e) Date of approval by the Board 12/02/2024
f) Amount paid as advances, if any 0
Sr. No. | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of | VIKAS V. AGARWAL
relationship
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction RENT, REIMBURSEMENT
OF MUNICPAL TAX AND
OTHER CHARGES OF RS.
2.43 LAKHS
c) Duration of the | 01/04/2023 to
contracts/arrangements/transaction 31/03/2024
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements | KEY MANAGEMENT
or transaction including the value, if any PERSONNEL
e) Date of approval by the Board 12/02/2024
f) Amount paid as advances, if any 0




Sr. No. | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of | V.K.A  FINANCE AND
relationship INVESTMENT COMPANY
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction | REIMBURSEMENT OF
RENT, MUNICPAL TAX
AND OTHER CHARGES OF
RS. 3.60 LAKHS
c) Duration of the | 01/04/2023 to
contracts/arrangements/transaction 31/03/2024
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements | ENTITIES CONTROLLED BY
or transaction including the value, if any DIRECTORS/RELATIVE OF
DIRECTORS
e) Date of approval by the Board 12/02/2024
f) Amount paid as advances, if any 0
Sr. No. | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of | SALASAR LAMINATES
relationship LIMITED
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction | PURCHASES AND STORE
CONSUMPTION OF RS.
185.99 LAKHS
c) Duration of the | 01/04/2023 to
contracts/arrangements/transaction 31/03/2024
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements | ENTITIES CONTROLLED BY
or transaction including the value, if any DIRECTORS/RELATIVE OF
DIRECTORS
e) Date of approval by the Board 12/02/2024
f) Amount paid as advances, if any 0




Sr. No. | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of | HERITAGE BOARD
relationship LIMITED
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction | PURCHASES AND STORE
CONSUMPTION OF RS.
10.27 LAKHS
c) Duration of the | 01/04/2023 to
contracts/arrangements/transaction 31/03/2024
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements | ENTITIES CONTROLLED BY
or transaction including the value, if any DIRECTORS/RELATIVE OF
DIRECTORS
e) Date of approval by the Board 12/02/2024
f) Amount paid as advances, if any 0
Sr. No. | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of | Hidesign Innovation
relationship
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction | PURCHASES AND STORE
CONSUMPTION OF RS.
30.91 LAKHS
c) Duration of the | 01/04/2023 to
contracts/arrangements/transaction 31/03/2024
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements | ENTITIES CONTROLLED BY
or transaction including the value, if any DIRECTORS/RELATIVE OF
DIRECTORS
e) Date of approval by the Board 12/02/2024
f) Amount paid as advances, if any 0




Sr. No. | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of | MEGASOL GLOBAL SANTEJ
relationship
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction | PURCHASES AND STORE
CONSUMPTION OF RS.
17.35 LAKHS
c) Duration of the | 01/04/2023 to
contracts/arrangements/transaction 31/03/2024
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements | ENTITIES CONTROLLED BY
or transaction including the value, if any DIRECTORS/RELATIVE OF
DIRECTORS
e) Date of approval by the Board 12/02/2024
f) Amount paid as advances, if any 0
Sr. No. | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of | KRISHNA DECOR PVT. LTD.
relationship
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction | REIMBURSEMENT OF
RENT, MUNICIPAL TAX
AND OTHER CHARGES
1.48 LAKHS
c) Duration of the | 01/04/2023 to
contracts/arrangements/transaction 31/03/2024
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements | ENTITIES CONTROLLED BY
or transaction including the value, if any DIRECTORS/RELATIVE OF
DIRECTORS
e) Date of approval by the Board 12/02/2024
f) Amount paid as advances, if any 0




Sr. No. | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of | HERITAGE INDUSTRIES
relationship PRIVATE LIMITED
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction | REIMBURSEMENT OF
RENT, MUNICIPAL TAX
AND OTHER CHARGES
1.08 LAKHS
c) Duration of the | 01/04/2023 to
contracts/arrangements/transaction 31/03/2024
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements | ENTITIES CONTROLLED BY
or transaction including the value, if any DIRECTORS/RELATIVE OF
DIRECTORS
e) Date of approval by the Board 12/02/2024
f) Amount paid as advances, if any 0

Date: 24.08.2024

Place: Ahmedabad

Vishal Vijay Bhai Agarwal
Director & CFO

DIN: 01763739

For & on behalf of the Board Of Directors

DECO MICA LIMITED

Vijay Kumar Dindayal Agarwal
Managing Director

DIN: 01869337




DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT

| hereby confirm that the company has obtained from all the members of the Board and employees
at senior management level, affirmation that they have complied with the code of conduct for Board

of Directors and senior management level employees.

Date: 24.08.2024

Place: Ahmedabad

Vishal Vijay Bhai Agarwal
Director & CFO

DIN: 01763739

For & on behalf of the Board Of Directors

DECO MICA LIMITED

Vijay Kumar Dindayal Agarwal
Managing Director

DIN: 01869337



a)

b)

<)

d)

e)

ANNEXURE-E

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Outlook

The company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of Laminates Sheets. It has built
up a reputation as a manufacturer of high quality products and is known for its ethical
dealings in business. There is a diverse selection of colours in laminates. The company
supplies its products to leading Manufacturers of Laminates companies of India. The
products are also being exported to various countries across the world.

Opportunities and Threats
The Company faces the Competition from the other players in the market and barring
unforeseen circumstances. The management is hopeful to conquer such threats.

Due to opening of the market, there is ample opportunities in the domestic as well as
international markets.

COMPETITION:

Competition in the domestic as well as international market has intensified and forced the
players to adopt aggressive marketing strategy and promotional campaigns to capture
and protect their market shares. The Company has the plans to penetrate better in to
world market, especially through the customer retention and business development in
the regions which have not been tapped.

Risks and Concerns:

Risk is inherent in every business and Laminate Industry is no exception. The Laminate
industry displays strong commodity characteristics and is subject to cyclical price
movements in business cycles. The Company is exposed to risks from overall market
fluctuations, import and export of laminates, changes in government policy, Country laws,
taxation, man-made disasters, political risks and Currency risk arises from exposure to
foreign currencies and the volatility associated therewith, etc. which affects the financial
performance of the industry as a whole and also of the Company.

Internal Control System and its Adequacy:

The Company has proper and adequate system of internal controls commensurate with
its size and nature of operations to provide reasonable assurance that all assets are
safeguarded, transactions are authorized, recorded and reported properly and applicable
statues are duly complied with. The Company has constituted an Audit Committee to
monitor the adequacy and efficacy of internal control systems.

The adequacy of these compliances and their effectiveness is subject to statutory audit
and the same has been adequately reported by the Auditors in their report as required
under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company also has as
Internal Audit System.



f)

g)

h)

Material Developments in HRD and industrial Relations Front:

Your Directors recognize the value of employees as valuable assets. Developing,
motivating, and retaining talented employees is a key responsibility and policy of the
Company’s Management.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION:

The people are the greatest asset, and their safety, health, and well-being is of utmost
importance to us. The Company endeavours to provide a safe, conducive and productive
work environment by undertaking various measures at its manufacturing facilities to
ensure no injury or accident. Several other measures have been taken by the Company to
ensure health and safety of its employees. The Company’s ethos of environment
protection by development of environment friendly processes for effective usage of
resources is based on the belief that nature is a precious endowment to humanity.

CFO/CFO CERTIFICATION:
Mr. Vijay Kumar Dindayal Agarwal (DIN: 01869337) Managing Director and Mr. Vishal

Vijay Bhai Agarwal, CFO have given certificate to the board as contemplated in SEBI Listing
Regulations.

Date: 24.08.2024 For & on behalf of the Board Of Directors

Place: Ahmedabad DECO MICA LIMITED

Sd/- Sd/-
Vishal Vijay Bhai Agarwal Vijay Kumar Dindayal Agarwal

Director & CFO Managing Director

DIN: 01763739 DIN: 01869337



ANNEXURE-F

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO REGULATION 17(8) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS & DISCLOSURE

REQUIREMENTS), REGULATIONS, 2015 FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

We, Mr. Vijay Kumar Dindayal Agarwal (DIN: 01869337) Managing Director and Mr. Vishal Vijay Bhai
Agarwal, CFO have reviewed the Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended
March 31, 2024 and we hereby certify and confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief the
following:

a)

b)

The Financial Statements, Cash Flow statement and the Directors' Report; do not contain any
materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be
misleading.

The Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement together present a true and fair view
of the affairs of the Company and are in compliance with existing accounting standards,
applicable laws and regulations

There are no transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of Company’s Code of Conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for Financial
Reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of these internal control systems of the
Company pertaining to financial reporting. Deficiencies noted, if any, are discussed with the
Auditors and the Audit Committee, as appropriate, and suitable actions are taken to rectify
the same.

There have been no significant changes in the above-mentioned internal controls over
financial reporting during the relevant period.

That there have been no significant changes in the accounting policies during the relevant
period.

We have not noticed any significant fraud particularly those involving the, management or an
employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over Financial
Reporting.

Date: 24.08.2024 For, DECO MICA LIMITED

Place: Ahmedabad

Sd/- Sd/-
Vishal Vijay Bhai Agarwal Vijay Kumar Dindayal Agarwal
Director & CFO Managing Director

DIN: 01763739 DIN: 01869337



A.

ANNEXURE-G

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Your company has always adapted the highest ethical standards in business and good
Corporate Governance practices so that positive aspects of a family-run business are
combined with the assurance that investors' interests would be recognized and
addressed.

THE SAILENT FEATURES OF COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ARE:

1) Compliance with all Statutory laws as also other rules / requirements regarding
directors / related person remuneration, disclosures, etc.

2) Clear separation of company owned resources and personal accounts

3) Reliance on structures and processes that are recognized as good and moral
corporate practices rather on family persons, making it a truly professionally
managed Company.

4) Full transparency in functioning and accountability of management to the Board.

5) Internal controls and Risk management under supervision of Independent
Directors With transparent and honest administrative practices, the management
of your company believes it can further increase investors trust and work
responsibly to maximize all shareholders value.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE AND ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES:
Company's governance structure comprises of Board of Directors, Committees of the
Board and the Management.

Board of Directors

Composition:

As on date, the Board of Directors of your Company comprises Five (5) Directors out of
which Two (2) are Non-Executive Independent Directors. The composition of the Board is
NOT in conformity with Regulation 27 and suitable applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (hereinafter referred to as SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015).The details of the Directors being appointed / re-appointed on
retirement by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, as required pursuant to
Regulation 27 and suitable applicable provisions of SEBI (LODR) guidelines, are mentioned
in the Notice to the Annual General Meeting, forming part of the Report.

There is change in composition of Board of Directors and committees of Deco Mica
Limited due to unexpected death of Mr. Harishkumar Joshi (DIN: 01871634) due to his
unexpected death on 08.12.2023.

Details of the BOD composition and category of directors for the FY 2023-24



Name of Director Position Category Date of cessation
Vijay Kumar Dindayal | Managing Executive NA
Agarwal Director
Vishal Vijay Bhai | Director Non-Executive NA
Agarwal Director
Vikas Vijay Bhai Agarwal | Director Non-Executive NA
Director
Nupur Bipinchandra | Independent Non-Executive NA
Modi Director Director
Gunjan Yogesh Pandya Independent Non-Executive NA
Director Director
Harishkumar Joshi Independent Non-Executive 08/12/2023
Director Director (Due to his Death)

Number of Board Meetings:

During the year under review, 9 (Nine) meetings of the Board of Directors were held as on

31st March, 2024.

Sr. No.

Date of Meeting

Board Strength

No. of Directors Present

30.05.2023 6

(e}

29.06.2023

11.08.2023

07.10.2023

09.11.2023

11.12.2023

12.02.2024

22.02.2024

WO NI U R W IN -
nlnlunlunlololo|lo
wlwlalulolo|lo|lo

28.03.2024

The Board meets at least once in a quarter to review the quarterly financial results and
operations of the Company. In addition to the above, the Board also meets as and when
necessary to address specific issues relating to the business.

Attendance of each Director at the meeting of the Board of Directors held during the F.Y.
2023-24 and the last General Meeting:

Name of Director Attendance at
Number of Board | Whether attended last
Meetings attended | AGM held on Thursday,
during F.Y. 2023-24 28 September, 2023

Mr. Vijaykumar Agarwal 9 Yes

Mr. Vishal Agarwal 7 Yes

Mr. Vikas Agarwal 7 Yes

Mr. Gunjan Pandya 8 Yes




Ms. Nupur Modi 9 Yes

Mr. HarishKumar Joshi 5 yes

No. of directorship, membership and Chairmanship held by the Directors in the
Board and Committees of other companies & Details of Directorship held by the
Directors in other Listed Companies as on March 31, 2024:

No. of directorship, membership and Chairmanship held by the Directors in other
Companies:

Name of | Category of Directorship on Board and Membership/
Director Director Chairmanship of Board Committees in other
companies as on March 31, 2024
Director Committee Committee
Member Chairman
Mr. Managing As per | NIL NIL
Vijaykumar Director Annexure-A
Agarwal
Mr. Vishal | Director and | As per NIL NIL
Agarwal CFO Annexure-B
Mr. Vikas | Director As per NIL NIL
Agarwal Annexure-C
Mr. Independent | As per NIL NIL
Harishkumar | Director Annexure-D
Joshi
Mr. Gunjan | Independent | As per NIL NIL
Pandya Director Annexure-E
Ms.  Nupur | Independent | NIL NIL NIL
Modi Director

Chairmanship/ Membership of Board Committees include Chairmanship/ Membership of
Audit Committee and Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee as per the Regulation
26(1)(b) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Details of no. of membership given above include the
details of Chairmanship held by the Directors.

Directorship, Membership and Chairmanship held by the Directors of the Company, in
other companies are within the limits prescribed. None of the Independent Directors of
the Company is serving on the Board of more than seven listed companies, as an
Independent Director. Further, Independent Directors of the Company, serving as Whole-



time Director in any other listed company are not holding the position of Independent
Director in more than three listed companies, as prescribed under Regulation 17A of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

Details of Directorship held by the Directors in other Listed Companies as on March 31,
2024:

Name of the | Name of the Category of Position
Director Company Directorship

Mr.  Vijaykumar | NIL NIL NIL
Agarwal

Mr. Vishal | NIL NIL NIL
Agarwal

Mr. Vikas Agarwal | NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Harishkumar | NIL NIL NIL
Joshi

Mr. Gunjan | NIL NIL NIL
Pandya

Ms. Nupur Modi | NIL NIL NIL

Number and dates of meeting of Board of Directors
During the year under review, the Board of Directors met 9 (Nine ) times as mentioned
below:

No. of Meetings held Date of Meetings

9 (Nine) 30.05.2023, 29.06.2023, 11.08.2023, 07.10.2023,

09.11.2023, 11.12.2023, 12.02.2024, 22.02.2024,

28.03.2024

The maximum interval between any two meetings were not more than 120 days and
requisite quorum was present at the respective Board Meetings. The Board Meetings of
the Company are generally held at the Registered Office of the Company and the Board
agendas are prepared and circulated on time to all the Board members.

All statutory and other matters of significant importance including information as
mentioned in Part A of Schedule Il to the Listing Regulations are tabled before the Board,
to enable it to take appropriate decisions in both strategic and regulatory matters. The
Board reviews compliances of all laws, rules and regulations on a quarterly basis. At the
Board Meeting, members have full freedom to express their opinion and decisions are
taken after detailed deliberations.



Disclosure of Relationship between Directors Inter-se

Mr. Vijay Agarwal, Managing Director of the Company is the father of the following Two
Directors:

1. Mr. Vishal Agarwal 2. Mr. Vikas Agarwal.

Mr. Vishal Agarwal and Mr. Vikas Agarwal, Director and CFO and Additional Director of
the Company are brothers.

Independent Directors are not related to the above mentioned three Directors.

Number of shares and convertible instruments held by Non-Executive Directors:

None of the Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company is holding shares or
convertible instruments in the Company. The Company has not issued any convertible
instruments.

Details of familiarization program imparted to Independent Directors and web link:
The Company has not conducted any programmes during the F.Y. 2023-24. During the
Financial Year under review, the Company had conducted only one quick session of 10 to
15 minutes on overall performance of the Company, strategic initiatives and regulatory
updates.

Confirmation that the Independent Directors fulfils the condition and are independent
in the management:

Pursuant to subsection (6) and (7) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 has not been
received any confirmation and there has been change in the circumstances affecting their
status as Independent Directors of the Company, As both the Independent Directors,
Nupur Bipinchandra Modi (DIN: 08261303) and Gunjan Yogesh Pandya (DIN: 08493307),
have not cleared the Online Proficiency Self-Assessment Test within the stipulated
timeframe specified by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (1ICA), and are not exempt
from giving the examination, as on the current date their failure to attempt the Online
Proficiency Self-Assessment Test makes them ineligible to hold the position of
Independent Director.

Detailed reason of the resignation of the Independent Director before the expiry of
his/her tenure along with confirmation that there are no material reasons other than
those provided:

During the year under review, no Independent Director has resigned from the Board of
the Company.

Committees of the Board:

Currently, there are Three (3) Committees of the Board, namely: Audit Committee,
Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholder Relationship committee. The
Board decides the terms of reference for these Committees. The minutes / report of the
meetings of the Committees are placed before the Board for information and action
thereon, if any. The details as to the composition, terms of reference, number of meetings
etc., of these Committees are provided hereunder:




There is change in composition of Board of Directors and committees of Deco Mica
Limited due to unexpected death of Mr. Harishkumar Joshi (DIN: 01871634) due to his
unexpected death on 08.12.2023.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Committee comprises of Four Directors and out of which three are Non-Executive
Independent Director. There was Change in Composition of Audit Committee during the
financial year 2023-24.

The Composition of Audit Committee from April, 2023 to 8" December, 2023 are as
follows:

Sr. No. Name Designation
1. Mr. Vijaykumar D. Agarwal Chairman
2 Mr. Harishkumar D. Joshi Member
3. Mr. Gunjan Y. Pandya Member
4 Miss Nupur B. Modi Member

Due to unexpected death of Mr. Harishkumar Joshi (DIN: 01871634), There was change in
Composition of the Audit Committee w.e.f. 12.02.2024 which is as follows:

Sr. No. Name Designation
1. Mr. Gunjan Y. Pandya Chairman
2. Mr. Vikas v. Agarwal Member
3. Mr. Vijaykumar D. Agarwal Member
4 Miss Nupur B. Modi Member

The constitution of Audit Committee meets with the requirements of Corporate
Governance guidelines as well as the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Regulation 18 and suitable applicable provisions of SEBI (LODR) guidelines. Terms of
reference of appointment of Audit Committee are as under,

The Committee's terms of reference includes
Powers of the Audit Committee:

> It shall have authority to investigate into any matter in relation to the items
specified in Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 or referred to it by the Board
and for this purpose, shall have full access to information contained in the records
of the Company and external professional advice, if necessary
To investigate any activity within its terms of reference
To seek information from any employee
To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.
To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers
necessary

YV VYV

Responsibilities of the Audit Committee:




Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its
financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient
and credible.

Recommending the appointment and removal of external auditor, fixation of
audit fees and also approval for payment for any other services.

Reviewing with management the annual financial statements before submission
to the Board.

Reviewing the findings if any internal investigations by the internal auditors into
matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal
control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.
Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function and discussing with the internal
auditors on the significant findings and further course adopted.

Audit Committee met four times during the F.Y. 2023-24.

Sr. No. | Date of Meeting Committee Strength No. of Members Present
30.05.2023 4 4
11.08.2023 4 4
09.11.2023 4 4
12.02.2024 4 3




NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

Composition and terms of reference:

In Compliance of section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 the Nomination and Remuneration
Committees comprise of three directors out of which all three directors are Non-
Executive Independent directors and a Non-Executive Independent director act as the
Chairman of the Committee till 8" December, 2023.

The Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee from April, 2023 to 8"
December, 2023 are as follows:

Sr. No. Name Designation
1. Mr. Harishkumar D. Joshi Chairman
2. Mr. Gunjan Y. Pandya Member
3. Miss Nupur B. Modi Member

Due to unexpected death of Mr. Harishkumar Joshi (DIN: 01871634) , There was change
in Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee w.e.f. 12.02.2024 which
is as follows:

Sr. No. Name Designation
1. Mr. Gunjan Y. Pandya Chairman
2. Mr. Vikas Agarwal Member
3. Miss Nupur B. Modi Member

The Committee's terms of reference includes;

» Reviewing and recommending to the Board the salary, commission, other benefits,
service agreements and employment conditions of the Whole-time and the Managing
Director and

» Approve the selection, appointment and remuneration of relatives of Directors for
holding an office of profit pursuant to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

Nomination and Remuneration Committee met two times during the F.Y. 2023-24.

Sr. No. Date of Meeting Committee Strength No. of Members Present
1. 20.04.2023 3 3
2. 11.12.2023 2 2
3. 12.02.2024 3 3

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

Composition and terms of reference:

As per sub-section (5) section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 the Share transfers committee
has been merged in to Stakeholder Relationship Committee.




The Composition of Stakeholder Relationship Committee from April, 2023 to 8th
December, 2023 are as follows:

Sr. No. Name Designation
1 Mr. Harishkumar D. Joshi Chairman
2 Mr. Gunjan Y. Pandya Member
3 Miss Nupur B. Modi Member

Due to unexpected death of Mr. Harishkumar Joshi (DIN: 01871634) , There was change
in Composition of the stakeholder relationship committee w.e.f. 12.02.2024 which is as
follows:

Sr. No. Name Designation
1. Mr. Gunjan Y. Pandya Chairman
2. Mr. Vikas Agarwal Member
3. Miss Nupur B. Modi Member

The terms of reference of the Committee include, inter-alia, the following:

» To specially look into queries and complaints received from the shareholders of the
Company,

» Tooversee the performance of the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company, and

» To recommend measures for overall improvement in the quality of services to the

investors,

To effect transfer of shares;

To effect transmission or deletion of shares;

To issue duplicate share certificates, issue of certificate on receipt of requests for

rematerialization, consolidation or split of share certificates;

» To approve the register of members as on the record date(s) and/ or book closure
dates for receiving dividends and other corporate benefits:

Y V V

INVESTOR COMPLAINTS
1 Pending at the beginning of the year Nil
2 Received during the year Nil
3 Disposed of during the year Nil
4 Remaining unresolved at the end of the year Nil

Stakeholder Relationship Committee met six times during the F.Y. 2023-24.

Sr. No. Date of Meeting Committee Strength | No. of Members Present
1. 12.04.2023 3 3
2. 11.07.2023 3 3
3. 04.10.2023 3 3
4. 09.01.2024 2 2
5. 31.01.2024 2 2
6. 12.02.2024 3 3




RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Company does not fall under any of criteria as defined under Regulation 21(5) of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015. Hence, forming risk management committee is not applicable
to the Company during the financial year under review.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

a. Details of pecuniary relationship or transaction of Non-Executive Directors with
the Company:
There are no pecuniary relationship or transactions of the Non-Executive
Directors vis-a-vis the listed Company during the year under review other than
sitting fees.
Non-executive Independent Directors have waived their rights of availing sitting
fees for attending meetings of Board and Sub-Committees during the year under
review.
b. Details of Remuneration paid to the Directors during Financial Year 2023-24
The following is the details of remuneration and sitting fee paid to the Directors
of the Company during the Financial Year under review:
(Amount in Lakhs)
Name Salary | Retirement | Perquisites | Commission | Sitting | Total
Benefits Fees
Vikas 0.30 - - - - 0.30
Agarwal
Vishal 78.85 | - - - - 78.85
Agarwal
Vijaykumar | 74.53 | - - - - 74.53
Agarwal

1. GENERAL MEETINGS:

The venue and the time of the last three Annual General Meetings of the Company are

as follows:
Year Location Meeting Date Time No. of Special
Resolution set
Out at the AGM
2022-23 | Through Video 28t September, 12:30 p.m. 0
Conference 2023
(Ahmedabad)
2021-22 | Through Video | 29%" September, 12.00 p.m. 0
Conference 2022
(Ahmedabad)




2020-21 | Through Video 29 September, 11.00 a.m. 2

Conference 2021
(Ahmedabad)

There was no Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) held during the year ended March
31, 2024.

All special resolutions set out in the notices for the Annual General Meetings were passed
by the shareholders at the respective meetings with requisite majority.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

a)

b)

c)

d)

Quarterly Results:

The Company regularly intimates information like quarterly/half yearly/annual financial
results from time to time. The financial results and other official news releases are also
placed on the website of the Company at https://www.decomicaltd.com and have also
been communicated to the Stock Exchange on which Equity shares of the Company
are listed. Notices, Annual Report, Quarterly Shareholding Pattern and other
Communication are also available on the website

Newspaper wherein results are normally published:

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results are normally published in The
Financial Express-English and Gujarati

Details of website and display of official news releases and presentation made to
the institutional investors or to analysts:

The official news releases are also placed on the Company’s website i.e.
https://www.decomicaltd.com which contains the comprehensive information about
the Company, its business, Directors, Committees of the Board, terms and conditions
of appointment/reappointment of Independent Directors, information pertaining to
the Financial Results, Shareholding Pattern, Corporate Governance, Annual Reports,
Listing Information, etc. is available and can be downloaded. There were no
presentations made to the institutional investor analysts during the year.

Investors’ correspondence:

For transfer / dematerialization of shares, Change of Address, Change in Status of
investors, payment of dividend on shares and other query relating to the shares of the
Company:

MCS Share Transfer Agent Ltd,

101, Shatdal Complex, 1 Floor,

Opp Bata Show Room, Ashram Road,
Ahmedabad-380009, Gujarat, India.



DISCLOSURES:

Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions:

Your Company has not entered into any transaction of a material nature except
transactions with related parties which are furnished under Notes to the Financial
Statements as stipulated under Indian Accounting Standard 24 (AS-24), with the
Promoters, Directors or the Management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc. All
transactions were carried out on an arms-length basis and were not prejudicial to the
interest of the Company.

Disclosures on non-compliances by the Company

Your Company has complied with all the requirements of the Stock Exchange(s) and the
Securities Exchange Board of India on matters related to Capital Markets or any other
matter, as may be applicable from time to time. There were no penalties imposed or
strictures passed against the Company by the statutory authorities in this regard.

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment:

Your Company follows Accounting Standards prescribed by the Companies Accounting
Standard Rules, 2015 and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. In preparation
of financial statements, the Company has not adopted a treatment different from that
prescribed in the Accounting Standards.

Details of compliance with mandatory and non-mandatory requirements of Regulation
27 and suitable applicable provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 of the Listing
Agreement:

As already mentioned in the Director's Report, the provisions of the Regulation 27 and
suitable applicable provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, do not apply to the
Company for the F.Y. 2023-24. Upon the Financial statement for the financial year ended
31 March, 2024. The company come to know that the now the company not falling under
regulation 15 for claiming the exemption of regulation 27 and the company is complying
the same.

Vigil mechanism
The company has established vigil mechanism for directors, employees and other

stakeholders to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or
violation of the company's code of conduct or the ethical policy.

The company has provided opportunities to encourage employees to become whistle
blowers. It has also ensured a mechanism within the same framework to protect them
from any kind of harm. It is hereby affirmed that no personnel has been denies access to
the audit committee.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

1) AGM for the F.Y | 28" September, 2023 at 12.30 p.m. through Video
2023-24 Conference

2) Date of Book | 22.09.2023 to 28.09.2023 (both days inclusive)
closure




3) Listing on Stock
Exchanges

BSE ( Scrip Code: 531227)

4) Share Registrar

MCS Share Transfer Private Limited; 101,Shatdal Complex,
opp. Bata Show Room, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad- 380009

5) Share Transfer
System

During the year under review, equity of Shares of the
Company are in demat form. Hence Our Company does not
need to follow the SEBI Press Release No. 12/2019 dated
March 27, 2019, effective from April 1, 2019 for
discontinuing the transfer of shares in physical mode. In
terms of Regulation 40(1) of Listing Regulations, as
amended from time to time, transfer, transmission and
transposition of securities shall be effected only in
dematerialized form. A Company Secretary in Practice
carries out a Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit to
reconcile the total admitted capital with NSDL and CDSL
and the total issued and listed capital. The audit confirms
that the total issued/ paid up capital is in agreement with
the aggregate of the total number of shares in physical form
and the total number of shares in dematerialized form

6) De-materlisation
of Shares

As on 31.03.2024 approx. 87.83% shares of the Company
were held in dematerialization form.




7)

Market Data:
High, Low during
each month in
last financial
year 2023-24

Month High (Rs.) | Low (Rs.) Volume (Nos)
Apr-23 65.99 47.10 9410
May- 23 70.00 51.25 26,389
June- 23 90.00 55.60 59,532
July- 23 79.90 61.76 12,274
Aug- 23 76.08 57.50 23,912
Sept- 23 72.13 62.72 3329
Oct- 23 86.70 65.29 18,285
Nov- 23 81.56 66.64 8411
Dec- 23 75.60 63.50 13,337
Jan-24 76.30 64.00 14,779
Feb- 24 90.71 69.42 54,877
Mar- 24 77.65 57.40 16,356

8)

Factory
Location:

Plot No. 1195, Rajpur Village, Chatral Mehsana Highway,
Kadi (Taluka), Mehsana- 382715

Distribution of shareholdings as on 31° March, 2024

No. of Equity | No. of % of Number of % of
Shares held Shareholders Shareholders Shares Shareholding
Held

01-500 1050 80.6452 207353 4.9370
5001-1000 109 8.3717 89316 2.1266
1001-2000 58 4.4547 88626 2.1101
2001-3000 16 1.2289 41291 0.9831
3001-4000 14 1.0753 49596 1.1809
4001-5000 8 0.6144 35300 0.8405
5001-10000 10 0.7680 71812 1.7098




10001 -50000 | 23 1.7665 670806 15.9716
50001- 8 0.6144 534600 12.7286
100000

Above 100000 | 6 0.4608 2411300 57.4119
Total 1302 100 4200000 100

Shareholding pattern as on 31st March, 2024:

Sr. No. | Category No. of Shares held % of Shareholding

1 Promoter & Promoter Group 29,41,900 70.05%

2 Mutual Funds 0 0%

3 Banks, Fls, Insurance 27,100 0.65%
Companies

4 Private Bodies Corporate 25304 0.60%

5 Market Maker 0 0%

6 Clearing Members 0 0%

7 Non-Resident Indians 137 0.00%

8 Indian Public 1160353 27.63%

9 HUF 45206 1.08%
Total 42,00,000 100%

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity:

The International Securities ldentification Number (ISIN) allotted to the Company is
INESO7E01010. The Equity Shares of the Company are compulsorily traded in dematerialized
form as mandated by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Company has
connectivity with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) as well as the Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for Demat facility. As on March 31, 2024, 87.83%
Equity Shares of the Company are held in dematerialized form. The breakup of the equity

shares held in dematerialized and physical form as on March 31, 2024 are as follows:

Particulars No. of shares Total (In %)
No. of Shares held in 3494365 83.20%
dematerialized form in NSDL

No. of Shares held in 194635 4.63%
dematerialized form in CDSL

Physical Shares 511000 12.17%
Total 4200000 100%




Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and
likely impact on equity:

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or any convertible instruments in the
past and hence as on 31st March, 2023, the Company does not have any outstanding GDRs/
ADRs/ Warrants or any convertible instruments.

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities:

The Company does not deal in commodities and hence the disclosure pursuant to SEBI Circular
dated November 15, 2018 is not required to be given. Further please refer to Management
Discussion and Analysis Report for the same.

list of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions thereto during the
relevant financial year, for all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit
programme or any scheme or proposal of the listed entity involving mobilization of funds,
whether in India or abroad:

The Company has not obtained any credit rating on Debt Instruments or Fixed Deposit
Programme or any scheme or proposal involving mobilization of funds in FY 2023-24 since it
does not have any Debt Instruments or Fixed Deposit Programme or any scheme or proposal
involving mobilization of funds. Further, Company has not obtained any Credit rating for other
purposes.

IMPORTANT COMMUNICATION TO THE SHAREHOLDERS:

GREEN INITIATIVE IN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Pursuant to Circular No. 17/2011 dated 21 April, 2011 and Circular No. 18/2011 dated 29 April,
2011, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has launched Green Initiative in Corporate
Governance whereby the companies are allowed to send notices, documents and other
communication to the shareholders in electronic mode. In view of the above circulars issued
by MCA, your Company proposes to send documents like the Notice convening the general
meetings, Financial statements, Directors' Report, Auditors' Report, etc. to the email address
provided by you to your Depository Participant (DP).Your Company encourages its
shareholders to support the Green Initiative by registering their email addresses with their
respective depositories/ Company's Registrar and Transfer Agent and intimate changes in the
email address from time to time.



Annexure-A

Mr. Vijaykumar Agarwal (DIN: 01869337) is Director in the following Companies:

Sr. | Name of Companies Corporate identification | Date of

No. Number (CIN) appointment at the
Current
Designation

1 SALASAR LAMINATES LIMITED | U20212GJ2002PLC040412 30/09/2009

2 HERITAGE BOARD LIMITED U20290GJ2004PLC045171 30/09/2011

3 SALASAR AGROPANEL PRIVATE | U20232GJ2009PTC058284 28/09/2015

LIMITED
Annexure- B

Mr. Vishal Agarwal (DIN: 01763739) is Director in the following Companies:

Sr. | Name of Companies Corporate identification | Date of
No. Number (CIN) appointment at
the Current
Designation
1 HERITAGE LAMINATES PRIVATE | U20100GJ2022PTC136000 | 07/10/2022
LIMITED
2 SALASAR LAMINATES LIMITED U20212GJ2002PLC0O40412 23/12/2008
3 HERITAGE PLY BOARD PRIVATE | U20219GJ2007PTC050348 | 28/03/2007
LIMITED
4 HERITAGE INDUSTRIES PRIVATE | U20219GJ2007PTC052362 | 17/12/2007
LIMITED
5 HERITAGE BOARD LIMITED U20290GJ2004PLC0O45171 17/12/2004
6 SHREE SALASAR DECOR PRIVATE | U74999GJ2020PTC116220 | 05/09/2020
LIMITED
7 KRISHNA DECOR PVT LTD U02002WB1999PTC088657 | 24/09/2014
8 KAVERY LAMINART PRIVATE | U02001WB1997PTC082490 | 24/09/2014
LIMITED




Annexure-C
Mr. Vikas Agarwal (DIN: 01763769) is Director in the following Companies:

Sr. No. | Name of Companies Corporate identification | Date of
Number (CIN) appointment  at
the Current
Designation
1 HERITAGE LAMINATES | U20100GJ2022PTC136000 | 07/10/2022
PRIVATE LIMITED
2 HERITAGE PLY BOARD | U20219GJ2007PTC050348 | 28/03/2007
PRIVATE LIMITED
3 HERITAGE INDUSTRIES | U20219GJ2007PTC052362 | 17/12/2007
PRIVATE LIMITED
4 SALASAR AGROPANEL | U20232GJ2009PTC058284 | 08/10/2009
PRIVATE LIMITED
5 HERITAGE BOARD LIMITED U20290GJ2004PLC045171 | 17/12/2004
6 SHREESALASAR AGROBOARD | U20299GJ2020PTC118179 | 11/11/2020
PRIVATE LIMITED
7 INDIAN LAMINATE | U74999GJ2017NPL098931 | 01/09/2017
MANUFACTURERS
ASSOCIATION
8 SHREE SALASAR DECOR | U74999GJ2020PTC116220 | 05/09/2020
PRIVATE LIMITED
9 SALASAR LAMINATES LIMITED | U20212GJ2002PLC040412 | 30/01/2002
Annexure-D
Mr. Harishkumar Joshi *(DIN: 01871634) is a Director in the following Companies:
Sr. Name of | Corporate identification | Date of | Date of
No. Companies Number (CIN) appointment at | Cessation
the Current
Designation
1 SHRI PRAGYA | U85300MH2020NPL346171 | 16/09/2020 08/12/2023
MAHA AVATAR
BABAJI AVATARAN
PITH FOUNDATION

* There is unexpected demise of Mr. Harishkumar Joshi (DIN: 01871634) i.e. on 08.12.2023
which is fall under the F.Y. 2023-24.



Annexure-E
Mr. Gunjan Pandya (DIN: 08493307) is Director in the following Companies:

BABAJI  AVATARAN
FOUNDATION

PITH

Sr. No. | Name of Companies CIN Date of
appointment
1 SHRI PRAGYA MAHA AVATAR | U85300MH2020NPL346171 | 16/09/2020




DECLARATION OF CODE OF CONDUCT

In compliance with the provisions of Schedule V(D) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, it is
hereby affirmed that all the Board members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed
complied with the Code of Conduct of the Company.

Date: 24.08.2024 For & on behalf of the Board Of Directors
Place: Ahmedabad DECO MICA LIMITED

Vishal Vijay Bhai Agarwal Vijay Kumar Dindayal Agarwal

Director & CFO Managing Director

DIN: 01763739 DIN: 01869337



DECLARATION

All Board Members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the
code of conduct for Directors and Senior Management as approved by the Board for the
financial year 2023-24.

Date: 24.08.2024 For & on behalf of the Board Of Directors
Place: Ahmedabad DECO MICA LIMITED

Vishal Vijay Bhai Agarwal Vijay Kumar Dindayal Agarwal

Director & CFO Managing Director

DIN: 01763739 DIN: 01869337






J. T. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUMTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
Ta,
he Meimbers of
DECC-MICA LIMITED
Ahmoedabad

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Crpinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Standalone Einancial Stalements of DECO-MICA LIMITED {*the
Lampany”| which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31% March 2024, the Statemeant of Profit and Loss
(inchuding other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statemant of Cash
Flowes Tor the year then ended and notes to the fingneial stateaments, including a summany of material
accounting policies ond other explenatory inforimation therelnafter referred to as “Standalone Financial
Statements™).

2. Inour opinion and ta the best of cur information and according to the explanations given 1o us, the i
aloresaid standalone financial statements give the infermation required by the Companies Act, 2013
["the Act™) o the manner so required and Eive a true- and far view in conformity with the Indisn
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act road with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, {“Ind A5") and other acoou nting principles gensrally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Lompany as at March 31, 2024 | its Profit, Other
Lomprehensive Income, its Cash Flows and Changes in Equity Tor the yoar ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducled our audit in sccordance with the Standards on Auditing {5A'5) specilied under soction
14310 of the Act. Our responsitiilities under these Standards are further, deteribiod in the Auditor's
Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Eihics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants af
Inclia (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements thet are relevant o our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under and we have fulfilled our
ether ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. ¥We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us b sulficient and apprapriate ta provide a basis for our
opinicn on the Standalone Financial Statement,

Hey Audit Malters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional, judgment, were of mast significance in
our audit of the standalone financlal statements of the current period, These matters were add ressed
in the context of aur audit, of the standatone financial statements s a whele, and in forming our
opinion therecn, and we do not provide a ceparate gpinion, on these maliors,

2001202, Lavken Compdex, 35243, Rasala Morg, N don Temiplie,
M’.T'I"U”l_.'ll}'.llu. Aemsedabodg- 380009 ,
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J. T. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTAMTS

Koy anaedit matter fentified i cur audit in respect of Assessment of Existence & Recoverability of

Trade Recelvable as follows:

[Refer Para 3.6 for the accounting policy and Mote 3 for the related disclosures]

Key Audit Matter

How our awdit addressed the key awdit matter

The ecampany  haz  trade receiwables © (net)
cutstanding of Rs, 341660 Lakhs after
deducting the provision for Impairment ol Rs
548,063 Lakhs at theend of reparfing period,

Our awdit procedures included the Tollowing:

Reviewing the accounting policy with respect
[
revenue B

o recognibion ol

approgriateness in accordance wilh nd A5

This represents 48.86% ol the iotal assets of 115 Bevenue from  Contract with
they company. Custamors;
These balances are receivabile in relation to the o Appropriateness of Hecognition,

revenue recognized inoaccerdance with the
requirerments of Ind A% 1E5 "Revenus from

Contracls wilh Customers”,

The recowverability of trade receivables 5 a key
element of the company's working capital
management, which is managed on an ongoing
basis by its management, Due to the nature of
the business, the requirements of customers
end warioes contract berms thalt are in place,
there is'a risk that the carrying values may not
a5 -at the

reflect the recoverable amownts

reporting date

Therefore, the assessment of exlstence &
recoverability of trade receivables is @ boy audit
inherent

in the Managamen

1o s aned

invohed

matters  dua SireE,
uncertainty
Judpement.
Fefer -note 2 (A) to sienificant accounting
policies and note 9 and note 42 {10) to the

standalone linancial statements.

Measurement and Impairment of Trade
Receivables in accordance with Ind AS
109: Financial Instruments.

Evalualing the design & implementston of
inteenal controls in relation o recovery of
lmade seceivables, coloulation of allowance for
irmpaired trade recelvable along with testing
its cperating effectiveness on sample basis,

Ohtdining the external balance confirmations
an samples basis to ascertain the exislence &
compicteness of trade recevablas,

Verilied the subsequent. receipts of trade
receivables for selected samples to-ascertain
il existence as on balance sheet date

Qblaining an wnderstanding of the processes
for evaluating the recoverability of the tradae
receivables including the collection process &
allowances for im pained trade receivables.

Evalualing management's - assumptions  in
determining the provision for impalrment of
trade receivables, by analysing the agelng of

2017202, Lalitn Camplox, 354573, Rasala Marg, ke-Jain Temple
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J. T. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANMTS

Koy Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
individual trade receivables and 5|-_u::r|h: local
risks, historical trends & patieens, comibined
with the legal documentations, where

applicable.

» Verilying the ageing analysis of Trade
recervanles, - long  outstanding & . owverdue
balances, latest correspondences  with
customers Tor recovery of dues & evaluating

Its impact on provisioning & impaicment.

s Accessing the adequacy of the disclosures. as
required by the statute,

infefmation other than the Financial 5tatements and Auditor's Report therean

&, The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the infarmation inchaded in the Management Discussion and Analysis, !
Board’s Report inciuding Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Repart, Lorporate
Governance and Sharcholder’s infermation and ather information in the Company's annual report, but
doos not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thoreon, The other

information is expected 1o be made avadlable to us after Uhe date of this auditor's report.

Orur opinion an the standalone financial statements does nol cover the other pformation end we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereomn,

I connection with our audit of the standalone Rrancial statements, our responsibility i bo read the
other information kdentified above when it becomes availsble and, In doing s, consider whether the
othier information is materially inconsistent with tha financial statements or our knowledge oblained
during the course of our audit, or otherwise appears 1@ ke materially missioted.

When we read the Annual Report, If we conclude that there 1s @ material misslatement therein, we are
roquired to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and as may be legally advised,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial

Statements

6. The Company's Board of Directors Is responsible Tor the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standatone financial statement that give a true and fair view
ol the financial position, financial performance including other Comprehensive Income, cash flows and
changes In equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
penerally accepted i Indi@. This responsibility also Includes maintcnance of sdeguate sccounting

2014202, Lalita Comples, 35203, Rosolo Mong, K Join Temiple,
Mowrongpunn, Ahmatabad-350009
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J. T. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
lor preventing and detecting frauds and  other irreguolarities; seloction and application of the
appropriabe aceounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reaconable and prodent;
and destpn, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial contrals, that were
operating eflectively for ensunng the accuracy and completeness of the accaunting récords, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Tinancial statements that give a tree-and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

T I preparing the standaione financial statements, manzpement Is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue a5 a going concarn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concerm ancd uiing the poing concern besis of accounting unléss management either intends (o
ligusdate the Company or (o cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but (o do so

B. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Compamy’s financial reporting

[ELERIS SRR

Auditor's Responsibilitios for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

9. Dur objectives are 1o obiain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as g whole are Tree from material misstaterment, whether due to fraed or efror, and Lo Issue an
auditor's report that includes our-opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a puarantee that an avudi conducted In accerdance with Sos will alwiays detect a material misstatement
when it erists. Misstatemonts can arise from fraud or oeror and are considered matasial IF, individuatly
of b the apgregate, they could reasonably be expecied to inflluence the cconomic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

10. Az part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professionnl skepticisen throughout the audit, We alao:
= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whoether due ta Troud or enror, destan and perform sudil profedures responsne Lo those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that i3 suflicient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion, The risk
of not detecting o material misstatement reésulting from frawed is higher than for one resulting from
error, 05 froud may involve collusion, Torgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
averride of Intermal control.

= {Ubtain an understanding ol inlernal control relevant too the audit in order 1o design audin
procedures that are sppropriote in the circumstances, Under section 143(3) {i] of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate intemal
linancial controls system in plage and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

* [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polickes wseéd and the reasonableness of accounting
eslimates and related disclosures made by management.

I Lalitn Comples, 35303, facala Mam, Nr. doin Tampila,
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J. T. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

v Conclude on the appropriatenass of management’s use of the poing concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence ohiained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditkans that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability o continue as a going
cancern. If we conclude that a matenal uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
dicclosures. are inadequate, te modify our spinian. Our conclugions are based on the audit
evidence oblained up to the date of our audivor's report, However, fulure events or conditions
may cause the Company 1o cease Lo continue as a gomg concerr,

= Ewaluate the overall presentation, strocture and content of the standalone Tinancial stalemsents,
including the disclosurgs, and whether the standalone financial stalements represent the
underying transactions and eventsin a manner that achioves [air presentation,

11, We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amang other matters; the planned
scope-and tming of the audit and significant audit Tindings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

12, We also provide those charged with povernance with a statement that we have compbicd with relevant
ethical reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relaticnships and
oliter matlers thal may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safepuards,

13, From Che matters communicaled with those charged with governance, we determine those matters

that were of most significance In the pudit of the standalons Tinancial statements of the current year

and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law

ar regulation proclydes public disclosure about the matter or whan, in extremely rare circumstances,
weir determing thal 2 matbér should nol be communicated in ouwr report because the adverse
Congeguences of doeing so would reasonably be epxpected o outweizh the peblic interest benefits of
such communication,

Repart on DMher Legal and Regulatory Reqairements

14, ns reguired by the Companies (Afuditor's feport) Grder, 2020 ("the Order™) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143[11] of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A", 3 statement
on the matlers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 10 1he extent applicable.

15. Further to our comments in Annesure &, as required by Seclien 1433} of the Act, based on our audit,
we report that:
Al Wee Bl Soupht and obtained all the information and, explanations which: to the best of our
knowledge and belie! were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

bl In vur opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 50 far
as it appears from our examination of those books.
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J. T. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANIS

) The standalone financial statemeants dealt with by this Beport are in agreement with the books of

adtoranl.

d] o our apnion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with accounting standards a8
specificd under Section 133 of the Act

a] Onthe basis of the written representations recgived feam the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, noee of the directors is disgqualified as on 31 March 2024 frem being sppointed
as a director In terms of Section 16412) of the Act

i1  With respect (o (e adequacy of the internal financial contrals with reference to Standalone
Financial Staterments of the Company and the operating effectbveness of such controls, refer to our
separare Report in "Annexure BT, Cur report expresses an unmodilied opinion on the adeguacy
and operaling eflfectiveness of the Company's imteenal financial  controls with reference to
Standalone Financial St emeant.

gl In our oginion and according 1o the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration

pakd by the Compary §0its directors during the current year is In accordance with the provisions of
section 187 of the Act read with Schedule W to the Aot

I With respect tothe other matbers 1o bednciuded In the Auditor's Report in sccordance with Rule
11 of the Campanies (Audit and Auditors) Bules, 2014 (a5 amended], in our opinion and to the best
of gur Information and sccording to the explanations given to us;

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in the
standalone financial statements; (Refer Note 31 to the standalone financial statements],

i.  Thio Company did not have any losg=-term contracts includimg derivative contracts for which
there were gy material foreseepable lnsses.

i, There has been no delay intransfering amounts, required to be transferrad, to the Inpestor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

i, (i) Thee management has represented that, 1o 1he best of its knowledepe and belief, other than
as disclosed in the noles to the accounts |, no Tunds have been advanced or loaned or invested I
[either from borrowed funds or share premiem or any other sources or kind of Tunds] ty the
Company o or inany other persons or entities , Including Toreign entities {"Internvediaries”]
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermedianies
shall, whiether, directly or indirectly lend or imvest inthe other persons or entities identified in

any manner whalsoever by or on behall of the Company (*Ulimate Beneaficiaries") or provide
any grranbee, secunly oF the koo behalf of tho Ultimate Bomeficiaries.
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J. T. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCTOUNTANMIS

(i) The management has represented, that to the best of its knowledge and belief, ne Tunds
hawe been received b‘nf L {gn':pu.nlr' from ary eersons or antitias, inn!udlng fi.‘.lrl:'l"lt:l'l entitins
{“Funding Parties”], with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the company shall, whether directly or indirectly lend ar invest in the other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™ or provide any guarantes, security of the fke an behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiarios.

iii] Based on oswech awdit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11{e] of the Companies [Audit and
Auditers) Rules; 2014, as mentioned at para {iv){i) and (v} abowve, contain any material mis-
statemant.

w. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year-as prescribed under
Bection 123 of the Act

wi, The company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which

does not have a feature of recording audit trail {edit log] facitity. Conseruently, we are unatile
Lo report whether the audit trail fadility has been operated and maintained throughout the
vear for all transactions recorded in the software, or if the audit trail feature has been
farmpe red with,

For, 1. T. Shah & Co.

Chortered Accountants

[Firm Regd. No. 109616W]

3‘ =
(M. C. Shah)
Fartmer

[M. No. 035159]
DN 24035152BKAADIIEE3

Plage: Ahmedabad
Datc: 18/05,/2024

HdR02. Lalito Comples; 35251, Rasnla Marg, Wr, Jain Termpéa
Mewrcirgg o, Ahmedakod- 30004
Prinne; P64 444 200 764 444 10, 264 4484°40, 265 604 40

Page 7ol 57




DECO-MICA LIMITED

ANMNEXURE "A" TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 14 of our report of even dste to the Members of DECO-MICA LIMITED for the
yoar ended 31 March, 2024,

in terms of the Infomation and explanations sought by s and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by ug in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledpe and
batief, we stale that:

1 In respect of Property, Plant and Equipment ;

[a}

(k)

{c)

{d]

le)

{ify The Company has maintained proper records showing full particotars  including
guantitative detatls and situation of Property. Plant & Equipmenis.

(i) Thee Company has maintained proper records showing Tull particulars of intangible assets.

The property, plant and equipments were physically verified by the Management according
to @ phased programme at regular interval which, in our opinlon, is reasonable having regard
to the size of the company and the nature of its assets, Purswant to the programme,
property, plant and eequipments have been physically verilied by the management during
the year and no material discropancies hava bean noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties disclosed in the financial statements are held
in the name of the company,

The company has not revalued its Property, Plant & Equipments or intangible assets during
thig year.

Mo proceedings have been initiated or pending against the compamy for holding any Benami
property under the Benami Trarsaction (Prohibition) Act, 1938 and rules made there under,

.3 Inrespect of its Inventorios

[a)

Ik

The physical werification of investories has been condected at reasonable intervals by the
management, In our opinion, the coverspe and procedure of  such verification by
management is appropriate and no matenal discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate Tor
each class of inventory weare naticed onsuch physical verification.

The company has been sanclioned working capital imit in excess of Rs. 5 Crore rupees, in
aggregate from Banks on the basis of security of current assets, Copies of quarterly
statemenl and ratuen, furnizshed to bank have also been made avallable for ouf veriliestion.
We have verified the sarme on sampling basis and Tound the same in agreement with books
of accounts, Discrepancies noticed during the verification, were reasonably explained by the
managament,

3. In respect of Loans and Advances granted during the year;
The company has not made any invastmenty in, provided any guarantes or security or grantoed
any loans or advances in the nature of koans, secured or unsecured, 10 companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or amy other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and therefore; the Clavses 3115 [6) Lo (] of the Companies {Auditor's

Repaort] Crder, 2020 (the Order) ara net applicabibe 1o the campamyg




DECO-MICA LIMITED

Loans, Investments and Guarantees:
The Company bas complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 1B of the Companies Act,
2014 in respect of loans granted, investments made and puaranbess dnd tecurities provided, as

applicabls,

In respect of Deposits:

The company has not accepted any deposits or amount which-are deemed to be deposits and heace
the directives issued by the Reserve Baok of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any
atlver Felevant pronisions of the Companiies Act and the rules framed there under are not applicable
o the company. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

In Respact of Cost Records:
Fursuant to thé rules-made by the ceniral government of India, the Comipamy 15 required (o
maintain-cost records as s pecified wnder section 148( 1] of the Act,

We have broadly reviewed the same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed
accounts and recards have been made and maintained. Howover, we have not made a detailed
exammnation of the cost records with a view bo determine wheather they are accurate or complete,

In respect of Statutory Dues ;

fal  The Company is by and large regular in depositing with appropriate autherities undisputed
statutory dees including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employises State Insurance,
Incame Tas, Duty of Customs, cess and amy other maberizl slatulory dues with the
sppropriote avthorities except for payment of iIncome Tax,

Mo undisputed amounts payable in respect statutory dues were outstanding as at 31° March,
2024 [or a pericd of more than six months from the date they became payabla except there
is an undisputed amount of Rs. 7702 lacs inorespect of Advance Tax of current financial year
which has remained wnpaid for a period exceeding siv months from the date it becme
payable.

i) There were oo dues of Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Emplovees State Insurance,
Income Tax, Duly of Customs, cess and any other statutory dues which have nol been
deposited an account of any dspule,

In Respect of Undisclosed Income Discovered in Income tax Assessment:

There were no tAnsactions that were not recorded in books of sccounts and hawe been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the yvear in the tax assessments ender the Income Tax Act, 1961,
Hence,-clause 3(viii] of the Order is not applicable (o the company.

In respect of Repayment of Loans:
(@) The Company has not defaulted in repaymaent of loans ar other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thercon 1o any lenders.

() The company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
landers
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

1,

11,

2

13,

14,

i€} In our opinion, the term loans taken during the year were applied for the purpose for which
they were abtained.

[d]  The company has not etilized any funds raised on short temm basis for long term purpose.
Hence, clause 3 {ix){d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

(el The company has not taken any Tunde fram any entity ar person te meot obfigations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint vanturas, Honoo reporting under clavse 3 {lx) {¢) of the Order, is
not applicable to the Company.

i Thie company has not has raised any Inans during the year on the plsdpe of securties held inirs
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies, Hence, clanse 3 [k){f) of the Order i not
applicable 1o the Company,

In Respect of Public Offerings:

Wl The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3 (x}(a) of the Order is not applicable 1o the
Company.

{h]  The company has not made any preferontial allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures during the year. Aocordingly, clause 3{x)b) of the Order is not
applicable ta the Company,

{aiTo the Best of our knowledge and according to the infarmation and explanation Biven Lo us ,ng
Fraud by the Company or no material on the company kas been noticed or repoerted during the year.

(k) Mo report under sub-Section (12} of Section 143 of the Lompanies Act, 2013 has been filed by the
duditors in Farm ADT-1 & prescribed under rule 13 of Companies {Auditar and Auditor] Rules 2014
with the Cenlral Government.

ie} No whistle-blower complaints were received during the year by the com pamny.

As the company is not a Nidhl Company, the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable 1o it. Accordingly,
provisions of clause (xil) [a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable 1o the Company.

The company & in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act 2013 wherp
EI|'.'||'_'l|iI::|:|:I!'|:‘.1fCIf all transactions with the refated partics and the detaile of related party transactions
have been disclosed in the standalone financial ilatements as required under indian Accointing
Standard (Ind AS) 24 "Related Party Disclosure” specified under section 133 of the act,

In Respect of Internal Audit:

[} In ourcpinien and according ta the information and explanations given to s, the company has
an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business of the
COMBaNY.,

(B} During the tourse of our audit, we have eansidered, the regorts of Inteenal Audie Far tha nariod
under audit, issued to the Company during the year till date of this repog




DECO-MICA LIMITED

15,  The Company has not entered in Yo any non-cash trapsactions with its. directors or persons
comnected with him. Acoordingly, clawse 3(av] of the Crder i3 not applicable to the Company,

18, In Respect to the Prowvisions of Reserve Banmk OF India Act 1934:
[a)  The company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordinghy, clawse [svi)(a) af the Order s sot applicable tothe company,

[B] The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accardingly, dlause {xvil{b] of the Order is not applicable to the company.

fc]  The company s not a Cong Investment Company (CIC} as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, clause (ovidich & (d) of the Order are not applicable to the
chrmpany

17.  The Company has not incurred any cash lasses in the linancial vear under review and immediataly
precading financial year. Accordingly, clavse {xii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

18. There has been oo oresignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year,
Accordingly, clause 3 [xviii] of the Drder is not applhcable to the Company,

19.  Omthe basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expectod dates of realisation of financial assets and
poyment of financial labilities, other information accomponying: the financial statements, our
knowledpe of the Board of Directors and management plass and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncorainty exists as on the date of the audit repart that the Campany is
not capable of meeting its labilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within o period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, skate that this s not an
assurance a5 ta the future viability of the Company, We further state that our reporting is based on
ihe facis up 1o the dope of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any #5surance
that all liabilitios. falling due within a percd of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and whon they fall dus.

20. Thers was no unspent-amaunt réquired to be transferred to special account as required by Section
135 of the Companies Act 2013, Accordingly, provisions of sub clause (a) and (b} of clause {xx] of the
Order are nol applicable ta the company.

For, ). T. 5hah & Co.

Chartered Accountants,

[Firm Repd. No. 109616W)|

.

N, €. Shah]
Partnor
[M. No. 035159]

UOIN: 230351598KAADZIESS

Place: &hmedabad
Date: 18/05,/2024
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

ANNEXLIRE "B" TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 15 {f) of our Repon of even date 1o the Members of DECO-MICA LIMITED {or the
wiar engded 31" March, 2024,

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 [“the Act)

Opinign

We have audited the intornal financial controls aver financial roporting of DECO-MICA LIMITED ["the
Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our zudit of the standalone financial statements of
thz Company for the year endeg on that date;

I our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financlal controks systom
over financial reporting and such intgrnal financial controls over linancial reporting were operating
elfectively o3 at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria establishad
by the Company cansidaring the #ssential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audil of Internal Financial Controfs Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institule of Chartersd
Accounlants of India.

Mamagement's Res ponsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the intermal control over financial reporting eriteria established by the Company considering the
essential companents of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively Tor ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence te cempany’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
lraudls and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
retiable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors” Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal finandal controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the “Guldance Mote™) and the Standards on Auditing,
reued by ICAR and deemed Lo be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
exlenl applicsble to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Contrels and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controk operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audil involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
tinancial conlrols system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal
financial eantrols over financial reporling included obtaining an understanding of intemal financial cantrals
ower financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating elfectivencss of intemal contral based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditar's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material mizsstatement of the
linancial statements, whether due Lo fraud or error.
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

W beleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for
our audit opinion gn the Company's internal financial controls system aver financial reporing,

teaning of Intermal Financial Centrols over Financial Reporting

A company's inlernal Tisancial control over financial reporting is a process designed o provide reasonable
assurance regording the reliability of financial réporting and the preparation of financizl statements for
axternal purposes in accordance with generally jcoepled accounting principles; A company's internal
financial contrel over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that {1) Poertain ta the
malntenance of records that, in reasonbbie deladl eccurately and fairly refllect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} Provide reasonable asserance that transactions arg recorded
ai necessary too permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company e bBeing made only in
accordance with authorizations of management. and directors of the compamy; and [3) provide reasenable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unavthoreed acquisition, use, or disposilion of the
company's assets that could bave a material effect on the linancial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financlal Controls over Financial Reporting

liecause of the nberent lmitations of inermal financial controls over hinancial reporting, including the
possibilily of collusion or improper management override of contrals, material misstatements due to error
or fraud miay occur and not be detected. Also, projections-of any evaluation of the intemal financial
controls over financial roporing to fulure periods are subjoct 1o the risk that the internal financial contral
pver fimancial reporting may become inadequate because ol changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

For, 1. T. Shah & Ca.
Chartered Accountants
[Firm Regd. No. 109616W]

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 18/05/2024

M. C. Shah)

Partner

[M. No. 035153]

UDIN: 24035159BKAADZ3E53
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

{Corporate dentily Number : LI0259GI198EPLCOL0E0T)
Balancg Sheet As st 3170372029

{ _.\,q:lﬁ.-l_
F-Ta=a-ii EI;:‘I'-_?}"
{Rs. In Lakl)

Particulars Mobe Mo, As ot 31/0372024 | Asar 310312023
A ASSETS
Non-Curront Assels
{a) Praperty, Mant and Egisprient 3 1.170.84 1,169,494
fB]  IntanpiBe Aty il Hil
il Capital Wark in Progress L 3160 17,47
id] Financial Assets
(i) Crther Fenanicial Assets 7 2689 2395
fep Other Non-Current Assets 7 4333 ITAT
Total Mon - Current Assets 1,.252.55 1,74H.53
Curront assats
(] irventories f 2, 14067 ZFIRLS
[} Financial Aty
[i} Trade Recomwablas q 241660 B T )
[il} Cash and Cash Equivalents 1% 15.33 1,31
(iif) Eum_k batance Other than Cash end Cash 1 r1a A
Equivalonis
(v} Other Financial Auwsets 12 318 234
[c] Othes Current Assots 13 [ERI) 45,33
Total Current Assets 5.739.04 510313 |
} Total Assets {142} 5,907 49 . 6.350.64
s ECQUITY AMND LIABILITIES
Exgurity
tal shore Capitil 14 AI0.00 420,00
] Cther Egquity 15 2,080,040 1 BE0.0F
Total Equity 2, 500.800 2, 2B0.07
LIAGILITIES
Pon-Current Liabilities
|a) Financlal Liabllities
il Borrowings 14 112.18 123.73
{B] Provisions 17 100.36 65,05
(€] Delerred Taw Liabilities [Net) 18 7T.08 85,57
Tetol Non = Current Liabilities JR0.E2 #8835
Currient Liabilitios
I:al Flnaascinl Linlslities
() Dorrowings 19 1.983.07 1,658,606
(i) Trade Payablos
- tatal -.’:ut;‘t.'l.ndinﬂ dises of micra engorgrises and -} 435 il
wmall enterprises
-|El'.l'lil| autstanding duss of cre-:l.tn-rs athes than 20 1.335.10 L3706
micro enterprisas and small énterprises,
[iii] (b Fimancial Liabéitias ES | 2TR. 1 14130
it Othes Current Liabilities o SE2 AT 539,06
] Proveisieng 21 IS5 70 13.50
(d) Curfent Tax Liabiliies |Met) L 12947 111,65
Total Current Liabilitles 420287 3768322
Total Equity and Lixbilities (1+2+3] 6,091,449 B, 35064
Blateriad Accounting policles and Notes to Accounts 1ted5
As por our report of even date attached herewith For & on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
Far, | T. Shah & Lo, DECO MICA LINMITED

Chartered Accountants

[Firm gil {n\.ingﬁmwb

[N, C. Shah) (DIN: 01869337) [DIN: 03763739)
Partner
{M No. 035154) i iﬁfgﬁ& o
Wiharika Medi
Place : Ahmedabad Company Secratary
Bite 18/05/ 2024 [ACS No. Ad7931)

Wi

WL, W }:;m —=.A W
Vijaykumar D Agarwal hatW Agarwal

Managing Dircctor & CEQ Director & CFO
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DECO-MICA LIMITED
[Carperate identify Number ; L20293G L 98EPLCOLOE0T)
staterment of Praolit and Loss for the Year Ended Ended 21,/03/2024

B do-n-in ENEA

{Rs In Lakhs)

Y Maote | For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
Na. 31/03/2024 ¥1/03/2023
i INCOME
[l Hevenue From gperations i 172718 143009
th) Siher Income 26 50,55 1R
Totl Income TITT.13 1907 89
3  EXPEMSES
(3] Costof motesialy conguied ) 468501 4,531.14
. :.:I:::_EE;;I:L_::::;‘ aries of finished potds, stock-in-trade and e 0" 1E|.-‘|.2:| (243.31]
1] Employee benellk eapenso 29 452495 55501
[d| Finance costs E L] 228.4% 23T T
(el Depreciation amd amortisation expenss il 12724 1307
() Other expenses 12 1,541 06 1.663.2)
Intal Fxponses 742429 TETR.20
1 Profit/{loss) before tax (1 -2] 353.44 124,69
4 Tax Expense
i@l Currgnt 1ax 13 128,50 10380
(b Shor provision o1 tax relating to earlier years 13 B.19 .61
[¢] Beferted tax abilty / (Bssets) 33 (14.24) i5.96)
Total thx cxpemse 12246 10108
5 Profit){loss) far the year [3-4] 23054 din.3a
B Other Camprehensive Income
a i} memsthatwill not be reclassified woprofic or loss
[a] Rermeasuromants of the delined banckit .
3 (15.31) 1201
Expiensesy (Incoma)
[} Inearme Lok relating to Hems that will net be .
reclassified ta profit or loss [Liabilityl/Assets i A s
Total Dther Comprehenshp income [11.05) (B.67)
7 Towal camprehensive Inggme Tor the yoar (5-6) 219.93 21055
B Eaxrning Per Shares (Face Value of Rs, 10/- each Tully paid up)
n Besic [in fs,] 34 SR 143
i) Ciluted fin e} 35 5.5 543
Matenid Accounting polickes and Notes 1o Accounis 1 iy 45

As per o report of ewen date ottached herewlith
Tor, 1. 7. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

L

1' e

For & on belall of the Beard of Divectors ol
CECD MICA LIMITED

LT I S SR - | :it-'-"J

g::’%\ﬁ-\.iﬂ‘ﬂ'ﬁ 1EW ]
R

i, & shah)
Partmer

{M.No. 035159)

Place : Ahmedobad
Dake ; 18/05/ 2024

Vijayhumar O Agarscal
hanaging Director & CEQ Dirctlor & CFO
DM D1B693ET) [2am: pa763T3a)

Miharika i’ﬁn:u:li

Coampany Secretary
[ACS Mo, A47981)

i
\flshg 5&urwui
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DECO-MICA LIMITED
[Corporate Identily Mumber ; 2029861 1988PLCO 10807
STATERMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR YEAR ENDED 315T BMARCH, 2024

I I.I'I'il.:l_a_"_"l.'

Far the year ended

Far the year ended

PARTICULAKS 31053029 31.03.202%
{Hs. im Lakhs] | (As. e Lakhs] | {#s in Lalths) | (Rs. I Lakhs)
A: |Cash from Operating Aetivities
Mot Frofit belore Taxation 5304 120.69
Audjustment For
Depreciation 12720 130,79
Provisien for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 17,00 6,96
Interest Paid 22845 23776
Loss f [ Prafit) on Discarding of Proparty, Pant and Equip. ;
s 2yl 131 i0.66)
[ ]
Intoroc Incoma [5.07} (3,37
I80.02 17144
Oporating Prodit Botore Working Capital Changes: fi3ab 117
Al justrmn For
Incraasef{decrease) in Other Non Curment Assets 1.5 n{j[«_'.n".f:w
Decrasefincraata) In Invpntoraes Ta.27 {167,.96)
Decreasofiineressa) in Trade Roceivable (hEd. 37} (220
Increaseyldecrease) in Other Non current financlal assets [2.0a] [CLOZ
Increasef{decrense) in Othor Current Assels [21.70] 2783
Incregseiderease| in Mon Currgnt Peavisions 160D 11.64
Pecroasef{increass) in Trade Payabile (1464 250.45
Inici eahl:,n'l:dlp-u ud:n.|=| in Other Current Financial Liu|.1i||'|',l B.T1 51.51
Incregsefidecrense) i Dtbser Current Lialilities 23411 (35, 70|
Increisedid e ease| i Currend Provisien 214 .21
{=24.54) 107,598
Cosh Gemerates From Operations 2 HH RO9:15
Incoma Tax Paid [132.02] f104:11)
(132.02] {104.11)
Mt Cash From Operating Activitios (A) T72.86 T05.04
B [Cash Flow From Investment Actieisies @
Furghase ol Frogecty, Fant and Egquismznts [incloding
: : ‘ [150.73] {225.62}
Capital Sork in Progress)
Lisposal ol Progerty, Plant angd Equipments 469 500
Irvetments in Bank Depost and Margin Money Deposits [22:15] 1311
Interest Income 5.13 181
Bat Cach from Inwestmiant Actbolgins JiL) {161.07) {103.70)
_E._'._ Cash FIE Froam Financing Activities
Hepaymant of Lang Term forrowings [ 19.34] (17.36]
Froecds of Long Term Bormowings F i 10400
inrerest Paid [232.07] (Z07.Ba]
Hopayment of Shart Tesm Borrowings Ml [434.91)
(Pravonds of Short Term Barrowi s 147 85 19,30
1= et Cash from Financing Activities (C) 1010.23 [SA5-03)
Pt Iﬂfr;:I'i.-l'-f{D-r'El'l‘-'I'H'? in Cash & Cash Frjeivalenes 1407 [3.65|
Cash & Cash Equivalents ne the Dapinning 1.1 185
Cagh & Cask Egquivalents at the End 131
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DECO-MICA LIMITED A [T
[Corporate dentify Numiber : 1202996198881 C010807) Flaswitangrs-
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCH, 2024

Reconcilingtion of cash and cash equivalents 35 per the cash Mlow statompnt

[Rz. In Lokhs) {e in Lakhs]
LCash and cash oquivalents as per algg:.lr.- comprisi of the fallowing: FL03.2029 N E
Cash and cash equivalonts (Note 10] 15.33 133
Fixed doposits wath less thon 3 month from dace af originativn il Wil
Halinces per statement ur{'ilf_.hl'l__wE 15,33 131

Mokes ;

The abawe Cash Flow Statement hos been prepared under the "IndiFect Method” sok oot in tha Indinn Accounting Stand nrdﬂ
7 “Cash Flow Satement” spocified wader wetion 133 8l the Lompanics Aot ead with Rule 7 of the ':E.Impdr'lil.m [coounts)
Hulng, 2015,

=

A5 par aur fepoet of aven date attached

Far, 1. T. Shah & Cao. For & an bohall of the Board of Directors of
Charterod Accountants DECOMICA LIMITED
{Firm Regd. Ne. 109616W)

W :'él.‘;'jl Vaoen s i‘-..-”h.-l..ﬂ. =B

Vilavkumar D Agarwal Wishitl V Agarasil
(M. L, Shan] Managing Divector & CEO Director & CFo
Fartmes [DMM: D1BGDITT) (DN B1763739)
AN, 035159)
Miharika I'.'I-u:rdul
Flace 1 Alhmedabad Company Secretary
Dkate = §HS05/2024 [ATS Nao. A479R1]
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

Staternent of Changes in Equity for the year andad on 315t March, 2024
Equity Share Capdtal .
Particulars Mote Mo, [Rx. in Lakhs)
Balance as on 15t April, 2022 i1 A10.00
Changes In Equity Share capltal due to prior period Errors hil
Re=tated Balance at the beginning of tha previous reporiing gariad 1 A0
Chiinpes in oguity share capital during the veor Nil
Balance s on 3158 March, 2023 14 A20.00
Chiinpes in Egquity Share capital due to pripr period Errors htil
st ated olanee ot the beginning of the previous reporting poriod 11 42,00
Changes inequily share capital durine the year Hil
Balance as on 315t March, 2024 1a_ A240.04
Other Equity (AR5 In | akhs)
Reserees and Surphes
Particulars Rotained Genaral Total
Mote Mo,
Earmings Hesorvo
Balonoe as o1 15t Apsil, 2022 15 1,617.34 23.18 1,640.52
Presfit fesr theyoar 278.2 Kil 23822
Qlber pemprehonsivs sicoma for the yasr (net of Taa) [B.7h Hil BT
Total Comprehensive Ingome for the year 119.5 Kl 11955
lkakance o= at 31st parch, 2023 15 1. 836.80 1318 1860407
Prodit for the year 730,94 il T300518
Crthatr comprehensive inoeme for the yeas [net of Tax) [11.65] il (1108
Total Comprehenshve Income for the year 21943 il 219,493
(Balance s at 315t March, 2004 15 2,056.52 23.18 2,080.00
s g our report of even date antached herewith, For & on behalf of the Board of Directars of
Far, J. 1. 5hakh & Co. DECD MICA LIMITED
Chartered Accountants
Mo, 109616W)
Wil Vleten s r""{ﬂ'-‘*‘ﬂ'v"' [ M
L
Vijogkumar O Agarwal Vishial W, Azarwal
far i Managing Director & CEQ Director & CFO
{ML.Nw. 035158} i : {DiN: 01859337} (DIN: 01763739)
Place : Ahmedabad Niharika hadi
Date ; 18/05/2024 Company Secretary
(ALS Mo, A4TEHL]
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended on 31" March’2024.

1. Lorporate Information

Deco Mica Limited [referred 10 a3 ‘the company”) Is @ leading in manufacturing of Decorative Lamimated Shisals,
Cut pieces & Industrial Insulators Board & Trang of goods. The company has its registered office at 306, 3rd
Floer, Iscon Mall, Above Star Bazar, Near lodhpur Cross Road, Satellite, Ahmedabad-380015,

i

A MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATIONS

il

fii)

Basis of preparation amd presentation

These individual financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind-AS) under the historical cost convention on the accruat bacis, sveapt for cortain financial inctrumaonts
which are meatured at fair values. The Ind AS is prescribed under Section 133 of the Act resd with Rule 3
ol the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards] Rules, 2015 and amendments thereto,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly lssued accounting standard is
nitially adopted or a revision ta an existing acceunting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hitherta in use. The Company retains the presentation and classification of items in the financial
statements from one period 1o the next,

Use of Estimates:

The preparathon and presentation of fnancial statements are in conformity with the Ind As which
requirad management 1o moke cstimates and mssumptions that affect thie reparted amoonts of aogols
and labilities (including contingent Gabilitics) on the date of the financial statements and 1he reporie
amaunt of revenues and expenses during the reporting vear,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and In any future periods
affected. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of financial statements are
prucient and reasonable. Fulure resulls could differ due to these estimates and differences betwaesn the
actual results and estimates are recognized in the year in which the resulis are known / materialized,

Informatien abaut assumptions and estimation uncerialnties that have a significant risk of resulting In a
material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the Tollowing notes:
Wole 18 - Current J Deferrod tax liabilities

Mote 2% - Measurement of delined beneflt obligations

Mote 04 - Expected credit loss for recetvables

(i} Critical Accounting Estimates and Judperment used in application of Accounting Policies

i, Income [akag
significant judgements are involved In determining the provision forlncome Taxes, ineluding amaount
expected to be paid / recovered for uncertaln tax positions. [Alse refer Note 18 and 33

b, Peoperty, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of this Compgany.
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's
expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The usefu? ife and residusa|
values of the Company's assets are determined by the Management at the time the asset i acquired
ared reviewed perlodically, including at each financial year end. The life is. based on historical
experience with similar assets as well as anticipation: of future events, which may impact their life
such as changes in technolegy. [Refer Note 3) :
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

Motes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended on 317 March'2024,

€. Impairment of Financial Assets
The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rales. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation based on empirical evidence available without under coct or
effort, existing market conditions as well as forward Faoking estimates at the emd of sach repariing
period. {Refor Mote 41).

d.  Defined Benefit Plan
The cost of the defined benelit plan and other post-employment benefits and the pressnt value of
such obligations & determined wsing actuarial valuation, An actuarial valuation invoives making

various assumptions that may dilfer from actual developments in the future These mclude The
determination of the discount rate, future salany increases, mortalily rates and atirition rate, Dye (o
the complesities imvolved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation &
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed ot esach reporting
date. {Refer Note 29.1),

e. FairValue Measurement of Financinl Instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recarded in the batance sheet cannot
be mieasured bazsed on quated prices in active markets, their Talr value is measured issing valuation
techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow {20F|) model, The inputs to these models are taken
fraom observatle markets, where possible; but whare this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required im estabiishing fair values. Judgements include contideration of inputs such as liquidity risk,
eredit risk and volatility. Changes in assumplions abaut these factors could affect the reported fair
values of financial instruments, (Refer Note 41},

liv]  Property, Plant and Equipment & Depreciation:

8] Property Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are tangible ltems that are held for use In the production or supphy of
Eoods and seevices, rental to others or lor administrative purpases and are expected to be used
during mare than one period. The cost of an item af properly, plant and equipment is recognised as
an asset it and only, i it is probable that future economic benefils associated with the item will Meyw
to the Company and the cost of the item can be megsurad reliably. Froehold land & carried ai cost
less accumulated impairment losses, All other items of properly, plant and egquipment are stalod at
cost less accumulated depreciation and aceumulated Impairment losses.

Cost-of an item of property, plant and equipment COMpFises:

Ne purchase price, all costs including financial costs till commencement of commercial
production are capitalized to 1he cost of qualifying assets, Tax credit, if any, are accounted for by
reducing the costof capital goods:

Any other cosls directly attributable to bringing the asset Lo the location ond condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by manazemeant

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in

which they are incurred,
TTTYT
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

Motes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended an 21% March 2024,

{v)

b Capital work in progress:

£

d)

Im

Capitel work in progress is stated at cost and net of accumulated impairment bosses, if any. All the
direct expenditure related to implementation including incidental expenditure incurred during the
pericd of implementation of a project, till it is commissioned, is accounted as Capital work in
prageiess (CWIP] and after commissioning the same is transferred [/ allocated to the respective item
of property, plant and equipment. Pre-opersating costs; being indirect in nature, are expensed 1o the
statement of profit and lossas and whan incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated wsetul le and residual value:

Depreciation is provided for property, plant and equipment so as to expense the cost over their
ostimated useful fives based on evaluation, The residual walues, uselul fives and methods of
depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each finansgial year end and ajustiad
prospectively, il appropriate.

Deprecation on fixed assets has been provided on straight line methed based on the their useful
lives which are in line with as specilied. under schedule Il of the Act, However, land is not

depreciated, However, land is not depreciated.

The wsoful lves are mentioned below:

S gl'm Useful life
{years)
Office Building | B0
Factory Building g 30
Flant ard Equipment T‘::- ;
Electric tnstallaticn 10
Laboratory Equipments N 10
Qifice Equipment
Computers 3
Fumiture & Fixtures 10
Motor Vehicle & Tempao &
Pt f',.'_l:h:' b Soootor | 14

Deprecition |s calbulated on pro rata basis with reference 1o the date of addition/dispesal. The
residial values are not mere than 5% of the original cost of asset,

Derecognition of Property, Plant and Eguipment
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecogniced on disposal or
when no fulure economic benellis are expecied from its use or disposal. The gain or loss fram the

derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss when the
item-is derccognized.

irme on — financial assets

The Campany reviews the carrying amount of its Property, Plant and Equipment; including Copital Work
In progress af a "Cash Generating Unit" [CGU] at the end of each reporting period to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets hove suffered an impalement loss. IF any such indication exists,
the: recoverable amount of the asset is estimated inordes 1o determine the extent of the impairment loss
Wl any). Whan it is not possible to-estimate the recoverable amount of an individual psser, the Company

estimates the recoversble amount of the Cash Generating Unit to which the asset belongs.
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

Motes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements far the year ended an 315 March'2034,

{wil

Becoverable Amosent 15 determined:
i Incase of individual asset, at higher of the falr value less cost ta sell and value in use: and

Wl In case of cash generating unit (a group of assets that generales identified, independent cash fows),
at the higher oF the cash generating unit’s fair value less cost to sell and the value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an aster (or cash peneraling wnit) Is estimated to be less than ity
carrying amount, the corrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unlt) |5 reduced 1o its
recoveralilo amount. An impairment boss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Brafit and
Loss,

Financial Instrimments ;

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 1o a financial asget of one entity and a financial
liability of eguily instrument of another entity. The Company classifies financial instroments Ssued into
financial liability and equity based on the substance of the arrangement and the eonlractual terms,
Significant judgement is required to assess whether @ particulac asset @5 @ Nnancial inctrumen! or
othierwise, An asset that represents a contractual rght to receive cash that is subject to other than onby
passage of time or cannot be sald independently of other operating rights have not been presented as
financial assets. Such assets are mainly in the nature of secy rity deposits and investments In equity shares
for receiving services from third parties including government-contralled organksations,

1. Financial Assets:

Initial recognition and measurement:
AL initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset (which are not measured at fair

value| threugh profit or loss at its fair value plus or minus transaction costs that are directly
attributable (o the acguisition or isue of the financial assct.

Financial assels are classified, at Initial recoginition, as financial assete measured at fair value or
at financial assets measured at amorlised cost,

Subseguent measurement:
For purposes of subsequent measurement, linancial assets are classified in following catepories:
i}  Financial assets measured at amortised cost;

i} Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {F¥TPL) and
Uil Finaneial assets at falr value through other comprehensive ncome (FVOCT)

The Company classifies its financial assets in the above mentioned coteporics based an::
) The Company's business model for managing the financial assets, and

b] The contractual cash flows characteristics of the linancial asset.

i} Financial assets measured at amortised cost :

A financlal asset is measured at amaortised cost if both of the fellowing conditions arp
mied;

Pape 220l 57



DECO-MICA LIMITED

Motes forming part of the Standslone Financial Statements for thie veoar endod on 317 March’ 2024,

i,

aj The financial asset s held within a business model whose objective & to hold
financial assels in order to collect contractual cash flows and the Contractual terms
of the financial assets goe rise on specilied dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and mterest {SPPI) on the principal amount cutstanding.

) Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIHy method, Amortised cost is calculated by taking inte account any
discounl or premium on acguisiticn and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is Included in finance income in the profit or lows. The
loases arising from imipairment arc recognised in the profil or loss,

it} Fimancial assets at fair value through prolit o lass (FVTPLD
Financial assels are measured at fair value through profit and loss unbess it is measured
ot amortised cost or at Tale valee threugh other comprehensive income on initial
recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assels and liabilities at falr value through prolit or loss are immediately recagnized in
profit or loss,

iii] Financial assets at fair value through other eomprehensive income [FYOCI):
Financial aesets arg measured at fair valve through other comprehensive income if these
financial assets are hebd within a business model whose objective & achioved by
collecting both contractwnl cash flows: thet ghves rise on specified dates o solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount oulstanding and by selling
fimamcisl| aseels,

The Company may elect to designate a financial dsset, which otherwlse meets amortised
cost or FVOC) eriteria, as at FVTPL However, such election is allowed only if doing so
redeces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency [referred 1o as
‘Accounting mismatch’|

Trade receivables, Advances, Security Deposits, Non-Current lnvestments; Cash gnd Cash
Louivalents ete. are classilied for measarement at amaortized cost.

De recognition:

The Company derecogrizes a financial asset when contractual rights to the cash fldws Trom the
dsset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
iownership of the asset to anat her party.

Un derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference betwoen the assets's carrying
amount and the sum ol the consideration received and recelvable s recogniced in tha Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Impairmant of financal assens:
Al cach reporting date the company assesses, whether a financial assets or group of financial
assels is impaired. In accordance of Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit koss (ECL)
madel for measurement and recognilion of impairmont loss. As p practical expodicnt, the
COMmpany wies & provision matrix to- determing  impairment loss on portfalio of 15 rade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default tates over the
expected life of trade receivables. ECL impairment loss 3

ces (or reversal) recognized

"I'-
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

Nutes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statemoents far the year ended on 31% March' 2024,

during the period Is recognized as an expense [ Income respectively in the statement of profit
and loss. Provision for ECL s presented as daduction from carrying amount of trade receivablas
For all other financial assets, expecied credit kisses are measured. at an amount equal to 137
month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to lifetime expected losses, if the credit risk
un the financial asse1 has increased significantly since initial recopnition

2. Fimancial Liahilitios:

Initial recopgnition and measurement:
All financial latilities are recopnised initially at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective inlerest method.

The company's financial llabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
In¢luding bank overdrafis,

Subsaguent measurement:
The measurement of financial fabilities depends on their dassification, as described below:
i) Fimancial liabifithes medsured al amontised cost,

i) Financial abilities at fair value through profit or loss.
{|  Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost :
Subsequently, all financial llabilities are measured at amortised cost. Any discount or
premizm an redemptinn settlament is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as
limance cost over the life of the liability using the effective interest methad and adjusted
Lo phe ligbilivy figure disciosed i the Balanca Sheat.

iy Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):
Financial Habilities at Fair value through profit or loss include financal liabilitees hald far
trating and financial liabllities designated upon initlal recoznition as ot fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they. are
incurred lor the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Hinancial Habilities designated upon initial recognition at fait value through profit or loss
are designated as swch at the initial date af recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS
10% are satistied, For liabilitles designated @ FYTPL, fair value gains/ losses

attributable to changes in own credit risk are recopnized in OCI. These Ealns Foss are ol
subsequently transferred to PEL However, the company may transfer the cumulative
gain or foss within equity. All other changes in falr value of such Hability are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss,

Derecognition:

Financial llabllities are derecognised when the lability Is extinguished, that i, when the
cantractual obligation is discharged, cancelled and on expiry. When an existing financial liability
5 replaced by another frem the same lander on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantialby modified, sueh an mechange or modilication is treated ps §he
derecognition of the original llability and the recognition of & new liability. The difference in the
Mespective Carrying amounts & recognised In the statement of profit and loss.
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

Motes farming port of the Standalone Finandial Statements Tor the year ended on 31° March’2024.

(i)

[wiii]

(ix]

3. Off-sctting of financial instruments:
Financial assets and financial labilities are offset and the net amount i reparted in the standalone

balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts ane
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 10 reslize the assets and seitle the fakilitias
simultaneously

Inventoriog:

lnventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizobie valve, Cost in respect of raw materials arp
determined on FIFCE basls. Met realizable value i the eztimated selling price In the ordinary coursa of
business less estimated cosl necessary to make sale,

Costs in respect of process and Tinished goods are computed on weighted average basis methad, Finished
goods and process stock include cost of conversion and other costs incurred in acquiring the nventary
and bringing them to their present location and condition.

spares (not meeting the definition of properly, plant and equipment] are accounted ac inventary and
euwpensed 1o the statement of profit and loss when issued for consumplion,

Borrowing Cost

Interest and other costs that 1he Company incurs In tonnaction with the borrowing of funds are identiied
d% borrowing ¢osts. The Company capitalises barrowing costs that are directly attributable ta 1he
acquisition, construction or production of a quatifying asset as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs ane recopnised as an expense in the periad inwhich it is incurned.

A qualifying asset s an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of Ume w get ready for its
intended use. The Company idontifies 1he borrowings into specific borrowings and peneral borrowings.
Speeific borrowings are borrowings that are specifically taken for the purpose of obtaining a gualifying
sttt General borrowings include all other barrowings except the amaunt outstanding a5 on the balance
sheet date of speciflic borrowings. Harrowing cost incurred actually on specific borrowings are capiialised
1o the cost of the qualilying asset. For general borrowings, (he Company determinés the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation by applying & capitalisation rate to tho gxpenditures an Lha
qualifying asset based on the weighted average of the

Borrowing costs applicable o general borrowings. The capitalisation on buorrowing costs comvences
when the Company incurs expenditure for the asset, Incurs borrowing vost and undertakes activitios that
are necessary to prepare the-asset for its intended use or sale. The tapitalisation of borrowing costs i
suspanded during extended periods in which active dove topment of a qualifying asset is suspended, The
capitalisation of beriowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary Lo pregare [he
fqualifying asset for its intended use or sale are campleta,

Statement of Cash Hlows:
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit { lloss) befare extragrdinary items a0
lax 15 adjusted for the effects of transactions of non cash nature and any delerrals or aceruals of past o
Tuture cash recelpts or payments, The cash flows from operating, investing and linancing activities of the
Company are segregated based on the available information.

e | 'I_' F‘."‘-'Jn.';-"
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended on 31% March’2024.

Income Recogniticn Palicy:-
Revenue from Contacts with Customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are
transferred 1o the customer at an amount that rellects the consideration 1o which the company expects

to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services:

The revenue lowards satisfaction of performance s measured at the amount of transaction price {(net of
witiable consiceration) allocated to that performance obligations, The transaction price of poods sold dnd
service rendered i net of variable consideration on account of various discounts offered by the company
as part of contract. These varable considerations are estimated based on the expected valee of outflow.
Revenue {net of variable consideration] & recognised only to the extent that it is highly probable that
amaunt will not ke subject 1o significant reversal when uncertainty relating to its recognition rosolved.

The performance obligation in case of sale of product is satisfied at a poeint in time Le. when the material
is shipped te the customer or on delivery to the customers as may be specified in the contract,

Other rafting Revenua- Export Incontives

Export entitlements are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the right to receive credit as
per the terme of scheme is-established in respect af the exports made and where there i no significant
uncenainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export proceods,

Cther Income
Other income i recopnized on accrual basis except when realization of such fncome i uncerialn,

Eoreign Currency Transpetions:

Functional currency of the Company & Indian rupee. The financial statements have been presented under
s lunctional currency. Any transaction that is denominated in 3 currency other than the functional
currency i regarded as foreign currency transaction. All foreign currency transactions are recorded, on
initial recognition In the functional curency, by applying to the foreign CUrrENeyY. amount the spot
exchange rate between the functional currency and the Tore ign currency ab the dale of the transaction. in
tose of consideration received or paid in advance, the exchange rate prevailing an the date of receipt or
payment of sdvance s considered when subsequently the related assel |5 given up or recelved 1o the
oxtent of advance consideration.

At the end ol the reporting period:
1. foreipn currency monatary ilems are transiated using the exchange rate for immediate delivery at
the end of [he reporiing period:

L non-monetary ilems that are measured in terms of historical cost i oa foreizn currency arp
translated using Lhe exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and

3. non-monetary items that are megsured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using thi
exchange rates at the date when tho fair valups was mencured,
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

Motes Farming part of the Standalone Finandial Statements for the year ended on 31" March' 2024,

[}

{xiii)

fxiv)

Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at
rates different from those at which they were transtated on initial recopnition during the pericd ar in
previous financial statements are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Employee Banefits:

i, Short term employes benefits:
short Term benefits are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted amounts in the Statement of
Profit and Loss of the year in which the related service s rondered, In coto of Logie Encashment, 1the
company does net allow carry farward of unavailed leave dnd hence unavailod leaves are encashod
in the-current yenr itsedl,

i, Post-employment benefits:

Post-employment benefils are benefits [other than termination benefits and shart-term employes

benefits) that are payable after the completion of employment. Post-employment benefits are

identified under defined contribution plans and defined banefit plans.

i' Definad eontribubion p|an;
The Employee and Company make monthly fised Contribution le Governmant al Inekia
Employee's Provident Fund equal te a specified percentage of the Cover employes"s salary,
Frovision for the same is made In the year in which service are render by ernployves.

b} Defined benefit plans:
Past-employment benefits in the Torm of Graluity are considered as defined benefit plan and
determined on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the balanee sl
date. Actuarial Gains or Losses through re-measurement of the net obligation of a defined
benelil lability or assel is recognlsed In Other Comprehensive Income. Such re-measurements
are not reclassifind 1o Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent frericds.

Gratuily is funded through a trust for which a policy with SBI Life Insurance company Limited has
Leen Laken,

iii. Other long-term employment benofits

Employee Benefits that are neither short-term employee benefit nor pest-employment benefil nor
termination benefits are other long-term employee benefits. The Company does not allow carry
forward of un-availed leave and hence un-availed leaves are encashied in the current year itself,

Earnings per Share

Basic eamnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributakle to the equity
holders af the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shores autstanding during the year
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net prafit or loss for the periad attributable
ta equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions, Contingent Liabsilitivy amd Contingent AsEDrs

Provisions are recognised only when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and when a
reliable estimate of the amount of cbfigation can be made. Co ntingent liability is disclosed {or (i) Possible
erbiligation which will be confirmed only by future events not whally within the contral of the Company or
{ii) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
b voguired to settio the abfigation or a relioble estimate of thi & el GbHigaticn cannal be

LTy,
)

made. Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statern :__“}.‘}
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

Netes farming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended on 31* March'2024.
Tawes on Income

B

[wwi)

al

2]

Current Tax:

Current tax is determined on ingome For the year chargeable to tax in accordance on the basis of the
tax laws enacled or substantively enacted ot the end of the reparting period. Current tax items are
recognsed in correlation 1o the underlying transaction either in profit or loss or 001 or direéthy in
equily, The Company has provided for the tax liability based on the significant judgmenl thal thee
taxation - autharity will accepl the fax treatment.

Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is recognised for all the timing differences and is measured using the tax rates and the
Lox laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for all deductible temporary differences, unabsorbed losses and tax credits 1o the extent that it s
probable that future taxable: prolits will bo available against which those deductible tempariny
differences, unabsorbed. losses and lax credits will be wtilised, Othor doforrod tax accebs are
recognized if there is reasonable certainty that there will be sufficient fulure taxable profit availoblie
to realise such assels. Deferred Lax relating (o Hems recognised outside profit or loss is recogniced
outside prolit or loss leither In other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either In G0 or directly in equity.

Fair Value Measurement

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured 2t fair value into one of three favels
depending on the ability to abserve inputs employed in thelr measurement which are deseribed as
folkowrs:

(a]  Level1 inputs are quoted prices [unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Habilities,

(b} level 2 inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, ather than guoied
prices included within level 1 for the asset or lability.

(¢} Level 3 Wnputs are unobservable Inputs for the asset or liability reflecting slprificant
modifications 1o abservable related markot data or Company's assumptions about pricing by
market participants,

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a récurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred Between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing catlegorization at the end of each reporting period and distloses the same,

{xvil} Sogment reporting:

The Chief Operational Degision Maker [CODM) monitors the operating resulls of its business Sepments
separately for the purpose of making decicions about resaurce allocation and performance assessment
Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or [oss and is measured consisle nkly with profit or loss
in the financial ststemients. Operating segmenls are reported In a manner consistent with the intermal
reporting 10 the CODRM.

Accordingly, the Board of Directars of the Company is CODM for the purpose of segment reporling. Refer

note 36 fur segment information presented.
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DECO-MICA LIMITED
Motes farming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended on 31 March’2024.
2 B. Standards isseed but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Alfairs bas not notified any amendments under Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rufes, 2022 for 315t March 2024,

With respect Lo amendments made vide notification no, G.S.R 255(E) dated 31st March 2023 by The Ministny of
Corporate Affairs for Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2027, There was o materisl
impact o the financial statements of the company during the financul year with respect to the said IND A%
amendment related to Ind A5 1 - Presentation of Financial Stitements, Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes
i Adcounting Lstimates and Erors & Ind A5 12 = lncome Toxes.
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

3. Froperty, Plant and Equipment EY. 2023-24
(R4, In Lakhs)

Furmiture
DOffies | Foct Mant &
Particulars Freehold | 8 | 8 df""’E Eouipment | B | Vehides | Computers | Tatal
e q Fixtuires
Gross Carrylng Value as an
: 162.44 T3 A62.33 a4, 168 72 04 ;
01-04-2032 57.32 an 1 36 1z2.0 1,680,272
Addition during the year Hil Hi MY 1 4604 94,14 Hil 213117
Dediction during the year e[l il B 1.51 il .56 Bl 14.07
Gross Carrying Yalue as on
i s7.32| 16244 7.00| 125722  ason| 1528 1204  1879.33
11032023
fulehithon during the year Hil| 1363 Hil H2.30 17| 3B320 230 130660
Deduction durieg the year il il kil 9.0 1il 18.62 il 248.58
rojesss dui
Warkiin Projpesss duing the i i il il il il il il
o
Sanis ann/o Vel 2 of 5732 | 17607 | 7300 1,3404s| 49.17| 27647 435 198723
R-03-2034 g i - A . : : n il
Accumubated depreciation
Bl 54 1G. AT A 50 ; .
a5 on 01-04-2022 A5 %3 416.4 20.48 | 108 7.8 548,43
Charpge during the weas il 3.27 2.96 &0.56 1.53 2909 1.349 130,03
Dedection dudng the yeor M Mil HEl LR Kl 9.0 il 9.73
Accemulnied deprociation ]
Ml Z1.80 19.89 50534 £5.00 | 12H.60 9,11 FiA g
s an 31-03-2023
Chnrge during tha wear Hil .00 2906 51.10 .03 23.40 1.53 137.20
Daduction durfng the year Hil il il b.40 Mil | 1429 B 20,49
Accumelated depreciation
: Nil| 2549 2285 se0.07|  20.03 | 13831 10.73 B16.39
s o 31032024
e
MWeL Carrying Value as on 31+
i 57.32 | 12080 | s3nm1 76184 | 2000 129.69 283 | 1,169.49
5-202 3
Mot Carrying Value 0% an 31- J
|7t v o s7.32 | 15058| so.as 75037 20014 | 13868 361 | 117084
03-F024
e
[0} Assets pledged o5 Security
Iminouanic pepperties of the company Secured by Equitable Mortgage of Mroperty, Plast and Equlpments both Movable £
Ireroviate. |Reder Mot 44),
(b Capitafised Borrowing Cost
Horrowing Cost Cagitalised on Property, Plant and Equipment during the yesar B Nl (P, RS Rl [Refer Kote 5.0
[} Contractual Obligations
fieder Mote A7 for disclosure of Contractual Commitrignts for b acouisiLicg af proparty, Fant & Equipment,
{id] Tithe deeds of imemovable progerty (other than proper taken on legse by duly executed lease agreement) are held in tha
[name ol the coanpany,
(e} Ko proceedings have been Initiated or pending against the company for hatifiryg siny benami peoperty under the Banami
transactions (Frahibitian] Act, 1088 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereundor
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Mate & @ Other Intangilble Assets
(s I Lokks)

~ Other
Particul Tatal
bl Intangible Assets o
Gross Carrying Value a5 on 1-04-202F 0.10 Q.10
Alditieon daring B e il Mil
Descduction. during tha wear Ml 11
Gross Carrying Walue a5 on 31-03-2023 0,10 Q.10
Geross Carrylng Walue os on 01-04-2023 010 a.10
Addition during the year il Kl
Rediection during the vear il il
Griss Carrying Value a5 on 31-03-2024. 0.10 0.10
Aecumadated Amortisation as on 1-04-2022 (1514} 0.10
Addition during the year il H|
Deuctizn durlng the yoar il Hil
Apcumutated Amortisation 56 en 1-04-2023 0.1 A L]
Al it disring theyeor Mil Rl
[rcluction during e year Hil Rl
Accumulated Amortsation ason 31-03-2024 0,10 010
Met Carrying Vikie a5 on 31-03-702% il wil
Mt Corrying Value as on 31-03-2024 Ml Mil
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Ngte! 5
Capltal Work b Progress {CWIR) (B In Lakhs)
Partuiculars Dffico Burlelbng Furpiture | Ofice Equip. Tatal
Cip. Dalance of CWIP as at 1.4.2022 4.9% Q.07 Hil L2
Addition during the yeae 0.73 1172 Ml 12:45
Tr. To Capetal asets during tha year Ml Mil Mil i
Dp- Balance of CWIP as at 31.03,2023 5.68 11.79 Nil 17.47
Adddition durlng thie year 3.30 144 739 1413
Ir. T Capital assets during the: oo Mil Mil il Ml
Closing Balance of CWIP as ot 31.3.2024 8.57 15.24 7,39 3140
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
WP agirip schiedule Profects in Frojects Projects in Frogecte
tempararily tempaorarily

3 FrOgm syspandoad PR susprnded
Loz Liin 1 you 14,13 il 12,45 Wl
1-2 yars 1Z.45 Il 5.0 il
2.1 yeirs 502 il il Ml
Plorg than 3 yepes il Kl Hill Mil

31.60 | il 17.47 | Kil

5.1 Capitalised Borrowing Cost

lorrowing Cost Cagitalised an Property, Mant and Equipment during the year Re0,39 Lakhs {PY. 5055 Lakhs),
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s at 4asat
G j0ther Man Cursent Financial Assets 31032024 31/0372023
{Rs. In Lakhs] | [Rs. In Lakhs)
[a] Vsecurity Deposis
- Unsgeured, considered padsd 25 B4 2295
1|}] - Hank Deposits with Maturity for more than 12 Months 1053 1.00
{Transfir from Other Bank Balance Mota #lo o 11)
Total .. 26849 HE‘.:.
Asat fus at
7 CHbver Non Current Assots 31/03/20249 3103023
— [Rs. InLlakhs) | [R5 inLakhs)
lal  |Adweinces For Capital Goads
- Lnsecured, considered good 23322 ITET
Total ... 3327 I7.67
Asat Asat
§ |lnventories 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
jn_llllakh-:} {Hs. In Lakhe)
s meatorials 1.2H3.70 141151
Wiark-in-Prodess LN 116082
Finished Goods [ nf e el 79604
Liores & Others 2Ab L33
_Inhl siia B 2, 140,67 EIB.'JE
B.1 |The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year was Rs. Nil. [As at March 31, 20232 RS Nl O
&3 Inwimtony of Baw Miteslal inchedes matesial in Trangt- a5 on 31-03-2024 of fs. il (As-at 31-03-2023 Bs. Hil).
- Invantories pledged as Security with bank for borrowing as on 31/03/2024 of Na. 234067 Lakhs {As on 31/03,/2023
' |R5,2218.9% Lakhs).(Refer Mote 44).
asat s at
9 |Trade receivables 31/03/2024 03/ 1023
[H5. In Lakhs) {8, I Lokhs)
Trade Recewnhle Comsidered Good - Secured Wil Mil
Traode Beceiwable Considared Good - Unsepuresd 25550 LAB116
trndo Beceiables - Credit ingdaired 516.73 I 6T
3 aT2.22 2, 78785
Lypss: Allewsance fer dowbtful receivables [Exgected Credil Loss) 55.53 2863
3.416.60 ’!ii-{—i
8.1 |Ageing Details

Gross Qurstanding as on 31/03/2024

Disputed Trade Receivables

Undisputed Trade Rocaivaliles

Apping Considered Credit Considarcd Croedig
Good Irtpaired Giogd i poired

Chutstandding Less than & Moanths fil Mil 235795 Rl
Outstambing Less than & Months 1o 1 Years Ml Ml il COTLE
Qutstwmding batween 1 year to 2 Years il il il R g
Clutsinngeng bebween 2 poae (o 3 Years Kl il Hil 251534
Qutstanding Mace than 3 Years Hil 11.61 il 15274
Total E wil 11.61 2,357.95 1,102 66

Grozs Dutstanding as on 31,03,/2023

Disputed Trade Receivablos

Undisputed Trade Receivables

Agring Considered Cradit Considered Credit
Good Impaired Good linpaired

Quistanding Less than & Months Hil Ml 2.148.07 il
Outstanding Less than B Manthsto 1 Years Bt hit Hil 33604
Oistanding betwanen 1 wear i ] Years Bl Mil il an 46
EhEstandinge beteesn 2 vear b 3 ¥iars Ml Ml rHl 040
Sutitanding Mora than § rears i 11.041 Hil 166,13
Tutal Hil 11.61 1,148.07 G2H.17
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

9.2 |Debisdue by Fidm or Carpdaiy i wiiich difechor iSa parlner ora divesdion o monsies;
" 0/s 0% 6n 0/s a5 an
A
31,03.24 11.03.73
Heceivatidas from Related Pasties 59153 118 56
The Company hias nat entered in B any transaction vwath companies struck off under section 248 of the Comaanied
¥ Aot 2013,
s @ a5 at
10 | Cashand cosh Equivalonts Afo3/r0ia 31/03/2023
(R I Lakhs) [Rs: I Lakh)
Cash & hand oBH 117
ialincos with Hanks 1465 014
Total ..... 15.33 1.31
s @l fis an
11 8ank Galance Other than Cash and Cash Equivatents 31032074 31/03/2023
(As. In Lakhs] [Rs. In Lakhs}
Warpin Maney Deposits with Banks L 497
darik Digosing wilh Matunly more than 12 ponths BLLY] 1.oo
liLess : Transher 1o Ol Non Current Assets Mobe Mo G} (10| {18
il NIl
Total .. 47,12 74.97
ia M Congrary Bas plesdped degrmifs with banks and other financlal instituthen o mangin rsney Tor Lank Gegrantees,
1  |Ciker Cerrent Financiol Aseis A al Asat
31fp3f2024 I1fazf2023
{5, In Lakhs} it In Lakhs)
Accrued Inverest O Depaosing 1,18 2.94
Total ..... 3.18 2.34
13 |Other Current Agsets Asat hsat
31/03,/2024 A1/0373023
{Rs. In Lakhs) | (Rs. In Lakhs)
(3] |Advances Lo Seppliors A%.30 12,76
(b} |Prepaid Expenses .66 21.54
il [Diher Advances b3R8 G494
[d] | Ralsnces with Statutory Authorities 1.7 .09
Tokal ... Gr.0a 4533
Az at fis al
11 |Equity Share Capital 31,03 F034 31/03 2023
[Rs. I Lakhs) [Ks. In Lakhs)
[lAuthorived Share Capinal:
SELCCoad 8y, 50 000000) Equlty Shares af H5.10 ench ELH1H B0, 00
[ii] lswsed, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital :
A2 00,000 (42,00, 00 Encity Shares of 15, 10 cach fully paid A70.040 43000
Total..... 430,00 i 200
seihing |
141 e comgany has aily one class of shafes relerred bo as Equity shares hiwing face value of Bs 10/~ Each Holder of

edrnly shiare ivontitled to 1 vwote pershare

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receqve any of the
femaining assets of the company,-altes distributlon of all preferential amounts. However, no such profecential
arnements paist currently, The distribution will be in pragartion 1 the number of equity shares held by the sharcholder,

I
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Luring the financial year the company has sflatted Ml [PLY. Nil| Bonus shargs, The Company has neighter by back mor
b forfieted Ay amount of sharesin the perad oflast five years.
4 Reconciliation of the namber of shares outstanding and the amount of sharsa capital as at 31,/0%372024 & | 31/032023
s st oot bebow;
As at 31/03/2024 A= at 31032023
|Particulars ;EL [fx. In Lakhc) Er::'r:: [Rz. In Lakhs)
Shires at the boginning A2, 00,000 A 20000 A2 800 A0 150
Addition ¢ 1] mil Ml Mil
Balotion il : Bl il |
Shares-at the end 42,00, 000 420,00 42.00,000 A7)0
144 (The details of Share holding mare than 5 % is setout brelow,
A5 a1 31033024 fs at 31003/ 2023
Mame of Sharcholder Mo, of SChicl M. af S s
Sharos Shares
Vijgykumar D, Apardal 15,76, 100 17.59% 15, 76, 1040 1]
Santoshdau V. Arareal LAT 200 5 RGrK 247,200 o
18.5 | The detois of Shareholding by Promators is set out below,
As al 31703,/2000 As at 31/03/2023
Name of Shareholder Mo, of Mo, of
Shares ydiicc Shares dia s
Vilogkurmar 0. Agarveal 15,716,100 I1.53% 35, 76,000 1
Ruchira . Apdewal 1,16,800 L TR 1. 16,800 0
Vanita ¥, Aparemal FT.T00 | 1L.B5% 17,700 ]
Vikas ¥, Agarwal 167,500 A.D0% 1,672,800 0
Shracidha isnal Aparasl 1,20 300 2.H6% 1,20,300 [}
Auditt Vishal Agarwal 203 G000 4 85% 203,600 4]
-":F'.I'.'ill'ﬁll Wikarih Aparwal 1,400,100 2385 100,100 d
Arya Vikas Agareeal 1,494,200 1.63% 1,54, 30 (1]
5.':||]|l:lb|'|llj-l|!'|'l W Aparwal 47,000 G B 2.4 L] 1
[Vishal ¥ Aparwal 1,38,300 3.29% 1,38,300 0
Asat Asat
15 |Other Equity 3/03/2024 | 31/03/2023
M Lalhs] {Ra. |n Lakhs)
[a] |General Reserve
falance as per last financial Statement 2114 2318
fuded + Anddition during the year nall (E|
Lets! Tramsde durng the yaor Hil il
Closing Balance 73,18 2314
()  (Retdined Earmings
Liatance os per last inancial Staterment 1.B16.E0 1461734
A : Bralit lor the' year 230050 12872
ﬁﬂm"lLE'EEI': Db Cormprebensiee Incoime [11.06] (8.a7)
Mist Sorides it the statement of peolit and loss 2 056,82 1.E816.H9
Total ... QED.EII:I 1, 860.07

subseguent by o ol or ks,

Gengral Reserve ; The genaral reserve 15 used from time to Gime to transfar pealits from retained frarnings for
appropriatien purpases. General reserve is oreatod by g vrosster fraim eoe component of Uity to-anather and is not
an ltam of other comprehensive income, and the ltems included in the paneral fesorea will not be recloss lied

comprehensive Income nat of tax

Rotalned earnings: The armount tht can be distributed tiy the Compasy as dividends to fis eiuily sharsholders is
dotermingd Based on the-separate financial statements of the Comgany and alse considering the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013, Thus, the amounts reporied above are not distributable in ErLireLy,

Other Comprehensive Inceme: The remeasurerent gain £ (loss) un nel defined henelit plare & recopnised in Other
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As at s at
16  |Non-Current Borrowings 3/03/2074 117033023
IRE, In Lakhs) {RE. In Lakhs)
Secured Borrowings
Térrm Lasan frcem Banks 143.25 1EDES
Less s Current maturities of long=term debt 45,88 PR
[Less : Transdor o Currgnt Borrowing Note MNo.149) 94,37 107,25
Unsecured Dorrowings
Inter Corpoerate Deposits 17.81 B
Total.... 112,18 173.73
16,1 |Kame of Lender Security Detakls Interast Mate o
Hepayimoent
becured Ageinat Hypothscation Repagails:
Lesaris Against Winkches af Vehicles FRNSEICEER 0] - It oo
Hto 925 H Monthly Eoual
instalmpnis
Extensign of second ranking
charpes over calsting primary
FCLGS Term Laan From Aanks and colleteral securitfes indluding B.215%H A5 Months
inorages created in favour ol
L Bank,
. Hy puthesiptian agalnst Offloe
Baiiidne Term Loan From Dankk " A0 167 Months
buldings,
16,2 | Unsetused nter-corporste deposits caeries Interest do 9.00% and Fre repavalie in F.Y, 2024-25,
Thas orfowing rom this Banks has beon used Toe the speciiic purpose for which i was taken ot the balonce cheat
16,3 i
As at As at
17 |Mon Current Provi 31032024 31032023
[Rg. In Lakhs} {R5 In Ln‘:I:EL_
Fravision lor Employec Beoefits
For Gratuity [ Boles Mata 8o 29.1) 100,36 G0
Total .. 100,36 79,05
——
Asat Asat
18 [Deforead Tax Linkilities (Mat) 3170372024 31/a3/2023
{RE. In Livkhs] {Rs. In Lakhs)
Deferred Tax Liabilitics
lemporary Uiflerence of Depreciation as per lnooene Tax Provisions and
{Companios Act, 2013, 129.84 126.51
124.84 1251
{Deferrod Tax Asiots
irrawasion for Eipectod Credi, foss on Trade Receivabiles 15418 .90
Prauizion far Expenses allowable i sibsaquenst years 32.29 £2.97
a7.76 30.93
Met Deferred Tak Liability “77.08 g95.57
; Property, : - iy o .
Mowvements in Deferred Tax Uabllities ¢ Dofined benefit Dimunition in Provisicn for
Flant and ;
[Aasets) : obiigation Inyestments doubiful debis
Equipmomnt
At Aprild, #0232 126.68 115,77 il [6.03]
Chprged e redited);
to profit o loss Q.18 13.85) Hil [1.04
-t othes cormprehensive income 13.34] hil il
At 31sk March, 2023 126.51 (2197 il {156
Charpged/Teredited):
-t profit or Ioss (1671 {ROR] H] [T 1]
- 1o Glher compretiensive feppmg il
it 115t March, 20724 2404 | {15.45)
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fs at As.at
19 (Current Borrowings 21/03/20024 3i/03 7023
{fs. In Lakhsh | {fis in Lakhs)
Secured Enrmwlmil
Warking Capltal keans From Bank (Repayable on Demand) 1,184,274 B16.73
Curranl mnturities of Long-Tarm Debt qR.ER 13,40
[Leas | Tromsfer from Men-Currént Borrgwing Note No, 16)
Unsrcured Bosrowing
Loans from relited parties 739.95 fiiE.52
Total ... 1,983.07 1,658.66
19.1 [Security ;
Nama of Lendier SOCurity | imterest Rate
Frimury Scourlly  apainst Hypothecation il
Inventary, Recoivabdes an other Corrent Asscls of
'l ; al 225t0
Worksan Capital Loans From Bank the Company. Collateral Security  against ]
H'p'ﬂﬂlthE'f-:l';{"ﬁ al F.'||:I:|:|r',' |_§I.|i||;_|||'.E mod Coammnang ol LS a4}
Cffice. Personal Gurantess of twe Directors of the
Laans rom Aelatod Parties Unsecurcd Loans 4% p.a.
19.2 [The barrowing, frorm the Banks has been used fer the specific purpose Tor which if was taken at the balae shost
st
1%.3 [The company has been not doclared ag willful defaulter by Reseroe farik of India till 31/03/2024,
18,9 (Details in respect of Differenca in respect of Current assets a5 per books #nd details as provided in quigterly ratiar s
[ited Bry the comaany, the details of the same are os undor
Amounts as
Amgunts my reported |n i Rpasen for
Gite,  \Particilore of Security pravided to HOFE Bank | por books of Quarterly b : material
ifferene
ACCOUNTE Statemont Discripancies
provided b bank
June’23 1Crechitors 1.284.15 H15.41 168.74 fiofer Noba ]
RS Loy 223740 2,275,094 746 | Reler MNote 2
Septl'2 fCreditors 1236906 For.ng LELRE Roler Mate 1
Dec'23 [Croditors 121874 | TT3.86 AI4.B9 |  Refer Note 1
Wlarch’ ;
: x Bebtor 347232 3,506.24 (30.08)|  felor o2
Itdarch® |
) 1,713.45 587,71 54624 |  Hoter Note 1
Amounis as
AmMdaunts a repoitod i il
otr Particulirs of Seowrity provided to i hm;:' ;Nrtmlm Amount of RE“:HI Iur
i } U3 . eria
HIFC Bank iy 4 Dilference mﬂ_' ,
accounis Statement Discripancics
provided to bank -
D22 | Creditons 1.151.65 1, 188,84 (3519  Reler Note 2
Mlarch’
4 InvEniies 2,218,895 I6V.11 [98.16]] Feler Moz 2
Marcly’
13 Deltors 3 7E7.RL 2,728.73 59.19 tefer Hote 2
foteil Due to Crediters against LC & Buyers Credit are not required to disclosad In stock statement submitted 10 the
Bk as pir wclvice & instruction of the bank.
i Wote 2 Due to unaudiled provisional figsres submitted to bank which hove spme clarical ermors.
Aot Asal
20 |Trade payables 3t fo3f 024 1100372023
(R In Lakhs] (R4, I Lakhs)
tutstinding dues al Micrn enterprise and Small Entergrizs 1.35 Ml
Outstanding dues of creditars other than Micro enterprise and Small Enterarise 1,724 10 1.778.06
| fatal ... 123345 1,278.06
p—
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A

Lo

20.1  [Ageing Dotads
MSME Trado Other than MSME Trada
A% on 3132004 Fayables Payables
Disputcd Undisputod Disputed Undisputed
Outstanding Lets than 1 Years L 4,45 hail 1,208.02
Uutstanding betweon 1 year to 2 Years il il Hil mil
Durtstanding between 2 year 10 3 Years Hil il LT L5
Cubtanding, More than 3 Yeors Hil Kl il 1212
Total il 4.35 Mil | 1,725.10
PMSME Trade Other than MSNE Tragde
AL en 31.3.2023 Fayablas Payables:
Dbsputed Undisputed Disgruted Undisputod
Durstonding Less than 1 Years il il il 126543
Outstanding hatwean 1 yoar 162 Yiars il riil Hil Hil
Latstamding belwiesen 2 year 1o 3 Years il Ml Il L
Dutstanding More than 3 Years Hil pi il .52 |
Tatal Hil flil Kl 127806
’ Thiz st figuires i respect of trade payabies Fsclude an amount of Ks, 853 Lakhs (1%, 65 80 Lukda) payableto Firms
e and comganies in which directors are partner oo dircetors. (Refor Rote :33),
Thix campany has nat entered in to any transactisn with campranies struck off under section 248 of the Companics
2035 Lo 3013,
204 |Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises hive been determingd to the extant such parties have been fdentilied on the
biwis ol the information coflected by the Managament and the same has boon refled by the audinr,
Under the Mics, Snall and Medium Enterprises Development Acl, 2006, (MSMED] which came in 1o force fro
U210, 4006, cortain disclosers are required to-be made relaning to Micro, Small and Mediom enterprises. On Lhe basis
0.5 |ol the information and records avallable with management, vutsianding dues to the Micro and Small enterprise as
defined in the MSMED Act, 2006 are disclosod as bolow and this has been reiled upon By the Auditor ;
Asat Asat
Irartieulars I 0 31/03/202%
(Fs. In Lakhs) [R5, In Lakhs)
The Brincipal amaunt sernaining unpiid (@ any supglier 25 at the year end 4.35 Kil
b perast doe thareon ~ EE Kil
funount of interest pald by the Company in teemgaf section 16 of MSMED At il it
Armount of interast dul;-llnn:l payate Fer the period of delay in meking papmsem
[which have been paid but bayond the appointed day during the year] but 1,65 Ml
wiithawt odeing thar interest specified under thie MSMED 2004
Arngont of imorest accrued g remmaini ng unpald at the endl of attounting o.00 il
il
*-Tr' aemount of further interest rémaining due and payable ivenin the succeding
yoars, unddl such date when the interest dues abiove are actually paid ko the small
enterprise for the purpode of disallowance of a deductibde expendijure wnder 165 il
socteem 23 of Micro, Srsall ad Medium Enter prise Deselopenent Act, 2006
Bisckwurn of payahle to vendors as defined wnder the “Micra, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Acl, 20067
iv. hased on thein larmation avaiabio with the Company regarding the stotus of registrotion of such vendars wsdes [he
snd Act, a5 per thee intimation received from them on requests made by the Company and the same has bean eelied
g Lhe Audditesr.
Az an As o
21 [Other il Lisbilites iLfaa/ 2024 317032023
[R5, In Lakhs] [R5, in Lakhs)
Emplowgea Henefite Poyabile 26100 170,29
Irierast Payahle 1771 11.01
fTUG i 17871 18130
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Ax al Mg at
2} |Dther Cwrrend Liablities 311037024 J1fa3fanea
tH=. In Lakhs} (RS, In Lakhs)
Mebvisnog recelved ffom customess 136,90 — 196,59
Creditors Tor Expenses 34015 0078
Ortbeer Statutory dues 7332 317
Oiher Payablos t:' 15 11,52
Lot . HhEAa7 535.06
221 |Apcing Details of Creditors For Exponses
MSME Tragde Other thon MSME Trade
AS an 1.5 3004 Fayables F.'l\l.'rhl_g-s.
Bisputued Undisputed Disputid Undisputed |
Diststanding Less than 1 Years “Hil 11.81 Ml i g
Cutetanding between 1 year o 2 Years i Kil il 1732
Chrrstanding beteseen 2 year W 3 Years il Hil Ml G679
Sutstanding More than 3 Years TH il il 205
Total Mil 11.81 il 32B.39
—
PILMIE Trade Other than MSME Trade
A5 om 3132023 Piyables Fayahles
Disputod Undisguted Dispater Undispuiied
Clutstanding Less than 1 Yoars Kl 7.30 il ITGEH |
Dutstanding batween 1 yeadio 2 Yoars il il Hil B2
Dutstanding betwoen 2 year (o 3 Years i Rl Hil 4.3 |
Dutstanding More than 3 Youars Hil Tl Hil 4.56
Taotal HIE__ 7.30 = il 283,44
Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) which comse in to force [rom
02102006, certain disclosers are required to be made relating to Micra, Small and Medium enterprisss, On tho basls
222 Jal the information and recards available with management, outstanding dues 1o the Micre and Small onLorprise as
(delined incthe MSMED Act, 2006 are disclosed as bolow and this has been reiled wpon by the Auditor.:
Az ot As at
Fuatigulaes /032024 31087023
{Rs.dn Lakhe} | {fs In Lakka)
Thi Principal amounl r@maining unpaig (o s supplier as ag the veor end 15.25% .30
Interest disp Thieeo 340 L
Armaumi ol interess paad by the Company in terme ol section 16 of MSMED Ao il i
Amaunt of interest due and payable for the peciod-of delay In making gawnent
{which hanve beon paid but beyond the appointed dey during the year] bt 300 0.0
without adding theinterest specifiéd under the MSMED 2006,
Amount of interest accroed and Femaining unpaid 30 the g &f Aeeaunting i D06
LT
the amigaint of further interest reenaining due and payable evon in thi succeding
yurars, untll such date when the Inforest dugs above ar actually paid ta the small
terpise for e parpose Ol disallowance of o deduttiblo sxponditure: undear 140 {154
dection 23 of Micrd, Small and Mediem Cntorpeise Developrment Aoy, 2006,
Lh'.ir.lu.xune of gayabile w vendbers as defined dndor the “Micro, Small 2nd Bediem Enterprise Developmant Act, 20067
it hased an the Informdion dwailable with the Campany regarding tho statug of reglutration of such vendors undar (e
530 ACT, S per the itimation recesved frem them on requests made by the Company and the same has been rolied
Fige o b Auditor,
Ag at A5 ot
23 |Curfent Provisions 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
— {Rs. In Lakhs) | {Rs. In Lakhs)
Pravision {or Employees Benefits
Far faalyily { Aefer note ao. 29) 15,30 13.44
Tolal ... 15.70 13.50
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

| 24 [Currant Tax Labilitics (et} A5 at Az at
31f03/2024 317032023
[Rs In Lakhs] [R5, In Lalde)
Provasinn Far baeome T 140165 11404
Less Advamee Paymeast OF Income Tan 12,18 2.39
Tatal ..., 125,47 111.65
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

: For the Year For the Year |
25 |Revenue from operation ke kP
31/03/ 074 31/03,2023
{Rs. In Lakhs) | {Rs. i Lakhs)
fevenue from Contracts with Customers®
Sales ol Products
Finlshed Goods 750551 7,708,464
7509 51 71 HIE G4
Jther Oporating Rovenee
Export Benelit ) Duty Drawback eceived 114.55 11022
Scrap Sales, 912 1313
Todal . o 730009
* Rovone lrom Contracts with Customers iz alper proveiding discounts relited to Sale of products
a) Reconciliation of Revenge recognised in ghe statemient of prafit apd oss with the Contragled Rripe =
5 = ~ | Fortha Yaar Tor the Fear
— ended ended
31/03/2024 31f03/1023
{Rs. In Lakls) 1A% ki La khs)
Gorgris Rgvon pe 1 3TAR FEI0E
b Relate & Disogunt oic [118.55) 130.22]
Rewenue recopnised frorm Contract with Custamers 7.604.53 7,719.87
(b] Recanclliation of Revenue from operation with Revenue fram eontracts with Custamers =
For the Yepr For thi Yoar
W ended ended
F1/03/ 2024 I 3 2023
(A5 I Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Nayenee fiom aparation F.I2T.18 T RAT A
jLizgs: Caport Incontive (118.55) (£10.22]
Revenue from contracts with L'ug.tnmms. 7.608.63 T 71%ET
26 |Other income Far the Fear For the Yoar
i endeid
31 03,2024 31/032023
[Bs. In Lakhs) [s, In Lakhis]
Comenission Incomsa 0.t Wil
Interest Ineome lrem degoesis 5497 137
Insurance Claim Received 14.62 418
Fareign Exchange Flischuation {Beg) 20,19 {12
Gain /| Ledsh on Disposal of Property, Plant & Equiprment il 1.14
Total ... SOL55 T1.80
—
27 |Cost of Matesials Cansumed For the Yoar Forthe Year
. endod ondod
30352024 117032023
LR, Im Laklis} fRs. In Lillish
Irventasry at the boginning of the year LATLSY 148047
Adifs Purchase Mt 45420 A 854,09
Less: rventory af the end ol thoyear 1,220.70 1,411.51
Cost of Materials Consume 4,685.01 4,534.14
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

For the Year For tho Yoar

28 |Change In Inventories Of Finished Goods,Work In Progress A Stock In Trade ended thded
= 310372024 310371023

— (R, Im Lakhs| (AL In Lakhs) |
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Wark-in-poces 1107 11.24
Fimishied Goods 106,04 502 GG
a07.11 56380
Inventory &t the end of the year
T T TR 620 1143
Fnished Gooos gpK.x2 TEO 04
917.52 BOT. 1L
Decretion [ [Aceretion) te Stock 110a3) !143.31.|
8.5 |petatls of Inventory
Finshiod Gomids
Livminnbed Shaiots BG4 11 5,39
ndustriad Insulation 9.11 0.65
308,22 756,04
Work [n Projross
Laminated Sheets .30 109
9.30 11.07
For the Year Firr thi: Yoar
cndod onded
29 [mployen Bansfi Expense 303028 | 31/03/2023
{Rs, In Lakhs} qfs. biv Lakhs] |
Salary, Wages & Sonus Fhr.13 63 O
Padmaperal Lemuneration 15168 15526
Cantrifsation to Peovident Fund & Gther Funds 3714 17.28
Total ... 952.95 55,61
o (FIEH FLSI:I.E' the l:l:!mpu-m-' has pecopnized in the financial statements in respects of Employes Benofits Schemas as por
Actuariz] Valuation as on Tist March, 2024,

a, [Amount of Defined Beacfie Obligation in respect of Gratulty liabilit 18 reganised in the balance sheet as Follows:
Farticulars Prajected Wit Crediy I'-'I-nil-n-nzl' Fi
Pegiod Cosered 1033-24 202223

A, [Chanpe in defined benetit ebligation 31/03/2024 31,/03/32023
Balined benealit abHpation ot beginning of period 132.67 105,85

4 [Service Cost il Hil
a, Current service cost 13.50 11.30
k. Parsl service cosl il il
C. [Gaind J loss o selEments Kl Hil

3 Il Eres] eRpenass .29 Bl

4, lE.’JEII lleras Hil mil

B JRemeusunements
a, Ellect af changas in demopraphic assumptions il kil
b, THect of chanpes in fingnclsl assumpiions .56 [5.59]
L. Elfect ol gaperence adjustments 15,57 £ 8l

L1 Translar in f Ot
&, Tranelor In Il
la, Teimalee ol {".il |

¥ |Bebined bensbic ehligation s emi of perod 132.67




DECO-MICA LIMITED

i, Clhiange in fair valug of plan assels 31/03/2024 31/0352023
1. |Farvaloe ol plan assets at beginning of period 50,11 4%,15
Z interest incpmea 275 2.34
Fo PCansh o
A lermaasuromienls
. H2iurn on plan assets {eacleding nberest ineame] 0.83 O.ED
S [Tronsles In il
a Transter in .54 [
by Tramsder aut il Hil
Henefit Pald [#57] [ R
ff,  IFair yalieol plan issets ot end of period 51.56 SOL1L
L |Amounts fecegnized in the Financal staterment 31/03/3024 IL/03/2023
1 |Detined enalit obfgation 167,652 112 67
" Falr vakue of glan assets {51.56) (GO EL]
= Transdeid stadis 116,06 HI GG
# Effect of asel celling M il
B Mt defined bonefit bty [aaset) 11606 42 55
0. |Employer Expanse (PAL) 31/03/2024 | 31/03/702%
a Lurrent Service Los| 13.50 11.30
b, Interest Cost on net DAG 553 311
. Pt Sorvice Cost il H
o, Total PG L Expernses 19.04 i4.01
F.  |Met defined benefit liability (asset) recondliation 34/03 2024 I1S0%/7023
1 Rt delined benedit fizbilisy (resat) B2.56 567
i fUelhned berelil cost included In PEL 15.04 14.41
3, (Tatal Rermpasuromants included in L 15.3% 1201
i; & Emplayar centnbutions [Ega) 5 }'J‘
b. Emploper direct boneflt paymeants il Nil
. Employer directsetthament payrments Hil
i P W transler Hil Hil
. [Neudalined benefit Hability (asset) 2 ol end of pericd 11606 Bi.56
F. [Sipnificont setuarial assumptionsg 317032024 11033023
1 |Qisteunt rate Current Year T.20% G100
2, |Discgnant rate Previous Year Kil Wil
3 Salary increase rakg 700 700,
G.  |Expected cash flows for lollowing year 3103024 31/03/2023
L. |Espected employor contribartions £ Addl Provision Next Year 15.70 3.5
F Espocted tatal benelil payrnents
Yoar i 55.69 41,50
Yidr 2 206.85 22.36
Teard 1753 19,56
Trard 2214 1242
Yoar & 16,09 1550
Mokl & yours 5397 4101
H.  |Defined benelit oblipation at end af period 31/03/3034 31,/03/20213
Currenl Obfgation 15.70 13.50
Koen-Carcent Obligation 100,365 9.5
Total 11606 #2.56
SUMBARY
Aseats [ Linkdlitios 3103 02 31/03/2023
1. |Gelined benchit obligation at end of period 116.0% EYER
£ |Falr walue of plan assols ot end of pariad 5156 fhal
L |Mat defined benoli Eabilivy [assey 349 3244
i, Lefined brnedit oot mcluded sn PE( 1004 14141
+o |Tatal Remeddurements included in OO0 1531 1201
ko |Total defined benafit cost recopnizedin FEL and OC 34,34 P
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

. |sensibeity ta koy assumpiions 31/03/3024 31/03 2023
(Fiscgunt Rate Sensitivrty
Incremie by 0.5% 154,85 130,48
Decraase by 1L5% 17051 134,43
Salary Growth Bate Seasithity
IncrEase by O, 4% 16T HS 13443
Decrease by 5% 165 5 130,55
Withdrawil rote |W. R Sensstivity
UL R 168,30 133,08
WL, W SO0 166,80 13215
30 |Fnanes Cocts Tor the Yo Tor Lse Yoar
B T ended ended
31/032029 33/03,2023
[Fs. Iin Lakhs) [Hs. I Lakhs)
Inberast Paid to Bank 100.63 G071
Interesy Paid to Others .63 7Bl
Other borrwing cost __3sim .04
Tatal ..... 2X8.499 23F.7h
il |Beprediation And Amortisation Exponse For the Yeor Fopr tha Yiear
ended ended
31033024 31/03/2073
{R5. In Lakls) (A5 I Lokhs)
I_.ri'vl.'||u-:|.i:|.1||:l|1 o Prosperty, Plant and Equipment 127.20 130,78
Arriisation of Intanpibile Assers Mil il
Tuii,..-. i 12?.2_0 (o i |
Far thi ¥ioar Far the Yeur
caded andaed
3 |Dther Exgenses 31f03/2004 | 31/03/2023
{Rs. in Eakha)] | [Rs. 10 Lakhs) |
Stiares f Spares consnmed 1805 20406
Heg king Material Consrmed arig S0.09
Electricity & Fuel charpes 04 3R 174,73
Nogaies Tas
Bullding 1.05 4.00
Plant & Machinery iria 46494
Other 1.0 382
Total ... n2.22 581
InsLiFaAncE n57 14 05
Hemit h3.H2 A5AG
Hales & Taxes 439 569
Hationery & Printing 444 4,04
Adwirtisgment & Sabes Promobon Expense 310.23 R LRI
felephone and Postaps 49,03 A6,34
Traveling & S eyaaoe Expense 1137 15832
Hrofissional Foes 29,47 19.52
Fralithil & Dalivery charpes JH2 10 E1EE I F
Auditar's Romunerst e
For Audit Fegs .95 .75
Far Tax Audit Fees s (LR
Tor Cerilieatson 0.1z OiG
For Incoma T & Consultancy 1.2 2.06
fotal ..... 158 547
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

Provision for Expected Credit Loss {ECL- Refere note:dd {1tiih 22.00 PR
Lerss f {Gaing pn Disposal of Propenty, Mans & Eouigemertf Mt ) 13 (4]}
Had Doelats Wiritten Back{Met) T EE (%.38]
Donatisn 124 A.33
St UnEy Chirges 235940 22.00
Geners] Charpes 5352 4645
linciiiing License Fees, Ofice & Mise, Expensec fdrmn
Charges, Servico and water charnges SETViCaE|
Total — 154106 1,663,210
13 |y T ; e Far tha Yoo For the Year
o Pl i
— endad ended
317032024 3103121023
{its. In Lakhs| (R4 In Lakhs)
{Current tia 1I8 .50 10280
Tax expense related o peior yoar 519 4,64
136,64 10744
Delerred tix liakilty / [assais) [14,24) (.Sl
120 [5.0]
Tt ... 12245 | 101.48 |
Income tak reconciliation
For the Yenr For the Yoar
Barticsi Ended ondad
FUICULErs
3103,/2034 21/03/2023
[R=. In Lokhs) |Rs. In Lakhs
Profit befora tax 153,41 FHLEY
T papenises reported during the year 12245 1144
I i experses calculatod at 27.83% 9B 33 91,72
Dillerence 24.13 9.76
Formanant Disadlowances 14 88 541
Migr Peringd tax -3 ] A
Oiher lbemms DG DB
Total 2413 2.76
3 [Statement of Other Comprehensive incoma For the Year Far the Yesr
ended ended
3103 0a a3/ oz
(R In Lakhs) [Re. In Lakhs|
(1] Items that will not be reclassified to profit and koss
Hemyasurcieil ol defined benefit plang
Actuarial paing] o) 115.31) {12.01]
§i) Incame tax relating 1o these Bems that will not b raclassified to prodit ane
lass
Daferrod tax impact on actuarial gainfloss) 4.26 3134
Tofal ... 11.05 {8.67)
T 1. BHA

LN E ] 0 ) ::'_.;'.":1_1_':.\:" -
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

35 |Earning per Share
For the Yoar For e Year
Linit andid ended
31/03,2024 31/03/z023
Frafil Attributable (o Eguity Share Holders frie Continuing : y
Olperations (Prafit after Tas] e, |y Lokl 43098 .ty S
YWeghied averapes Mo, ol shares used as denominatar lor
catcuilating Basic and Biluted Mumbers In Likhs #4300 12.00
Homina! Yalue ol Share in R 10.00 BT
tacic-and Dluted Earnbmgs per Shase in Bs, 5.50 5,43
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DECO MICA LIMITED

36 Nelated Party Disclosures

AlList of Relatod Porties

List of Koy Management Personnel with whom

1 T o
transaciions have pccurred during the year e g
Shre Yy kumar D Aparwal Managing Director
Shirs Wishisl ¥ Agarwal Riractor and €10
Shri Vikas ¥ Aparwal SAdd vonad Rirectar
Kihaelka Mot |T5) Company Secretary {Appoinied w.e.f 01.04.2023)
i I Xy
3 Naene of cipsr mambers of family of Xy selationship

Managemeny Firsonnet

Aarya ¥ Ay wal

Khwaish V Agiirvaal

shraddha ¥ Agare ok

Santashslow Viggekurnue Agarwal
Wijaykuimiar Dindayal Aparwal HUF
Vikashkusonir Vijaykumas Agarwal HUE

Uadghter o Additianal Qirecsor
Dauzhter ol Additional Directar
Wite ad Additional Director

wWite ot Maraging Lurectar
KManaging Director is Karta of HUF

Adidinonal irector ic Kana al HUF

List of entities In which Koy Manpgensent Porsangg! huve coatral or sipnificant inflysige with whom

il,ransactmm have eccyrred during tha year

Haritage Board L8,

Herilope Decoralive Swiaces LLP
Haritapge ndustees Bvt. Ltd
Horitage Laminales it Led
Hidewgn nnnwation

Megasal Glubal Sanca|

Salasar Losminates Lid.

Xrlshaa Decor Pvi {m

V K t gundatioct
V.K.A, Finance % Invesiment Co.
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DECO MICA LIMITED

C. Outstanding (Rs.In Lakhs)
As at 31.03.2024 As at 31,03.2023
Trade and Trade and
Related party other Payabia :::::: ather Payabls :::LT{::
Receivable Receivable

Key Management Parsonnel

Shrl Vijaykumar D, Agarwal il 2743 253.56 Mil 585 234,55
Shri Vishal V Agarwal Nl 83 63 160,55 Nil 4072 128.30
Shii Vikas ¥ Agarwal | 14.34 169,83 Nil 11.91 175.60
Siddhi Shah il Mil il | il 0.3 Hil
Niharika Modi Nil 0.39 NI il 0.41 Hil
Total Nil 135.79 603.94 Ml 68.12 538.46
Relathves and Key Management

Personned

Aarya V' Agarwal il Hil 26.93 Nl Nl 24.01
[Ehwwaish W ﬂamal PHII Bl I7.30 i} II! Nili 25,26
Santoshdevi v Agarwal | Nil] 0.32 il Hil 0.29
Shraddha V Agarwal il 108,16 il Ml 80.58] nil
Shel Vijaykumar D, Agarwal HUE il il B.55 Hil Nil| 7.91
Shri Vikas V Agarwal HUF il wil 19.47 il Nil 18.01
Total Nil 108.16 82.57 Nl 80.58 76.38
Entitics controlled by

Directors/Relative of Directors

VA, Finanee & Investmant Co. il 0.92 53,44 il 053 53.69
Salasar Laminates Lod, Ml 2.53 il Mil 44552 il
Salasar Agropanel Put. Lud il hi Ml il il Hil
Heritage Board Ltd. Bhirmasar .93 Mil h.liII Kl 12.8E Ml
Heritage Board Ltd, Vada il il Nil| il Nil Nl
Heritage Board Lid. Banglore il il il 5.51 Nil Mil
Heritage Industries Pyt. Ltd Nl Nil Nil il Nil il
Heritage Larminates Put. Lid BLR 31169 Mil Ml BT.OF Mil Hil
Heritage Laminates Pvt. Lid DEL 41.63 il Mil 11.59 Mil Ml
Hidesign Innavation 56,75 il Nil 71.76 Nt il
Kirshna Décor Pyt Ltd NIl Nil il Nil Hil il
Megasol Global Sante il Nil Mil Nit 3.41 Nil
Heritage Decorative Surfaces LLP 174.53 il | 174.53 Nl Ml
Total 501,53 1.45 53.04 330,55 66.39 53.69
|Grand Total 591.53 235.40 739,95 330,55 215.08 668.52

~ SHAH &
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

Kotes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statemenis for the year ended on 31" March’2034,

17 [Contingent liabilitles & Commitments
a. II'i':ruF-?d" Uemand of Income Tas of Rs 17897 Lakhs (1Y Rs. 18.63 Lokha} agninst: which company kad (i
rechlicotion agpiications and the sime are not disposad by the Income Tax Department.
b, [The Company has receved Shew Cause Motice during the yoar for Demand of GST of Re. 5,28 Lakhs [P¥. . Wil
L. |Letter of Crodit Outstanding on the balance sheet dato s for Hs. 506.28 Lakhs WY R 324,74 Lakhs),
& Hank Guarantes gven by Benk b Costom Department Be 575 Lakhs, [PY. s, 5,95 Lakhis].
¢ [Capital Cornmittement of Rs, 27.72 Lukhy [P0 Bs: N6 Lakhs) lor which company has paid s 23.22 Lakhs (P¥, s
EEET Lakhs) which are shown under “Cither Bon-Current Asseis
L{There was Customer Chaims against the Compary amounting to fs, 45,21 Locs (1LY, Hs Milf, in Hon'ble Distice
Conwirnees [ispute Radressal Comemittea
B | There are cerlain pending tibour & Employess casas against the Company, for which amoont & nat pacertainabla
38 |Segment Reparting
Ihe Company's management, consisting of the chief oxecutive officer, tha chief Anancial olficer and the mdnagor for
corporale planding, moniors the operating results ol the tefow B segments sepiestely for the pupose of
miaking decisions about rosource allecation and performande assessment and G cesedingly, based on the principles for
derermingtion ol segments given in indlan Accounting Standard 102 "Operpting Segments “and in the opinkon of
management the Co, i3 primanily engaged in the business of Decorative Laminatod theets, Al ather activitios ol Hhe
Lo, revalve around the main business and as such there s no separate reportable bysiness sepment,
e oporations of the campany are confined 1o India as well as oulside India with export cantributing 1o 25.27 % |:|-1.'|'.
4516 %) of ennval tumover. Hence in view of the managernent India and paxgorts maskst répresents diilerant
nepgraphicel sepment,
Secondary sepment information for the vear endod 315t March, 2024,
Particulars India Outshde lndia fel
(Rs. I Lokhs)
Revenue by Geegraghical 416510 356308 Lradas
|k [5,116.01) (2,714.08) (7, 830.04]|
Carrying Arnount of Sapmont 1,352.55 nil 1,252 55
Assets (Non current assets) [ 1,293.53 il 124853
Details of customer contributing 10% or more of t6Eal revenue:
 Particulars 202324 202221
Ko, of customers contributing 10% or megeeaf total reveniue {individa ally| il 1.00
Armaunt of revenug 772714 7.830.00
% of total revenue ril ik G
35 [Romuneration to dirgctors
% e, e 2324 202223
{ s In Lakhs) [Ra. in Lakhs]
1 Salang£ Banis 143,00 144,00
2 PEIQUiSiles 063 1134
Taxtl 15168 L5524
A Contribution to Provident Fund i 518
Total I58.B7 150.45
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

43

Fimancial risk managament

The Compairy has exposure to the Tellowlng risks arising lrom linandal nstruments:
Credit Kisk

Lignid Risk

Market Nisk

Risk Managoment Framework:

The Compary’s risk managemant is governed by policics and approved by the board of directors. Comypuny’s
ientifies, evaluates and hedpges financial risks in close. co-oporation with the Company’s operating unics. The
comgany has pobicies for gverall sk manegement, as well ds godicies covering soocilic areas, s a5 lexpinn
{exchange risk, intorost rate dsk, cradit risk, use of dacvitive financisl instruments and non-derivatiee ﬁnm.nimh
inst rumsengy

The Campany’s board of directors has overall responsiaility for the estatdishment and oversipht of the Company's
risk managemaent lrgrmework, The Company manages markel fsk through  tressury department, which evaluates
acd eworcies independent control over the entirg process of market fisk management. The treasury départmen
recammands risk managemeant objedctives and poficles, which are-approved Iy Board of Directors. The aetivilis of
this department include management of cash resources, borrowing strategles, and enuring compliance with markis
risk imits and policees,

The Compady’s risk management policies are established to ident@y and analyse the nsks tacod by the Company, 1o
sitl apprapripte risk mivsand eonirols and t monlbor rlsks and adherance to lirmits: Bisk rhosagement poficics and
Fysterms dre (eviewid ragularly to reflect changes in markot conditions and the Cermpany’s activities. The Coenpany,
through its trainkng and management standards and procedures, sims to maintain a dizciplined and construcils
cantrel pevironment in wiich ll employecs understand theie rales and obligations,

The audlt commilIoe nversees how management monitors compliance with the company's risk management policies
and procedurss, and iviews the-adequeacy of the risk management framowork n relation to the fsa faoed by thia
Comgrany, The audit committee 5 assisted. in its oversipht rale by intermal aucht, Internal oudit undartakes both
regular and ad hoo reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which ane reganled 1o tho
il commitiee,

Criedit Risk

Credit risk relers tocthe risk that o countgrparty will del@ule on it eontractual obilpations resdting in financial loss to
thee Company. The Chanpany is exposed 1o credit rigk from its operating activisies [primarily trade receivables], cash
and cash equivalents and othor firancial Instruments.

Cugtomar credit risk i munaged by each business unit slsject 1o the Company's established policy, procedures and
conteed refating to the customer cradif sk management. Outstanding customer recelvables are regularly monitored
dndl taken upoon case o ease basis, The Company hae adopted a policy of dealing with croditwerthy counterparties
andl abtaining sufficiant collateral, whore appropriate, a5 a means of mitigating the risk of financlial lods from
delaults, The Company's sxposure and tho credit stores 6l it counlerparties ore contimoously monitored. Credit
eapesure is controllod by ciunterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the manapement team ona regular
basis. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade recelvables as low, as s cusiganers ate
located In several jurishclions representing large number of minar receivabiles nperating in fargely indepeadant
mirkels

Thie cridicrisk ¢n cash and bank balances il derivative financid instruments i Bmited Bacaucs the eauntarmartion
are banks with high efodic ratings assigned by inlernastionsd credit rating ageocips.
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

Credit risk refess to the risk of defaulft on its obligatien by thi eaunterparty resulting in a financial loss, The Company
maintEn its cash and rash eguivalents and bank deposits with banks having good roputation, good pasttrock rocodd
ant Mgh quiily credit rating and also reviews their credit-warthiness on an on-going basis.

Thee mairnim exposuns to crodit risk at the veporting date i primarily fram trade recelsablos, Credit rid hiag dlways
e inansged by the company throughoeoedit opprovals, cstablishing credit limits and contimvimmsly monltaring Lhe
credivwarthingss of customers to which the company grants credit termsin the norml coursa ol businss.

On account of tho-adoption of Ind AS 109, the cormpany uses ECL model to assess thp impalnment loss or gain, The
COMpany UsSEs O provision matrix o cofmpute the ECL allowaivcs for trade receivatiss and aibillod ravenues The
provision matrix takes into account avarlalde external and internal credin rick factors . end the COMRINY'S BEpErEncs
for cusiomers,

The compaty has assessed that credi risk on losns given s insigrificant based on the empirical data

The Company reviews trade roceivables on periodic basis and makes provision lor doubliul debts il collection 1=
daoubtful. The Company atse calculaties the expected credic loss [ECL] Tor non-cofleetion of recelvables. The Company
1rnill!:'5 additional providen if the ECL ameunt i5 higher than the pranidian made for dpubitful dohts.

The rompany has. used & practical expedient by eomputing the expected credit loss alléwames Tor trage race ol
based ongeovision matrix, which takes inta account histarical credit loss exporionce as well o8 future risks based on
SUITOnt MAacrd-eeonomi inshicators and trends, Thi expecied o sl oss (F CL) elowanes is based on tatal receivahbles
that are due and the rate given in provisiooal mateis,

That cowhpany has- revised tha loss estimates based on Deys Past Baresf PO of trade receivabilod in s provision matis
N the: current yaar, This change in estimate has resulted in an increase in the impalrment Ioss of R, 7120 Lokhs
during the year,

The provision for doubtiul debts including ECL aflowances for non-collection of recelvables and delay in collection,
o b combined basis, way Bs. 5552 lakhs.as ot March, 2029 and Rs. 2B.63 lakhs os a1 March 31, 2023, The mowveinen
n allowances for dowbtlful acCounts comprising provision for both non-collection of tecehables and delay i
eatlectbon i as follows:

W

Mevemant in expected crodit foss alowance Ay at Asat
31/03/2029 | 3103 023
{As. Im Lakhs] | {Rs. In Lakhs)
Batanceat the beginning of the year .63 dLBT
Add - Abowanco made duirag thee yoar 443 924
Less  Reversal of allowance made during the yoor (7,83 [2.28]
Balanco ol the end of the year 55,63 Z8.463

The company has assessed that credit risk on other Financial A=5et. the sama i Insignilicant based an the enpirical
data. Credi risk froim o balances with banks ond financlal lnstitutions s managed by the Comgany’s broasiry
depariment I dccordanco with the Campany's assessment of crodit risk about particular financial gt itution, Nane
of the Company’s cash equivalents, including term doposits {i.e., certilicatas of deposit] with banks, weno past due
impraired a5 at cdch batance sheet date

Liguid Aick

Linuidity risk Is the rick that the Comgany will encountar diflieulty in meeting the abligatkns associated with i
financial abiliticos: that are settled by dellvering ensh or andther financial asser. Tho Comgamy's approach (o
ranaging laulidity is to ensure, a8 fie a2 possible. that 1 @il heee collicient Fguidity tp meet it lohilitics when they
e due under et nodmal and siressed cangetions, withaul mouring unacceptable ledses or risking damapo v the
Compamy's reputaticn

Management regularfy monitors the position of cash and eash oquivalonts vig-ovis projoctions, Adsesmaont of
maturiy profiles of financial assets and libilities Including debt financing plang and maintainance of balance shoet
liquidity ravios are considered while reviewing the liquidity positian.

The following e the remaining contractal maturities of Tnancial labilities ot the reporting date. The ammaits ar
frroes sl ndieetonied, and irelude eebimat o nbeeas poymants and exclude the impoot ml 'I":“-‘“'i Opr el s,

l
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

::L S Carralii Contractual Cash Flows ] (A5 In Lokhs)
Amount < 1 yonr 1-2 year 3-5 yrars Tatal
- Abowa
Financial Liabilities
16 |Non Cuorréenl
s e 112,18 Mil 30,54 55 04 n.n 11218
19 |Cirfent Rormowings 1.9E3.07 188307 Bil ril nll 1LOE3.07
2 |Trace Payables 1.233.45 1.233.45 Ml R rall B e
. ;:;I'l';ii'n':f;"""'”"' ITETI 278.71 Nil il il 278.71
T rotal 3,607.41 3,495.21 30,54 59.94 2171 350741
el Carrying Lontractual Cash Flows [R5, In Lakhs]
fai el Amgunt < 1 year 1-2 year 3.5 yrars 2 ey end Tatal
filliove
Fimancial Liabilitics B
i [Mon Curront :
EBrrowings 123.7% Hil 42,83 57448 £3.42 123,73
19 |Curdent Borrwings LG58 60 1,654,546 Ml Mk Wil 1.GLR.56
20 |Trade Payables 1.278.06 1,278,006 it il hall 1,278.06
21 [Current lmancial . )
liabilities A 181.30 il il il 181.30
Total 5.241,73 T 118,08 AF HE o748 13.43 IF1.73
U [ iiarket Risk
Parket rish & the risk that the fair value o Tuture cash flow ol o Hoangal instrumont will Nuctuote because of
whanes in market factors, Market risk comprised thees tepe of risks:
al  |Currengy Risk
b} |interest Aisk
¢} [Prico Hisk
# |Currency Risk
Phe functional currency of the Compoay is Indian Rupee, The Company is exposed t currency fisk an account af
payables and fecevisbiles in loreipn ourmency, Company is gxposed (0 currency risk on account of payables and
receieables in foraign currency, Since the riorage caports aooomt ohly fer 2527 % of total sales this is not pr_-r:r_ll-.--:~|J1
torbe a minjor risk. Thie average imports account for 30.17 % of total purchases,
Derivative instrumoents and unhedied forelpn currency capesire
il (Particulars of unhedpod forolgn currency exposures at the reporting date.
Parficulirs Asat A at
1 Currency | 3L/03/3024 | 31/03/2023
{in Lakhs) (I Lakhs]
i} Trate Necelvables Li50 11.64 405
INR an.a1 Gb1_36
LLIHO .01 0.4
IR 1.6032 3602
b} Adveance gvenlo Creditorg sl i il
IME 13,16 Mil
ELRO 021 il
INR 19.50 il
L Trade Payables (including capleal goods| o, i R
IMR G728 52,40
ELIAD (.14 0,44
INK 12493 39,59




DECO-MICA LIMITED

di Adwanse received from sxport debiors Lisn 1.9 1.7
NI 15028 14160

ELIRD Hil in3

IBR il 234

eh Secwred Currant Borrowings [Against buyers credit) o a8 e
INE il Lo A 18781

ELIRO 0,24 17

INK 16,43 14.86

1) Secured Curfent Bomowlngs tApainst FOFC) uso Ml 1.48
IME Ml 12111

Mat Statement of Financlal Exposure us 5.50 1.52
INR 450,21 15H.84
EURE {0.65) (0:23)
INIE VSE 7] (2070

Total INA ..., = 400.43 | 138.07

(Foreign Currency Risk Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit and loss due 1o changes in the exchange fates arises mainly fram nan derivative foresgn
tutrency denominated financial nstroments (mainky financial ibstruments denominated in USD, EURD, Gop
currengies). The below Seasitivity does not ingdude thedmgact of Tareard exchangn contracts,

A chanpge of 55 in Foreign currency would haws Tollowing fmpact on profit before tas

Particulas 2023-24 HiEg-43
5% Ineroase| 5% Decrease| 5% Increase] 5% Decregse
LiSg L2396 (1296} 104 {74d)
EURD {2.94) 2 (1,04 1.04
Total ...q 2002 {20.02) 6,90 (&.20)

k]

Interost Risk

[Miterest rate risk is the risk that the fairvalue of future cash laws of the financlal instruments will fluctuste because
of chinges in market interest rates. In order to optimize the Cormnpany's positicn with regards 1o interest incame and
interest expenses and to manage the interest rate risk, lregsury performs a comprehensive oorporatis intorest Fake
fisk managemant by balanciog the progartion of -fixed rate and HNoaling rate fimancial instruments in ity Lotal
prrtlnlio,

According to the Company intorest rate risk exposere is anly for foating rate Borrowings. For flaating rate labilities,
The analyiis is prepared assuming the amaunt of thi Gabilliy sulstanding ar the end of the reparting perlod was
outstunding fer the whale year. A 50 basls paint increase or decrease is used whon reporting intercsl riata risk
internally fo by nanagoivent perssnnel ang reprasens managemenl's assessment of the roasanably pu,:.sihluﬁ
chiape in iptercsd i@tes

| Cuprasure to Interest rate risk

1l-'gr]l|;|g|ijr_5 RFate Asai A
Reference | 2303/2024 | 31/03/2023
Mo (RS In Lakhs] | [R5 0n Lakhs]

Flacd Rty Instruments
Financisl Eabdlitios

Mo Corrant 16 12440 12797
Carreni 19 Hil il
Tatal ... 12440 1ZT.ar

Mariable Rate Instrurnints

Fimancial liabilitios

Mo Currant 16 15.85% 17000
Curreil 14 1,934.19 L5472
Towal ... 1,953.05 1.674.72
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

The cutstanding pasition of barrowings at variable intorost rate alang with proportion of total loans is phien

below:
Particulars As at A5 A
31/03/2024 | 31/03f2023
[Rs. In Lakhs] | {Hs. In Lakhs)
Talal Barrowings 2407744 L. 752 65
Sl Borrowings out of abovg boaring variable rate ol Inberest 0.0 1% 03, TN
ii] |Intorest Rate Sonsitivily
A chanpe of 50 Bps in interest rates woubd have following impact on profit beforo tas -
Pardiculars 2023-24 FOI213
{50p ineresse would docrease the profit before tax Ly B 12
g mcrease would incroase the profit before ta by 9.7 {8.12]
ol |Price Risk
As ol 31st March 2024 the eampary Bas nil exposure on security pricoe risks,
431 |Capital management
fhn Company’s capital management is intended to maximise the return 1o shareholders and berelits e gthar
stakehalders for meeting the lang-term and shar-Lerm poals of the Company; and reduce the cost of capltal ek
the optimiration of the cepital structure e, the debt and equity balance.
The Company manitors the capital structure on the basls of Net debq o equity ratios and ehatiarity prolde al tho
creerall debt postfolio of the Company,
The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows: {R1. In Lakhs)
Nolte s ot
Particulars Aeference
Na 31.05.2024 | 31.03.202%
Lhatal 16 & 1% 2005325 1, FH2 34
Lash ond bank baldnces 16l (1172.45] (Fh.X7)
Hut dibt 1,982.80 1,7060.11
Total Fquity attributable to aquity share holders of the comaary HME& 15 £,500.00 228007
Gearing ratha 0.79 75
44 | Agiet Plodpe as security
The garrying amount of assets pledged as security for current and non-Cureeat boriwings are:
Barilculars . :"'“'“' 31/03/7024 | 31)03/2003
RTENEE | [is. 0 Lakhs) | (Rs. 1 Lakhe)
Mo
| |Current Financial Assers
Flest Charge) Floating Charge
lrade Recolvablos | 311660 275922
I |Cuirent Assots
First Chargey Floating Charpe
fvwentarics i 414063 LMB.A5
Tertul cusrent assets pledped as security 355527 Aa97ET
HE | Nan Currpnt Ascpts
Collcteral Security
Nuildings 3 200,33 15375
Vil 3 138.66 179.69
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DECO-MICA LIMITED

43 |The Company has entered into certain operating lease agreements and an amount of Rs. 44.01 Lakhs [PY Rs, 40,70
Lkl paid under such sgreaments has been charped te the Statement of Profit & Loss. These lease are generally
non=cancellabla and are renewable by muteal consent an muta alty apreed terms, There are no restrictions impoesd
Ly such agraismeants,

=

A, |Additonal Disclosure (Other than IND AS Disclasure|

I (Buring the year under Consideration the company Las nat traded op invested in cryplo currency of vitual curency,

I fthiere were e transactions that were not récorded in books al accounts and hawo bepn sufrendered or disclosed as
ingorie during the year in the tax sssesments hder the Income Tax Act, 1961,

(e copmpany has Been not detlansd as willfel delaulier by Reserve Bank of India til 31/03,/2024

i\ Thie bofrawing from the banks snd Financal instittions has been @sed o Uie specilic purpose fod which it was
!ll.ﬂrrm it the balance sheet dite.

v |The company has fot ertered in to amd trantactisn with companies struck ofl wedas soption 28 of the Compankes
Ay 2013,

Wi [ There s not charge pending for satisfaction with ragissrar of companies beyond the Stotulory period,

_:|lfi-" The financial statemant are apprived foe s by Uit Audit Cenmrnil Leeay at its meeting an L&y May, 20040 ang by
thi Board of Mrectorson 1810 May, 2024,

48 |The baard has recemmended dividand of Rs. NI per share which i biesl to approval of sharekaldersin the
ariguing Annupl General Meeting.

49 [Mrevicus year fures heve been regrouped and of fephidsiliod, whatewer necedsary, The mpact of the such
FOEFOUPIn i nat material 1o the finonoal statemants,

As perour report of ewen dote attached herewith For & on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of

BECO MICA LIMITED
Far, J. T. Shah & Co: L’;
Chartered Accouniants e |

rFier%rj‘: 109616W) VY Ao e N

Vifaykumar I Agarscal Yishal ¥ Agarwil
@A -
M. Shah)

Minaging Director & CED Qirector & CFQ

(DM 01265397 [N 01763739
Parimer
(M.Na, 135154] file, Ig@
Niharika Mod
Flace : ahmedabad Carmpany Secrotary
(ote: 18/05/2024 [ACs Mo, A4T981)
.
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Note:

Due to unexpected delays at the printing agency, we have not yet received the final PDF of the Annual
Report for Deco Mica Limited for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2024. In the meantime, we have
manually compiled the complete set of documents for the annual report. While we are not making
any changes to the content, we will upload the properly formatted binder once the final PDF becomes
available from the printing agency.

Date: 05.09.2024

Place: Ahmedabad

For & on behalf of the Board Of Directors

DECO MICA LIMITED

Sd/- Sd/-
Vishal Vijay Bhai Agarwal Vijay Kumar Dindayal Agarwal
Director & CFO Managing Director and CEO

DIN: 01763739 DIN: 01869337
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